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NOTICE is hereby given that the 18th Annual General MeeƟng of the members of the Company will be held on Thursday, 
the 27th day of September, 2018 at 11.00 a.m. at “Rotary Sadan”, 94/2,Chowringhee Road, Kolkata – 700 020 to transact the 
following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Year ended at 31st March, 2018, 

(both Standalone and Consolidated basis), together with the Reports of the Auditors & Board of Directors’ thereon.
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ankit Patni (DIN: 00034907) who reƟres by rotaƟon and being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary ResoluƟon:
 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 148 or any amendment thereto or modificaƟon thereof, and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the remuneraƟon of M/s. S. B. 
& Associates, Cost Accountant (FRN No. 00109), Kolkata, appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost 
Auditor to conduct audit of Cost Records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19, at ` 35,000/- (Rupees 
Thirty Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes, and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred, be and is hereby 
raƟfied and confirmed.”

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following ResoluƟon as a Special ResoluƟon: 
 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to RegulaƟon 17(1A) of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 

Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder, including any amendment(s), statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the Ɵme 
being in force, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for conƟnuaƟon of directorship of 
Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra (DIN: 00059628) as the Non ExecuƟve Independent Director of the Company, who has already 
aƩained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorised to do all 
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this resoluƟon.”

 By Order of the Board 
For Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

Place: Kolkata Anil Prasad Shaw
Date: 14th August, 2018 Company Secretary

NOTES: 

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/PROXIES TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO 
BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED AND MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. A person can act as proxy on behalf of 
Members not exceeding fiŌy (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In 
case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying 
voƟng rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other member. In case of joint holders aƩending the meeƟng, only 
such joint holder whose name appears first in the Register of Members will be enƟtled to vote.

1. The Explanatory Statement seƫng out material facts pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 1.2.5 
of Secretarial Standard (SS-2) on General MeeƟng relaƟng to Special Business to be transacted at the MeeƟng, is annexed 
hereto.

2. The relevant details, as required under RegulaƟon 36(3) of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General MeeƟngs (SS-2) of person seeking appointment/re-appointment 
as Director is provided hereunder.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall remain closed from Thursday, the 20th September, 2018 to 
Thursday, 27th September, 2018 (both days inclusive).

4. As required under SS-2 issued by the ICSI, a route map, including a prominent landmark, showing direcƟons to reach the 
AGM venue is annexed to the NoƟce. 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members are informed that they may nominate at any Ɵme, in the prescribed manner, a person 
to whom their shares in the Company shall vest in the unfortunate event of their death. Members holding shares in 
physical mode should file their nominaƟon with the Company or with M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Private Limited, 
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the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company, at their address given in the Annual Report, whilst those 
Members holding shares in demat /electronic mode should file their nominaƟon with their Depository ParƟcipants (DPs).

6. The Company has transferred unpaid/unclaimed Dividends for the Financial Year 2009-10 to Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. The dividends from the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2011, which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer to the 
Unpaid Dividend Account, will be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund established by the Central 
Government. Members who have not enchased the dividend warrant(s), so far from the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2011, or any subsequent Financial Years are requested to make their claim to the Company at its Registered Office. It may 
please be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the said Fund, as above, no claims shall lie against the 
Company. However, claim can be made from the Fund in accordance with the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund 
Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) second Amendment Rules, 2017. Further, pursuant to the provisions 
of the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016 and Investor 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (Uploading of InformaƟon Regarding Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend Amounts Lying with 
Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has also uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the 
Company on the website of the Company www.rohiƞerrotech.com and also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs. 

7. In compliance with the provisions of SecƟons 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’) as amended from 
Ɵme to Ɵme, the Company has transferred 24,555  Equity Shares, in aggregate on which dividends remained unpaid 
or unclaimed for a period of seven consecuƟve years or more, to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority maintained with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited had the details of the shares transferred are provided in the web site of the 
Company www.rohiƞerrotech.com. Shareholders may note that the shares/dividend transferred to IEPF can be claimed 
by making an applicaƟon to the Authority in a Form IEPF-5 (to be filed online) at the following link Ʃp://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/
refund.html. Members who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the financial years 2010-11 onwards, are 
requested to correspond with the Company to make their claims.

8. The Company has sent reminder leƩers on 21st June, 2018 to the shareholders relaƟng to transfer of Shares and Dividend 
for the year ended 31st March, 2011, in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 7 (seven) consecuƟve 
years or more, to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF) in terms of the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon 
Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. A newspaper noƟce was also published by the 
Company in Financial Express and Dainik Statesman on 23rd June, 2018 containing requisite details as required under 
the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. Further, the 
details of unclaimed Shares proposed to be transferred to IEPF have been uploaded on the website of the Company www.
rohiƞerrotech.com.

9. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
by every parƟcipant in security market. The Members holding Shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to 
submit the PAN to their Depository ParƟcipants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. The SecuriƟes 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated registraƟon of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account 
details for all Members holding shares in physical form vide its circular dated April 20, 2018. In this regard, the Company 
has sent leƩers on 29th May, 2018 to the concerned shareholders requesƟng to comply with the same. Therefore, the 
Members are requested to submit their PAN and Bank Account details to the ‘Secretarial Department’ of the Company or 
to Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Private Limited , the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). 

10. In view of circular issued by SEBI, the Electronics Clearing Services (ECS/NECS) facility should mandatorily be used by the 
companies for the distribuƟon of dividend to its members. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
submit their Bank Account details to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the company.

11. InformaƟon in respect of such unclaimed Dividends and due dates for transfer to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon 
Fund of Government of India are given below:

Financial Year Date of DeclaraƟon Due date of transfer to IEPF
2010-11 15.09.2011 19.10.2018
2011-12 25.09.2012 26.10.2019

12. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to advice any change of address immediately to the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟcs (P) Ltd., 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700 
001 and to their respecƟve DPs in respect of Equity Shares held in dematerialized form.

13. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representaƟves to aƩend the meeƟng are requested to send a 
cerƟfied copy of the Board ResoluƟon authorising their representaƟve to aƩend and vote on their behalf at the MeeƟng.

14. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their AƩendance Slip for aƩending the MeeƟng.
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15. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID and those who hold 
shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number in the aƩendance slip for aƩending the meeƟng. In case 
of joint holders aƩending the meeƟng, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be enƟtled to vote.

16. Members desirous of obtaining any informaƟon concerning the accounts and operaƟons of the Company are requested to 
send their queries to the Company at least ten days before the meeƟng so that the same could be complied in advance.

17. Since the securiƟes of the Company are compulsorily tradable in electronic form, to ensure beƩer investor service and 
eliminaƟon of risk of holding securiƟes in physical form, it is requested that the members holding shares in physical form 
to get their shares dematerialised at the earliest.

18. All documents referred to in the NoƟce will be available for inspecƟon at the Company’s Corporate Office during all the 
working days except Saturday between 11.00 a.m and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of AGM.

19. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2018 is being sent to all the Members whose e-mail ids are registered with 
the Company/Depository ParƟcipants(s) for communicaƟon purposes unless any Member has requested for a hard copy 
of the same. For the Members who have not registered their e-mail address, physical copies of the Annual Report for 
2018 is being sent in the permiƩed mode. Rule 18(3)(i) of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 
requires a Company to provide advance opportunity at least once in a Financial Year, to the Member to register his e-mail 
address and any changes therein. In compliance with the same, we request the Members who do not have their e-mail id 
registered with the Company to get the same registered with the Company. Members are also requested to inƟmate to 
the Company the changes, if any in their e-mail address. The Annual Report of the Company, circulated to the Members 
of the Company, will also be made available on the Company’s website i.e. www.rohiƞerrotech.com.

20. Electronic copy of the NoƟce of the 18th Annual General MeeƟng of the Company inter alia indicaƟng the process and 
manner of e-voƟng along with AƩendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose e-mail IDs are 
registered with the Company/Depository ParƟcipants(s) for communicaƟon purposes. For members who have not 
registered their e-mail address, physical copies of the noƟce of the 18th Annual General MeeƟng of the Company inter alia 
indicaƟng the process and manner of e-voƟng along with AƩendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permiƩed 
mode. 

21. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) by amendment to RegulaƟon 40 of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of 
India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 vide GazeƩe noƟficaƟon dated June 8, 2018 has 
mandated that transfer of securiƟes would be carried out only in dematerialised form with effect from December 5, 2018 
except in case of transmission or transposiƟon of securiƟes. Therefore, the Members holding shares in physical forms are 
requested to dematerialise their securiƟes accordingly.

22. In compliance with provisions of SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Reg. 44 of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟons 2015 and 8.6 
of Secretarial Standard (SS-2) on General MeeƟng and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 
2014, the Members are informed that the Company is pleased to offer e-voƟng facility to cast their vote electronically. 
The Company has made necessary arrangement with the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to facilitate 
e-voƟng.

 The e-voƟng facility is available at the link www.evoƟngindia.com vide the EVSN 180811009.

 The e-voƟng facility will be available during the following voƟng period :

Commencement of e-voƟng From : 09.00 a.m. 
of 24th  September, 2018

End of e-voƟng Upto :  05.00 p.m. 
of 26th September, 2018

 E-voƟng shall not be allowed beyond 5.00 p.m. of 26th September, 2018.

 The detailed procedure is menƟoned below. For the aforesaid purpose, the Company has appointed CS K.C. Dhanuka of 
M/s K. C. Dhanuka & Co., PracƟcing Company Secretaries for scruƟnizing the e-voƟng process in a true and transparent 
manner.

23. e-VoƟng Procedure

 The instrucƟons for shareholders voƟng electronically are as under:

 (i) The voƟng period begins on 24th   September, 2018 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on 26th September, 2018 at 05.00 p.m. 
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date (record date) of 20th September, 2018 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voƟng module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voƟng thereaŌer.
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 (ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeƟng date would not be enƟtled to vote at the meeƟng venue.

 (iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voƟng website www.evoƟngindia.com.

 (iv) Click on Shareholders.

 (v) Now Enter your User ID 

  a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
  c. Members holding shares in physical form should enter folio number registered with the Company.

 (vi) Next enter the image verificaƟon as displayed and Click on Login.

 (vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evoƟngindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voƟng of any Company, then your exisƟng password is to be used. 

 (viii) If you are a first Ɵme user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository ParƟcipant are 

requested to use the first two leƩers of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number 
in the PAN field.

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before 
the number aŌer the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL leƩers. Eg. If your name is 
Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank 
Details or Date 
of Birth (DOB)

•   Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the Company records in order to login.

•    If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as menƟoned in instrucƟon (iv).

 (ix) AŌer entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

 (x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selecƟon screen. However, members 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password CreaƟon’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voƟng for resoluƟons of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 
opts for e-voƟng through CDSL plaƞorm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidenƟal.

 (xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voƟng on the resoluƟons contained 
in this NoƟce.

 (xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <ROHIT FERRO-TECH LTD.> on which you choose to vote.

 (xiii) On the voƟng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the opƟon “YES/NO” for voƟng. 
Select the opƟon YES or NO as desired. The opƟon YES implies that you assent to the resoluƟon and opƟon NO 
implies that you dissent to the resoluƟon.

 (xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the enƟre resoluƟon details.

 (xv) AŌer selecƟng the resoluƟon you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmaƟon box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify 
your vote.

 (xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resoluƟon, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” opƟon on the voƟng page.

 (xviii) If a demat account holder has forgoƩen the login password then enter the User ID and the image verificaƟon code 
and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

 (xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-VoƟng available for android based mobiles. The 
m-VoƟng app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app 
from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respecƟvely . Please follow the instrucƟons as prompted by the 
mobile app while voƟng on your mobile.
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 (xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

  •  Non-Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on 
to www.evoƟngindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

  •  A scanned copy of the RegistraƟon Form bearing the stamp and sign of the enƟty should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com.

  •  AŌer receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

  •  The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com and on approval 
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

  •  A scanned copy of the Board ResoluƟon and Power of AƩorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scruƟnizer to verify the same.

 (xxi) (In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voƟng, you may refer the Frequently Asked QuesƟons (“FAQs”) 
and e-voƟng manual available at www.evoƟngindia.com, under help secƟon or write an email to helpdesk.evoƟng@
cdslindia.com.

DISTRIBUTION OF GIFTS
AƩenƟon of the Members is drawn that in conformity with regulatory requirements, the Company will NOT be 
distribuƟng any giŌ, giŌ coupons or cash in lieu of giŌs at the Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) or in connecƟon therewith.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
AND CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS SS-2 ON GENERAL MEETING

Item No.3

The Board of Directors had reappointed M/s. S. B. & Associates, Cost Accountant (FRN No.00109), as per recommendaƟon of 
Audit CommiƩee, being eligible as Cost Auditor of the Company, for a remuneraƟon of ` 35,000/- plus applicable taxes and re-
imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them to conduct an audit of the cost accounƟng records maintained by the 
Company for the current Financial Year beginning from 1st April, 2018 and ending on 31st March, 2019.

In terms of SecƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 
aforesaid remuneraƟon is required to be raƟfied by the members. Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought to raƟfy the 
remuneraƟon payable to the Cost Auditors.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the ResoluƟon set out at Item No. 3 of the NoƟce.

The Board recommends the resoluƟon set out at Item No. 3 of the noƟce for approval by the Shareholders.

Item No.4

Pursuant to RegulaƟon 17(1A) of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons which would be effecƟve from 1st April 2019, listed enƟƟes have to 
pass a special resoluƟon to appoint a non-execuƟve director or conƟnue the directorship of a non-execuƟve director who has 
aƩained the age of 75 years with jusƟficaƟon for the same. Therefore, for conƟnuaƟon of directorship by Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra 
(DIN: 00059628) as the Non ExecuƟve Independent Director of the Company who have already aƩained the age of 75 years, 
special resoluƟon, have been proposed by the Board of the Company and jusƟficaƟons for aforesaid item No. 4 is  given below: 

Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra is a Non ExecuƟve Independent Director of the Company. He joined the Board of the Company from 5th 
September, 2005. He is a Bachelor of Civil Engineering from Jadavpur University and has done his Master of Engineering from 
CalcuƩa University. He is also a life member of InsƟtute of Surveyors. He was the CEO of WBIIDC, Government of West Bengal. 
He was deputed by Government of India for 6 years as Town Engineer, Kabwe, Republic of Zambia and Africa. 

Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra is having wide experience in Iron & Steel & Ferro Alloys business and servicing the company independently 
since long Ɵme. On the basis of recommendaƟon of the NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and in view of qualificaƟon, 
extensive experience and considering in best interest of the Company, the Board of Directors therefore proposed to conƟnue 
him aŌer expiry of his exisƟng term.

Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra does not hold any shares in the Company.

Except Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra, being appointee, none of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the ResoluƟon set out at Item No.4 of the NoƟce.

The Board recommends the resoluƟon set out at Item No. 4 of the noƟce for approval by the Shareholders.
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ROUTE MAP OF AGM VENUE

ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 2 OF THE NOTICE:

1. Details of Directors seeking re-appointment/appointment at the forthcoming Annual General MeeƟng pursuant to SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 

 Disclosure pursuant to SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 with regard to the 
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng (Refer Item No. 2 of the NoƟce):

Name of Director Mr. Ankit Patni
Date of Birth 13.01.1985
NaƟonality Indian
Date of appointment on the Board 30.09.2015
QualificaƟons B.Com, CFA and MBA
ExperƟse He is having a good amount of experience in the maƩers of finance, 

raw material procurements and markeƟng. 

Number of Shares held in the Company 1128589
List of Directorship held in other listed Companies 1.   Ankit Metal & Power Limited

2.   Impex Ferro Tech Limited
Chairmanship/Membership in CommiƩee of  other 
listed  companies*

1. Ankit Metal & Power Limited
      Member in Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee
2. Impex Ferro Tech Limited
      Member in Audit CommiƩee 
      Member in NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

RelaƟonship between Directors inter-se Mr. Ankit Patni is son of Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni

* CommiƩee herein refers Audit CommiƩee, Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee and NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon  
CommiƩee.
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Dear Shareholders,
The Directors are pleased to present the 18th Annual Report of the Company together with Audited Accounts for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2018.

Financial Highlights (` in Crores)

Standalone

 ParƟculars Current Year
31-03-2018

Previous year
31-03-2017

Revenue from OperaƟon 731.39 724.14
Other Income 4.42 6.49
Total Revenue 735.81 730.63
Profit before Finance Cost, DepreciaƟon and Tax (251.90) (320.47)
Less: DepreciaƟon & AmorƟsaƟon 33.74 34.18
Less: Finance Cost 53.23 (18.66)
Less: Tax Expenses – –
Net Profit aŌer Tax (338.87) (336.00)
Less: ExcepƟonal Item – –
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (net of tax) (.07) (0.55)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (338.94) (336.55)

 Figures of the previous period has been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to   the classificaƟon for 
the year ended 31st March 2018.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review the Company has achieved a total Revenue from OperaƟon of ` 731.39 Crores (P.Y. ` 724.14 
Crores). The Company incurred a net loss of ` 338.87 Crores due to increase in input cost and lower realisaƟons owing to 
availability of cheaper imports etc. 

 The suspension of work at our plant at Haldia sƟll conƟnues.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The Company adopted Ind AS from the last Financial Year with the transiƟon date of 1st April, 2015. 

DIVIDEND

In view of the losses incurred by the Company, the Directors of the Company do not recommend any Dividend for the Financial 
Year 2017-18.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

In view of the losses incurred by the Company during the year under review, no amount has been transferred to reserves.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Ankit Patni (DIN: 00034907), Managing Director reƟres by rotaƟon and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Pursuant to RegulaƟon 17(1A) of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons which would be effecƟve from 1st April 2019, listed enƟƟes have to pass 
a special resoluƟon to appoint a non-execuƟve director or conƟnue the directorship of a non-execuƟve director who has aƩained 
the age of 75 years with jusƟficaƟon for the same. Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra (DIN: 00059628), Non ExecuƟve Independent Director 
of the Company has already aƩained the age of 75 years . In view of qualificaƟon and extensive experience and considering in 
best interest of the Company, the Board of Director therefore proposed to conƟnue him aŌer expiry of his present term.

The brief parƟculars of the Directors seeking their appointment/re-appointment have been given in the noƟce convening the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟng and is annexed to the noƟce as required in terms of RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟon and Disclosure Requirement) RegulaƟons, 2015 (‘SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons’) and the Board recommends their 
appointment/re-appointment as set out in the noƟce.
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There was no change in other Directors & Key Managerial Personnel during year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As required by SecƟon 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,  your  Directors confirm:
a. that in the preparaƟon of the Annual Accounts, for the Year ended 31st March, 2018 the applicable AccounƟng Standards 

have been followed with proper explanaƟon relaƟng to material departures, if any;
b. that they have selected such AccounƟng Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and esƟmates that 

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at end of Financial Year 
and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

c. that they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud 
and other irregulariƟes;

d. that they have prepared the accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st  March, 2018 on a ‘Going Concern’ basis.;
e. that they have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal Financial 

Controls are adequate and were operaƟng effecƟvely and
f. that they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The details of the number of meeƟngs of the Board of Directors held during the Financial Year 2017-18 forms a part of the 
Corporate Governance Report.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declaraƟons from all the Independent Directors of the Company that they meet the criteria of 
Independence as prescribed under SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons with Stock Exchanges. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon Policy and other maƩers provided under SecƟon 178(3) of the act, has been 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report which form part of Directors Report.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board has carried out an annual evaluaƟon of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluaƟon of 
the funcƟoning of various CommiƩees. The Independent Directors also carried out the evaluaƟon of the Chairman and the Non-
Independent Directors, the details of which are covered in the Corporate Governance Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT (MDA)

The details of operaƟng performance of the Company for the year, the state of affairs and the key changes in the operaƟng 
environment have been analysed in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report which forms a part of the Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements), RegulaƟons, 2015 
(LisƟng RegulaƟons), the Corporate Governance Report and the Auditors’ CerƟficate regarding compliance of condiƟons of 
Corporate Governance are annexed to this report.

SUBSIDIARIES

As on 31st March, 2018, the Company has 2 (two) Subsidiaries i.e. M/s. SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd. (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) and 
M/s. PT Bara Prima Mandiri of Indonesia (Step Down Subsidiary). There is no change in the status of the holding in the Financial 
Year under review.

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 129(3) of the Act, the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and other documents of its 
Subsidiary Company are required to be aƩached to Balance Sheet. Accordingly, the said documents are included in this Annual 
Report. The financial data of the Subsidiaries forms part of the Annual Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

As per requirement of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements), RegulaƟons, 
2015 the Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the relevant AccounƟng Standards 
issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with the 
Auditors Report thereon form part of the Annual Report.
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CREDIT RATING

During the year under review Credit RaƟng has not been done. The Company’s credit raƟng for last available year for Long-Term 
Loans & Fund Based Limits was [ICRA] D and for Short-Term Limits was [ICRA] D, as given by ICRA Limited.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public and as such, no amount of principal and interest was 
outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

INSURANCE

The properƟes and insurable assets and interests of the Company, like building, plant and machinery and stocks, among others, 
are adequately insured.

AWARDS & ACHIEVEMENTS

During the year under review there was no award received by the Company.

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE & MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review there were no changes in capital structure or memorandum & ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of the 
Company. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of Annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2018 in Form MGT-9 as required under SecƟon 92(3) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014, is set out as 
an Annexure-I to the Directors’ Report and form part of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 139 of the Act and the rules framed there under, M/s. R. Kothari & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (FRN:307069E), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company from conclusion of the 15th AGM held in the 
year 2015 unƟl the conclusion of the Nineteenth (19th) AGM of the Company. 

It may be noted that due to amendment in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide noƟficaƟon dated May 7, 2018, in proviso to SecƟon 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with explanaƟon to sub-rule 7 of Rule 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the requirement of raƟficaƟon 
of appointment of Auditors by the Members at every AGM has been done away with. In view of the said amendment, the 
Company is not seeking any raƟficaƟon of appointment of M/s. R. Kothari & Co, Chartered Accountants as the Auditors of the 
Company, by the Members at the ensuing AGM.

Further, the Company has received a cerƟficate from M/s. R. Kothari & Co, Chartered Accountants confirming their eligibility to 
conƟnue as Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of SecƟon 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 
there under.  They have also confirmed that they hold a valid Peer Review CerƟficate as prescribed under RegulaƟon 33(1)(d) of 
the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

ObservaƟons of the Auditors M/s. R. Kothari & Co, Chartered Accountants, on Standalone Financial Statement of the Company 
have been dealt with hereunder:

AƩenƟon to Note No.6 of the accompanying statement regarding non provision of interest expenses on the borrowing of the 
company amounƟng to ` 7,450 Lacs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2018 and ` 29,797 Lacs for year ended 31st March, 2018 
was not in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 23.

Further, the Company has not provided accrued interest in its books of accounts during the year. The unprovided liability in 
respect of interest on Borrowings amounted to ` 35,120 Lacs for the year under review. The same have consequenƟal impact 
on the reported figures of this year. Had the aforesaid interest expense been recognized the finance cost would have been
` 35,120 Lacs instead reported amount of ` 5,323 Lacs for the year under review. Net loss aŌer tax for the year ended 31st  
March, 2018 would have been ` 63,684 Lacs instead of reported amount of ` 33,887 Lacs. Total comprehensive Loss for the year 
ended 31st March, 2018 would have been ̀  63,691 Lacs instead reported amount of ̀  33,894 Lacs. Other Equity would have been 
` (1,34,642) Lacs against reported amount of ` (1,04,845) Lacs and other current financial liability would have been ` 89,747 
Lacs instead of reported amount of ` 59,950 Lacs.

The Board of Directors comments on the above observaƟons are:

The lenders have stopped charging interest on debts, since the dues from the company have been categorised as Non Performing 
Asset. The company is in acƟve discussion/ negoƟaƟon with it lenders to restructure its debt at a sustainable level. In view of 
the above, pending finalizaƟon of the restructuring plan, the company has not provided accrued interest in its books during the 
quarter as the account has been declared Non Performing Asset (NPA) by the respecƟve lenders. The amount of interest not so 
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provided for the quarter ended 31st March, 2018 stands at ` 7,450 Lacs and for the twelve months ended 31st March, 2018 at 
` 29,797 Lacs.

ObservaƟons of the Auditors M/s. R. Kothari & Co, Chartered Accountants, on Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company 
have been dealt with hereunder:

We draw aƩenƟon with regard to non-recogniƟon of inter est expense amounƟng to ` 30,058 lacs on the Borrowings of the 
Company for th e year ended 31st March, 2018 which is not in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 23.

Further, had the aforesaid interest expenses been recognized, the finance cost for the year ended 31st march, 2018 would have 
been `35,382 lacs, instead of reported amount of ` 5,324 lacs. Total expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2018 would have 
been ` 1,45,816 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 1,15,758 lacs. Net loss aŌer tax for the year ended 31st March, 2018 
would have been ` 75,831 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 45,773 lacs. Total comprehensive losses for the year ended 31st 
March, 2018 would have been ` 76,017 lacs instead of ` 45,959 lacs. Other Equity would have been ` 146,246 lacs instead of 
reported amount of ` 1,16,188 lacs. Other current financial liability would have been ` 92,418 lacs instead of reported amount 
of ` 62,360 lacs.

The unprovided liability in respect of interest on long term and short term borrowings as on 31st March, 2018 amounted to 
` 61,449 lacs. The same have consequenƟal impact on the reported figures of current financial year as well as earlier periods on 
finance cost, total expenses, total comprehensive loss etc.

The Board of Directors comments are:

The lenders have stopped charging interest on debts, since the dues from the company have been categorised as Non-Performing 
Asset. The company is in acƟve discussion/negoƟaƟon with it lenders to restructure its debt at a sustainable level. In view of the 
above, pending finalizaƟon of the restructuring plan, the company has not provided accrued interest in its books during the year 
as the account has been declared NPA by the respecƟve lenders. 

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s. NR & Associates, Cost Accountants, has been appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19.

COST AUDITORS

In terms of SecƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, on 
the recommendaƟon of Audit CommiƩee, the Board of Directors has appointed M/s. S. B. & Associates, Cost Accountant (FRN 
No.00109), as Cost Auditor of the Company, at a remuneraƟon of ` 35,000/- plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out 
of pocket expenses incurred by them to conduct an audit of the Cost AccounƟng Records maintained by the Company for the 
Financial Year beginning from 1st April, 2018 and ending on 31st March, 2019.

As required under SecƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, the remuneraƟon payable to Cost Auditor is being placed at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng for raƟficaƟon by the 
members.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the Company to have a formal framework of Internal Financial Controls (IFC) and 
has also laid down specific responsibiliƟes on the Board, Audit CommiƩee, Independent Directors and Statutory Auditors with 
regard to IFC.

The Financial Control System and framework is required to ensure:

• The orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
• Safeguarding of its assets,
• The prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors,
• The accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records and
• The Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon.

The Board reviews the effecƟveness of controls documented as part of Internal Affairs and Financial Control (IAFC) framework 
and take necessary correcƟve acƟons, where weaknesses are idenƟfied as a result of such reviews. This review covers enƟty 
level controls, fraud risk controls and informaƟon technology environment.

The policies and procedure adopted by the Company ensures the orderly and efficient conduct of its business and adherence to 
the Company’s policies, prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the records and the Ɵmely 
preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon. Based on this evaluaƟon, no significant events had come to noƟce during the year 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our Internal Financial Control. The management has 
also come to the conclusion that the Internal Financial Control and other Financial ReporƟng was effecƟve during the year and is 
adequate considering the business operaƟons of the Company. The Statutory Auditor of the Company has audited the Internal 
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Financial Control over Financial ReporƟng and their Audit Report is annexed as Annexure- B to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
under Financial Statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composiƟon and terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩee are included in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which form part of this report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composiƟon and terms of reference of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee are included in 
the Corporate Governance Report, which form part of this report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composiƟon and other maƩers of the Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee are included in the 
Corporate Governance Report, which form part of this report. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR COMMITTEE)

The details pertaining to composiƟon and other maƩers of the Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee (CSR CommiƩee) are 
included in the Corporate Governance Report, which form part of this report. 

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

In compliance with provisions of the SecƟon 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, and  the LisƟng Agreement, the Company 
has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns, details of which has 
been given in the Corporate Governance Report annexed to this report and also posted on the website of the Company www.
rohiƞerrotech.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a Risk Management framework in place which is designed to idenƟfy, assess and monitor various risks 
related to key business and strategic objecƟves and lead to the formulaƟon of a miƟgaƟon plan which is reviewed by the Audit 
CommiƩee and approved by the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme. All idenƟfied risks are categorised based on a matrix of likelihood 
of occurrence and impact thereof and a miƟgaƟon plan is worked out to the extent possible. Major risks in parƟcular areas 
monitored regularly and the Board of Directors of the Company is kept abreast. 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composiƟon and terms of reference of the ExecuƟve CommiƩee are included in the Corporate 
Governance Report, which form part of this report.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME

The Company at its meeƟngs held during the Financial Year 2017-18 had familiarised the Independent Directors with regard to 
their roles, rights, responsibiliƟes in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business models 
of the Company etc. The Independent Directors have been provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to 
familiarise them with the Company’s policies, procedures and pracƟces.

Periodic presentaƟons are made at the Board and Board CommiƩee MeeƟngs, on business and performance updates of the 
Company, business strategy and risks involved.

The details of such Programmes are uploaded on the website of the Company at  and available at the link hƩps://www.
rohiƞerrotech.com/familiarizaƟon-programme-17-18.pdf

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS & REPORT

The Company has appointed M/s K. C. Dhanuka & Co., (Prop. Mr. K.C. Dhanuka, FCS – 2204) as the Secretarial Auditor of your 
Company for Financial Year 2017-18 to conduct the Secretarial Audit pursuant to SecƟon 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018 is annexed as Annexure-II and forms part of the 
Report.

SECRETARIAL  AUDITOR OBSERVATION

The Secretarial Auditor has the following observaƟons in Form MR-3 enclosed as Annexure-II.

(i) It has been observed that the Company has defaulted in the payments of statutory dues within the prescribed Ɵme. 

Our Comments are as under:

(i) Statutory payments were delayed mainly due to poor liquidity posiƟon.
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CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transacƟons entered by the Company during the Financial Year were on an arm’s length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of business. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract/arrangement/
transacƟon with related parƟes which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company’s materiality 
of related party transacƟons. Hence, the provisions of SecƟon 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not aƩracted. Thus, disclosure 
in Form AOC-2 is not required. Further, there are no materially significant Related Party TransacƟons during the year under 
review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons. 

The Policy on materiality of related party transacƟon as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s Website, 
www.rohiƞerrotech.com. Your Directors drew aƩenƟon of the members to Note 40 to the Financial Statement which sets out 
related party disclosures.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of SecƟon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 if any, are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statement.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the year under review, your Company transferred a sum of `1,60,785.00 (Rupees One Lac Sixty Thousand Seven Hundred 
Eighty five only) to IEPF of the Central Government, being the dividend amount pertaining to the Financial Year ended on 31st 
March, 2010, which was due and payable and remained unclaimed and unpaid for a period of 7 years or more . The Company has 
also sent Reminder leƩers dated 21st June, 2018 to the concerned shareholders for the transfer of Dividend from the year ended 
31st March, 2011 to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF), which has not been paid or claimed and a reference in 
this respect was also published by the Company in Newspaper i.e. in Financial Express and Dainik Statesman on 23rd June, 2018.

In compliance with the provisions of SecƟons 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’) as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
the Company has transferred 24,555  Equity Shares, in aggregate in respect of shares on which dividends remained unpaid or 
unclaimed for a period of seven consecuƟve years or more, to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority maintained with Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Further, the Company has sent Reminder leƩers dated 21st June, 2018 to the shareholders relaƟng to transfer of shares from 
the year ended 31st March, 2011, in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for 7 (seven) consecuƟve years or 
more, to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF) in terms of the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. A Newspaper NoƟce was also published by the Company in Financial 
Express and Dainik Statesman on 23rd June, 2018 containing requisite details as required under the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund)Rules, 2016. Further, the details of unclaimed shares 
proposed to be transferred to IEPF have been uploaded on the website of the Company (www.rohiƞerrotech.com). 

The concerned members are therefore requested to claim the aforemenƟoned Dividend remaining unclaimed immediately 
to the Company or our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd. having  address at  23, R.N. 
Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata – 700 001.

DETAILS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneraƟon and other details as required under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms a part of the Board’s 
Report as Annexure-III.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, parƟculars of the employees are not applicable to the Company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS, COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING GOING CONCERN AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATION

To the best of our knowledge the Company has not received any such order by Regulators, Courts or Tribunals during the year 
under review which may impact the Going Concern status or the Company’s operaƟons in future during year under review. The 
Company has complied with all the requirements of the Uniform LisƟng Agreement/LisƟng RegulaƟons with the Stock Exchanges 
as well as regulaƟons and guidelines of SEBI. 

However during the year under review, SEBI vide it circular dated 7th August, 2017 declares 331 companies as Shell company 
including our company without giving any noƟce, informaƟon and any opportunity of being heard. Subsequently the both Stock 
exchanges i.e. NSE and BSE had restricted the trading of the Security of the Company on instrucƟon of SEBI on account of suspect 
of a Shell Company w.e.f. 8th August, 2017. It may be noted by the shareholders that our company is not a  shell company as 
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alleged. We are not a company which can by any stretch of imaginaƟon be termed as such and we are a manufacturing company 
having a turnover of ` 735,851 Lacs in current financial year (FY 2017-18) and ` 73,063 Lacs during the last year (FY 2016-17). 
We also have over 18,000 Shareholders. We have complied with all regulaƟons and at no Ɵme have the authoriƟes issued any 
noƟces to us in this regard. Further we have no investor complaints which are pending.

Further, the investments and advances of SKP Overseas PTE Limited (Singapore), a wholly owned subsidiary of the company, 
in the step down subsidiary namely PT Bara Prima Mandiri (Indonesia) was wriƩen off in the last available audited financial 
statements. Accordingly, the company has made provision for diminuƟon in the value of its investments, receivables, loans & 
advances etc. in the wholly owned subsidiary totalling to ` 9,309 Lacs and shown as excepƟonal items in the quarterly financial 
results.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE 
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Pursuant to a wriƩen request received by the Company from State Bank of India (SBI) vide their communicaƟon dated 22nd  
May, 2017, the Board of the Company at its meeƟng held on 30th   May, 2017 has resolved to execute the Deed of Undertaking 
binding itself together with the Promoters (including persons belonging to the Promoter Group) to the sale of the enƟre 
shareholding of the Promoters in the Company (Promoter Shares) to a prospecƟve Investor to be idenƟfied by SBI through 
Swiss Challenge Method leading to change in the management of the Company from the exisƟng Promoters to the prospecƟve 
Investor. SBI, however, has informed vide their leƩer dated 4th May, 2018 that their Competent Authority has decided to cancel 
the process of Change in Management under Swiss Challenge Method in view of various reasons impending the process. 

Further, due to no operaƟons and non-realizaƟon from non-current and current assets of the Step down subsidiary PT Bara Prima 
Mandiri, write off has been made in the books of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. thus completely eroding the Networth of SKP Overseas 
Pte Ltd. Accordingly the carrying value of Goodwill amounƟng to ` 3,507 has been impaired and shown under excepƟonal items. 
Appropriateness of the going concern assumpƟon on which the financial statements of the SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. are prepared 
is dependent on the conƟnued financial support from its director and the operaƟons of Indonesia coal mine being restarted. 
Accordingly the financial statement of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. has been prepared on ‘Going Concern’ basis.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 

Year company has adopted a policy under the sexual Harrasment of women at work place (PresenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal 
) Act 2013 and ruls foamed there under.

The Company is commiƩed to provide and promote a safe, healthy and congenial atmosphere irrespecƟve of gender, caste, 
creed or social class of the employees. During the year under review, there was no case filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act , 2013.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGOING

As required under provisions of SecƟon 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, details relaƟng to ConservaƟon of Energy, Technology AbsorpƟon and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are 
given in the ‘Annexure-IV’ which is annexed hereto and forms part of the Board’s Report. 

GREEN INITIATIVE

The Company welcomes and supports the ‘Green IniƟaƟve’ undertaken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India, enabling electronic delivery of documents including the Annual Report to shareholders at their e-mail address previously 
registered with the DPs/Company/RTAs. Those holding shares in demat form can register their e-mail address with their 
concerned DPs. To support the ‘Green IniƟaƟve’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses are requested to 
register the same with Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/Depositories for receiving all communicaƟon including Annual Report, 
NoƟces, Circulars etc. from the Company electronically.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review industrial relaƟons and the Company’s manufacturing complexes were remained cordial.

APPRECIATION

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciaƟon for the conƟnued assistance and co-operaƟon extended to the 
Company by the Shareholders, Regulatory & Government AuthoriƟes, Suppliers, Customers and Bankers and to other enƟre 
workforce including valuable contribuƟon of the employees at all levels who are conƟnuing their assistance to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

Suresh Kumar Patni
Kolkata, 14th August, 2018        Chairman

Directors' Report
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Annexure - I
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

[Pursuant to  SecƟon 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & AdministraƟon) Rules,  2014.]

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L27104WB2000PLC091629
ii RegistraƟon Date 7th April, 2000
iii Name of the Company Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company (Limited by Shares having Share Capital)
v Address of the Registered Office & contact details 35, ChiƩaranjan Avenue, Kolkata - 700 012

Phone No.: +91 33 2211 0225/0226
vi Whether listed company Yes (BSE Limited & NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited)
vii Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar  & 

Transfer Agent, if any.
M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd.                                                                                                             
23, R N Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
Phone : 033 22435029 / 22482248

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 All the business acƟviƟes contribuƟng 10% or more of the total turnover of the company are given below:

S. 
No.

Name & DescripƟon of  main products/services NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the company

1. Ferro-alloys 3309 55%
2. Iron & Steel 3301 45%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. 
No.

Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
Shares Held

Applicable 
SecƟon

1. “M/S SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.
141, Cecil Street, #07-05, Tung Ann 
AssociaƟon Building, Singapore-069541”

200806931E Wholly-Owned Subsidiary 100.00% 2(87)

IV.  Shareholding PaƩern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)   

 i)  CATEGORYͳWISE SHARE HOLDING

Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the  beginning of the year
[As on 01-April-2017]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2018]

% change 
during the 

YearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF  60,65,638  –    60,65,638  5.33  60,65,638  –    60,65,638  5.33  –   
b) Central Government  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
c)  State Government(s)  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
d) Bodies Corporate  7,58,52,204  –    7,58,52,204  66.67  7,58,52,204  –    7,58,52,204  66.67  –   

e) Financial InsƟtuƟons / 
Banks

 –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

f) Any Other  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
Sub-total (A)(1)  8,19,17,842  –    8,19,17,842  72.00  8,19,17,842  –    8,19,17,842  72.00  –   
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Category of Shareholders No of Shares held at the  beginning of the year
[As on 01-April-2017]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2018]

% change 
during the 

YearDemat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
b) Other - Individuals  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
c) Bodies Corp.  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
d) Banks/FI  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
e) Any other(specify)  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
Sub-Total (A)(2)  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
Total shareholding of Promot-
er (A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

 8,19,17,842  –    8,19,17,842  72.00  8,19,17,842  –    8,19,17,842  72.00  –   

B. Public Shareholding
1. InsƟtuƟons
a) Mutual Fund  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
b) Banks/ Financila Insti-
tutions

 –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

c) Central Government  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
d) State Government(s)  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
e) Venture Capital Fund  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
f) Insurance Companies  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
g) FII's  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds

 –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

i) Others (specify)  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
j) Any Other  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
Sub-total(B)(1)  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
1. Indian  18,34,957  –    18,34,957  1.61  18,20,828  –    18,20,828  1.60  –0.01 
2. Overseas  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh.

 1,50,38,938  14,602  1,50,53,540  13.23  1,46,13,911  14,653  1,46,28,564  12.86  –0.37 

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh

 1,28,44,293  –    1,28,44,293  11.29  1,34,76,883  –    1,34,76,883  11.85  0.56 

c) Others (Specify)
    1. Non Resident Indians  10,55,427  –    10,55,427  0.93  11,04,192  –    11,04,192  0.97  0.04 
    2. Clearing Members  10,63,264  –    10,63,264  0.93  7,99,259  –    7,99,259  0.70  –0.23 
    3. NBFCs registered with RBI  6,800  –    6,800  0.01  4,000  –    4,000 0.00  –0.00 
    4. Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority

 –    –    –    –    24,555  –    24,555 0.02  0.02 

Sub-total(B)(2)  3,18,43,679  14,602  3,18,58,281  28.00  3,18,43,628  14,653  3,18,58,281  28.00  0.00 
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

 3,18,43,679  14,602  3,18,58,281  28.00  3,18,43,628  14,653  3,18,58,281 28.00  –   

C. Shares held by Custodians 
for GDR's & ADR's

 –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

Grand Total (A+B+C)  11,37,61,521  14,602  11,37,76,123  100.00  11,37,61,470  14,653  11,37,76,123  100.00  –   
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 ii)  SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Sl 
No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year
(As on 1st April, 2017)

Shareholding at the end of the year
(As on 31st March, 2018)

% change in 
share holding 

during the yearNo of Shares % of total Shares 
of the Company

% of shares 
pledged encum-

bered to total 
shares

No of Shares % of total shares 
of the Company

% of shares 
pledged

 encumbered to 
total shares

Directors & their RelaƟves
1 Mr. Ankit Patni  11,28,589 0.99 100.00  11,28,589 0.99 100.00  –   
2 Mr. Rohit Patni  12,00,952 1.06 100.00  12,00,952 1.06 100.00  –   
3 Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni  21,86,403 1.92 100.00  21,86,403 1.92 100.00  –   
4 Mrs. Sarita Patni  15,49,694 1.36 100.00  15,49,694 1.36 100.00  –   

Bodies Corporate
5 M/s. Invesco Finance 

Pvt. Ltd.
 1,10,39,317 9.70 100.00  1,10,39,317 9.70 100.00  –   

6 M/s. Vasupujya Enterpris-
es Pvt. Ltd.

 1,13,59,538 9.98 100.00  1,13,59,538 9.98 100.00  –   

7 M/s. Shreyansh Leafin 
Pvt. Ltd.

 1,09,93,150 9.66 100.00  1,09,93,150 9.66 100.00  –   

8 M/s. Whitestone Suppli-
ers Pvt. Ltd.

 1,09,07,765 9.59 100.00  1,09,07,765 9.59 100.00  –   

9 M/s. Poddar Mech Tech 
Services Pvt. Ltd. 

 1,29,79,933 11.41 100.00  1,29,79,933 11.41 100.00  –   

10 M/s. Suanvi Trading & 
Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.

 1,12,37,501 9.88 100.00  1,12,37,501 9.88 100.00  –   

11 M/s. VNG MercanƟles 
Pvt. Ltd.

 9,85,000 0.87 100.00  9,85,000 0.87 100.00  –   

12 M/s. Nucore Exports 
Pvt. Ltd.

 11,00,000 0.97 100.00  11,00,000 0.97 100.00  –   

13 M/s. Arthodock Vinimay 
Pvt. Ltd.

 52,50,000 4.61 100.00  52,50,000 4.61 100.00  –   

TOTAL  8,19,17,842 72.00 100.00  8,19,17,842 72.00 100.00  –   

 (iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING ΈSPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGEΉ

Sl 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Share holding at the beginning of the Year CumulaƟve Share holding during the year

No. of Shares held as on 
1st April, 2017

% of total Shares of the 
Company

No. of Shares held as on 
31st March, 2018

% of total Shares of the 
Company

At the beginning of the year  8,19,17,842  72.00  8,19,17,842  72.00 

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease 
(e.g. allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

No Change during  the year

At the end of the year  8,19,17,842  72.00  8,19,17,842  72.00 

 (iv) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS ΈOTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF 
GDR'S & ADR'SΉ

Sl 
No.

Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

TransacƟon during the year Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding at the 
End of the Year

No.of Shares 
held held as 
on 1st April, 

2017

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

Date of transacƟon No. of Shares No.of Shares 
held as on 

31st March, 
2018

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 GIRDHARILAL SEKSARIA  8,07,512  0.71  8,07,512  0.71 
At the end of the Year  8,07,512  0.71 
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Sl 
No.

Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

TransacƟon during the year Reason CumulaƟve Shareholding at the 
End of the Year

No.of Shares 
held held as 
on 1st April, 

2017

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

Date of transacƟon No. of Shares No.of Shares 
held as on 

31st March, 
2018

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

2 MSUNILKUMAR  5,80,200  0.51  5,80,200  0.51 
Transfer 9-Feb-2018  4,900 Purchase  5,85,100  0.51 
At the end of the Year  5,85,100  0.51 

3 BMA WEALTH CREATORS LIMITED  5,37,259  0.47  5,37,259  0.47 
Transfer 14-Apr-2017  (2,000) Sell  5,35,259  0.47 
Transfer 21-Apr-2017  (300) Sell  5,34,959  0.47 
Transfer 28-Apr-2017  (500) Sell  5,34,459  0.47 
Transfer 19-May-2017  (25) Sell  5,34,434  0.47 
Transfer 2-Jun-2017  (1,000) Sell  5,33,434  0.47 
Transfer 4-Aug-2017  100 Purchase  5,33,534  0.47 
Transfer 8-Sep-2017  (100) Sell  5,33,434  0.47 
Transfer 16-Mar-2018  (40) Sell  5,33,394  0.47 
At the end of the Year  5,33,394  0.47 

4 SAURIN C KAPADIA  3,69,475  0.32  3,69,475  0.32 
Transfer 21-Apr-2017  (10,000) Sell  3,59,475  0.32 
Transfer 7-Jul-2017  (5,600) Sell  3,53,875  0.31 
Transfer 21-Jul-2017  (5,000) Sell  3,48,875  0.31 
Transfer 4-Aug-2017  (5,000) Sell  3,43,875  0.30 
Transfer 23-Mar-2018  (50,400) Sell  2,93,475  0.26 
At the end of the Year  2,93,475  0.26 

5 SUNITHA M V  2,78,041  0.24  2,78,041  0.24 
At the end of the Year  2,78,041  0.24 

6 VAISHALLI  ARYA  2,53,827  0.22  2,53,827  0.22 
At the end of the Year  2,53,827  0.22 

7 CHETAN AGGARWALA  -    -    -    -   
Transfer 23-Jun-2017  43,132 Purchase  43,132  0.04 
Transfer 30-Jun-2017  76,752 Purchase  1,19,884  0.11 
Transfer 7-Jul-2017  52,754 Purchase  1,72,638  0.15 
Transfer 14-Jul-2017  36,362 Purchase  2,09,000  0.18 
At the end of the Year  2,09,000  0.18 

8 KIRTI RAJNIKANT SHAH  1,82,000  0.16  1,82,000  0.16 
At the end of the Year  1,82,000  0.16 

9 SANDEEP SHARMA  1,43,600  0.13  1,43,600  0.13 
At the end of the Year  1,43,600  0.13 

10 CHARITA SHARMA  92,703  0.08  92,703  0.08 
Transfer 23-Feb-2018  42,335 Purchase  1,35,038  0.12 
At the end of the Year  1,35,038  0.12 

Notes :  1.   Paid up Share Capital of the Company (Face Value ` 10.00) at the end of the year is  11,37,76,123 Shares.
 2.   The above details was as on 31.03.2018
 3.   The details of holding has been clubbed based on PAN.       

 (v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Sl. 
No.

Name & Type of TransacƟon Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

TransacƟons during the year Reasons CumulaƟve Shareholding at the 
end of the year

No.of Shares  
held as on 1st 

April, 2017

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

Date of 
transacƟon

No. of Shares No.of Shares 
held held as 

on 31st March, 
2018

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

1 Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni (Non-ExecuƟve 
Promoter Director)

 21,86,403  1.92 –  –    –  21,86,403  1.92 

2 Mr. Ankit Patni (Managing Director)  11,28,589  0.99 –  –    –  11,28,589  0.99 
3 Mr. Ranjeet Kumar Burnwal (ExecuƟve 

Director)
 –    –   –  –    –  –    –   

4 Mr. Parama BhaƩaraka Lahiri (Nominee 
Director)

 –    –   –  –    –  –    –   
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Sl. 
No.

Name & Type of TransacƟon Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

TransacƟons during the year Reasons CumulaƟve Shareholding at the 
end of the year

No.of Shares  
held as on 1st 

April, 2017

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

Date of 
transacƟon

No. of Shares No.of Shares 
held held as 

on 31st March, 
2018

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

5 Mr. Ankit Jain (Independent Director)  –    –   –  –    –  –    –   
6 Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra (Independent 

Director)
 –    –   –  –    –  –    –   

7 Mr. Ankit Rungta (Independent Director)  –    –   –  –    –  –    –   
8 Mrs. Sujata Agarwal (Independent Director)  –    –   –  –    –  –    –   
9 Mr. Vipul Jain (Chief Financial Officer)  –    –   –  –    –  –    –   
10 Mr. Anil Prasad Shaw (Company Secretary)  –    –   –  –    –  –    –   

V INDEBTEDNESS 
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

(` in Lacs)
Secured Loans

 excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans
Deposits Total 

Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year (i.e. as on 01.04.2017)
i) Principal Amount  2,47,211.90  7,765.01  –    2,54,976.91 
ii) Interest due but not paid  6,710.57  –    –    6,710.57 
iii) Interest accrued but not due  –    –    –    –   
Total (i+ii+iii)  2,53,922.47  7,765.01  –    2,61,687.48 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
AddiƟons  6,547.03  –    –    6,547.03 
ReducƟon  –    338.45  –    338.45 
Net Change  6,547.03  -338.45  –    6,208.58 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (i.e. as on 31.03.2018)
i) Principal Amount  2,51,639.04  7,426.56  –    2,59,065.60 
ii) Interest due but not paid  8,830.46  –    –    8,830.46 
iii) Interest accrued but not due  –    –    –    –   
Total (i+ii+iii)  2,60,469.50  7,426.56  –    2,67,896.06 

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 A. RemuneraƟon to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager:             (` in Lacs)

Sl.
No

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Managing Director Whole Time Director Manager Total
amountMr. Ankit Patni Mr. Ranjeet Kumar 

Burnwal N.A.

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 17(1) 
of the Income Tax. 1961.

 –    25,68,000.00  –    25,68,000.00 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax 
Act, 1961

 –    –    –    –   

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

 –    –    –    –   

2 Stock opƟon  –    –    –    –   
3 Sweat Equity  –    –    –    –   
4 Commission as % of profit  –    –    –    –   
5 Others  –    –  –  – 

Total (A)  –    25,68,000.00  –    25,68,000.00 
Ceiling as per the Act ` 1,20,00000/- p.a.
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 B. RemuneraƟon to other directors: (Amount in `)

Sl. No. ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of the Directors Total
1 Independent Directors Mr. Ankit Jain Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra Mrs. Sujata Agarwal Mr. Ankit Rungta

(a) Fee for aƩending board commiƩee 
      meeƟngs

 20,000.00  22,500.00  27,500.00  12,500.00  82,500.00 

(b) Commission
(c ) Others, please specify
Total (1)  20,000.00  22,500.00  27,500.00  12,500.00  82,500.00 

2 Other Non ExecuƟve Directors  Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Patni 

 Mr. Parama BhaƩaraka 
Lahiri 

(a) Fee for aƩending 
      board commiƩee meeƟngs

 25,000.00  10,000.00  35,000.00 

(b) Commission  –    –   
(c ) Others, please specify  –    –   
Total (2)  25,000.00  10,000.00  –    –    35,000.00 
Total (B)=(1+2)  –    –    1,17,500.00 
Total Managerial RemuneraƟon  –    –    –    –   
Overall Cieling as per the Act. ` 1,00,000/- (Per MeeƟng)  –   

Note: Siƫng fees was excluding of TDS. Acual Payment was made aŌer deducƟon of 10% TDS.

 C. RemuneraƟon to Key Managerial Personel other than - MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No. ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Key Managerial Personnel Total

Company  Secretary CFO
1 Gross Salary Mr. Anil Prasad Shaw Mr. Vipul Jain 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.  5,20,024  6,30,000  11,50,024 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961  –    –    –   
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961  –    –    –   

2 Stock OpƟon  –    –    –   
3 Sweat Equity  –    –    –   
4 Commission as % of profit  –    –    –   
5 Others  –    –    –   

Total  5,20,024  6,30,000  11,50,024 

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

Type SecƟon of the 
Companies Act

Brief DescripƟon Details of Penalty/
Punishment/

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority (RD/NCLT/
Court)

Appeal made if any 
(give details)

A.  COMPANY
Penalty  
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

NIL
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ANNEXURE - II

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
(Pursuant to SecƟon 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
M/s. Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited
35, ChiƩaranjan Avenue,
Kolkata – 700 012

1. We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of M/s. Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited having its registered office at 35, ChiƩaranjan 
Avenue, Kolkata – 700012 and (hereinaŌer called “The Company”), for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2018 (“the 
period under review”). The aforesaid Secretarial Audit has been conducted pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 204(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, read with the Guidance Note on Secretarial Audit (Release-1.2) of The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India, in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conduct and the process of statutory compliances 
under various statutes, rules, regulaƟons, guidelines, as indicated here in below in the instant report and as such expressing 
my opinion thereon.

2. Based on our verificaƟon of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representaƟves during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st  March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer.

3. We have examined the secretarial compliance based on the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st  March, 2018 and as shown to us during our audit, 
according to the provisions of the following laws:

 (i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

 (ii) The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

 (iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

 (iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment;

 (v) The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

  a. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011;

  b. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015.

  c. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2009;

  d. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993;

  e. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015

 (vi) Other than the fiscal, labour and environmental laws, which are generally applicable to all manufacturing, trading 
companies, there is no such law that applies specifically to the Company. The examinaƟon and reporƟng of these 
laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure 
compliance with those laws.

 (vii) The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review:-

  a. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons,2009;     

  b. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998;
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  c. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

  d. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2008.

4. We have also examined compliance of Secretarial Standards (SS 1 and SS 2) issued by the InsƟtute of Company Secretaries 
of India.

5. During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, RegulaƟons, Standards, 
etc. menƟoned above except to the extent as menƟoned below:

 • It has been observed that the Company has defaulted in the payment of statutory dues within the prescribed Ɵme.

6. We further report to the best of our understanding that, 

 a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted as per the provision of Companies Act, 2013 and SecuriƟes 
and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, for the Ɵme being. 
There has been no changes in the composiƟon of Board of Directors during the period under review.

 b) Adequate noƟce is given to all Directors for the Board and CommiƩee MeeƟngs. Agenda and notes on agenda 
were sent in advance, and further informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda items were provided for meaningful 
parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng.

 c) All decisions at Board MeeƟngs and CommiƩee MeeƟngs are carried out unanimously, as recorded in the minutes of 
the MeeƟngs of the Board of Directors or CommiƩee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that during the year under audit:

1. The accumulated losses of the Company have eroded the enƟre net worth of the Company indicaƟng the uncertainty about 
the Company’s ability to conƟnue on a Going Concern basis.

2. The Company has paid the penalty of ` 30,000/- to NSE for the late submission of Financial Result for the Quarter ended 
30th June, 2016.

3. During the year under review, SEBI vide it circular dated 7th August, 2017 declared 331 companies as Shell Company 
including this Company without giving any noƟce and informaƟon. Subsequently the both Stock exchanges i.e. NSE and BSE 
had restricted the trading of the Security of the Company on instrucƟon of SEBI on account of suspect of a Shell Company 
w.e.f. 8th August, 2017. However, both NSE and BSE has withdrawn the restricƟons on the trading of the Security of the 
Company vide leƩer dated 31.01.2018 subject to certain audit to be conducted by the NSE in consultaƟon with SEBI. 

4. In compliance with the provisions of SecƟons 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund Authority (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’) as amended from Ɵme 
to Ɵme, the Company has transferred 24,555 Equity Shares, in aggregate in respect of share on which dividends remained 
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven consecuƟve years or more, to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority maintained 
with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operaƟons of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, RegulaƟons and Guidelines.

 It is stated that the compliance of all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other laws is the 
responsibility of the management. We have relied on the representaƟon made by the Company and its Officers for systems 
and mechanism set-up by the Company for compliance under applicable laws. Our examinaƟon, on a test-check basis, was 
limited to procedures followed by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the said provisions. We state that such 
compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effecƟveness with which 
the management has conducted its affairs. We further state that this is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 
the financial acƟviƟes / statements of the Company. Moreover, we have not covered any maƩer related to any other law 
which may be applicable to the Company except the aforemenƟoned corporate laws of the Union of India. 

For K. C. Dhanuka & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS K. C. Dhanuka
Proprietor

Date  : 14th August, 2018  FCS No.: 2204
Place : Kolkata  C. P. No: 1247
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ANNEXURE - III

Statement pursuant to SecƟ on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

SN Name of Director/ KMP & 
DesignaƟon

RemuneraƟon of Director/
KMP for Financial Year 

2017-18  (` in Lacs)

% Increase in Remunera-
Ɵon in the Financial Year 

2017-18

RaƟo of remuneraƟon of 
each Director to median 

remuneraƟon of employees

1. Mr. R. K.  Burnwal
(ExecuƟve Director –Works) 

25.68 21.25 9.24

2. Mr. Anil Prasad Shaw
(Company Secretary)

5.20 8.33 1.87

3. Mr. Vipul Jain 
(CFO)

6.30 31.25 2.27

i) No other Director other than Whole Time Director received any remuneraƟ on other than siƫ  ng fees during the Financial 
Year 2017-18.

ii) In the Financial Year, there was an increase of  5.93 % in the median remuneraƟ on of employees.

iii)  There were 314 Permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on  31st March, 2018.

iv) The remuneraƟ on of the Key Managerial Personnel put together is ` 37.18 Lacs which increased by 20.79% from ` 30.78 Lacs 
. 

v) The key parameter for any variable component of remuneraƟ on availed by director considered by Board of Director on 
recommendaƟ on of NominaƟ on & RemuneraƟ on CommiƩ ee as per RemuneraƟ on policy of the Company. 

vi) It is hereby declared that the remuneraƟ on of Directors/KMPs/Senior Management Personnel for the Financial Year 2017-18 
are as per the RemuneraƟ on Policy of the Company.

*Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟ on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to 
the Company for the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board
Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

 Suresh Kumar Patni
Kolkata, 14th August, 2018 Chairman
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ANNEXURE ͵ IV

ParƟculars of Energy ConservaƟon, Technology AbsorpƟon and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo required pursuant to SecƟon 134(3)(m) of  the Companies Act, 2013.
A) ConservaƟon of Energy 

i. Steps taken for ConservaƟon of Energy
  ConƟnuously monitoring of energy consumpƟon and taking necessary acƟon for opƟmisaƟon of power consumpƟon.
  Using power factor controller/capacitors to maintain power factor.
  Keeping maximum demand under control by scheduling other load during equipment tesƟng, among others
  EffecƟve maintenance and daily monitoring of Capacitor bank for improvement of power factor
  Right sizing of motors
  ModificaƟons in lighƟng circuits to switch off  light when not required 

ii. Steps taken for UƟlizing Alternate Source of Energy
  InstallaƟon of energy efficient light fiƫngs in shop floor, offices and other areas
  InstallaƟon of HT & LT Capacitor bank
 InstallaƟon of VVVF driver with ID fans
 Replacement of old motors with energy efficient motor

iii. Capital investment on energy conservaƟon equipment
 Due to huge loss for the year under review the Company is not able to make any fresh capital investment on energy 

conservaƟon.

B) Technology AbsorpƟon
 i. Efforts made towards technology absorpƟon
  The Company has adopted and is conƟnually updaƟng the latest available technology to extent possible including 

process & product development and energy savings.

 ii. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reducƟon, product development or import subsƟtuƟon
  • Improvement in  the quality of its products
  • High Chromium recovery in finished goods
  • BeƩer Metal recovery from Slag
  • Improvement in the safe and environment friendly process.

 iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the Financial 
Year) - Nil

 iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development
  a) Capital Nil
  b) Recurring Nil
  c) Total  Nil
  d) Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total Turnover 0.00%

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo for FY-2017-18

Sl. No. ParƟculars (` in Crores)
1 Foreign exchange earned 40.10
2 Foreign exchange used 47.26

For and on behalf of the Board
Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

 Suresh Kumar Patni
Kolkata, 14th August, 2018 Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Economic Overview

Global growth was 3.9 % in 2018 and growth is expected to remain steady for the coming years.

The Indian economy grew at 6.7 % during the financial year 2017-18 against 7.1 % for the previous financial year. The lower 
growth is due to the impact of the demoneƟsaƟon and other drive. The growth has reduced in all the sectors, except for 
agriculture due to good monsoon.

Steel Industry

India was the world's third-largest steel producer in 2017-18. The growth in the Indian steel sector has been driven by domesƟc 
availability of raw materials such as iron ore and cost-effecƟve labour. India’s finished steel consumpƟon grew at CAGR of 5.69% 
during financial year 2008 - 2018 to reach 90.68 MT. In 2017-18, the Country’s finished steel exports increased 17% year on year 
to 9.62 MT.

Government of India’s focus on infrastructure and undertaking road projects is aiding the boost in demand for steel. 

Ferro Alloys Industry

Ferro-alloys are criƟcal addiƟves in the producƟon of Iron & Steel and the fortune of Ferro Alloys Industry is directly linked with 
the growth of Iron & Steel Industry. The Company produces Ferro chrome and Manganese based alloys.

The demand for Ferro Chrome is expected to remain stable in the near future. Due to stability in the Chinese economy and new 
foreign regime, massive infrastructure projects are expected to raise demand for Stainless Steel and, thereby, Ferro Chrome. 

Manganese Alloys viz Ferro-Manganese (FeMn) and Silico-Manganese (SiMn) are used in the producƟon of Steel. Steels usually 
contain from 0.2% to 2% manganese depending on grades .

The industry is expected to see substanƟal consolidaƟons which will drive market discipline and cut down inefficiencies in the 
producƟon capacity. India holds a lot of promise with government iniƟaƟves easing mining operaƟons for consolidated Ferro 
Alloys producers.

Stainless Steel Industry

India is the world's third-largest producer of crude steel and consumpƟon of stainless steel in India is projected to maintain its 
growth potenƟal. The growth in the Indian steel sector has been driven by domesƟc availability of raw materials such as iron ore 
and cost-effecƟve labour. Moreover, growing urbanisaƟon and disposable income will enhance demand for white goods which 
is mostly made of stainless steel. Consequently, the steel sector has been a major contributor to India's manufacturing output

Risk, OpportuniƟes and Threats

The Company manufactures ferro alloys as well as stainless steel. In Financial Year 2017-18 the overall  growth of stainless 
steel business was saƟsfactory with increase in demand. Though increase of demand in year under review was saƟsfactory, the 
business was severely impacted by the increase in cost of raw material. The domesƟc consumpƟon of steel is likely to increase 
2018-19 due to Government iniƟaƟves like make in India, building Smart CiƟes, focus on sanitaƟon faciliƟes, and development 
in areas of roads and railways etc. 

Further, the electrical energy is one of the major inputs in producƟon of ferro alloys and high power tariff is a great threat for 
the ferro alloys industry. High power cost has already impacted us severely and that led to suspension of our plant at Haldia 
since 1st July, 2015. 

The Company has a Risk Management framework in place which is designed to idenƟfy,  assess and monitor various risks related 
to key business and strategic objecƟves. All idenƟfied risks are categorised based on a matrix of likelihood of occurrence and 
impact thereof and a miƟgaƟon plan is worked out to extent possible

The government has already iniƟated so many steps for the beƩerment of Indian economy and has also undertaken two large 
iniƟaƟves viz. puƫng more money into the rural economy especially aŌer demoneƟsaƟon and puƫng a renewed focus on 
infrastructure development and this would certainly enable the ferro alloys and steel producers to survive and grow in the 
markets. 

Segment-wise performance

Ferro Alloys 

During the year under review the Company has produced 57150 MT of Ferro Alloys against 60211 MT of Ferro Alloys in previous 
year registering a decline of 5.08% over previous year. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Iron & Steel

During the year under review, the Company has produced 48205 MT of Stainless Steel against 38109 MT in previous year 
registering an increase of 26.49% over previous year. 

The secondary segment details idenƟfied as the geographical segment based on the locaƟon of customers within India and 
outside India is given in notes no. 39 to the Annual Accounts.

Health, Safety and  Environment

The Company is commiƩed to conducƟng its acƟviƟes in a manner that promotes the health and safety of its employees, assets 
and the public, as well as protecƟon of the environment. The Company’s Integrated Management System comprises of quality, 
environment and occupaƟonal health and safety cerƟficaƟon. New employees are being given intensive safety inducƟon training 
and are being issued with “Safety Passports” related to their work area. All the statutory requirements related to safety, health 
and environment are being complied with.

Requirements of environmental acts and regulaƟons are complied with. Monitoring and analysis of water, stack emissions and 
ambient air quality etc., are undertaken periodically to verify whether the level of environmental parameters are maintained 
and are well within the specified limits.

Internal Controls Systems and their adequacy

Your Company maintains adequate Internal Control Systems in all areas of operaƟon. Services of Internal and External Auditors 
are uƟlized from Ɵme to Ɵme, as also in-house experƟse and resources. The Company conƟnuously upgrade these systems in 
line with the best available pracƟces. An independent Audit CommiƩee of the Board reviews the adequacy of Internal Control. 
Some significant features of Internal Control Systems are :

• Adequate documentaƟon of policies, guidelines, authoriƟes and approval procedures covering all important funcƟons.

• Deployment of an ERP system which covers most operaƟons and is supported by a defined on-line authorisaƟon protocol.

• Ensuring complete compliance with laws, regulaƟons, standards, and internal procedures and systems.

• Ensuring the integrity of the accounƟng system; the properly authorised recording and reporƟng of all transacƟons.

• Ensuring a reliability of all financial and operaƟonal informaƟon.

The Company has an Audit CommiƩee with majority of independent directors as members. The commiƩee periodically reviews 
significant audit findings, adequacy of internal control and compliance with AccounƟng Standards, amongst others. The Internal 
Audit Reports are placed before the Audit CommiƩee for consideraƟon. The management duly considers and takes appropriate 
acƟon on the recommendaƟons made by the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the independent Audit CommiƩee of 
the Board of Directors. The Company also takes quarterly compliance cerƟficate in respect of various applicable laws from the 
concerned departmental heads and place the same before the board.   

Industrial relaƟons and Human Resources 

Human Resource management is not only important but also a criƟcal asset for a Company’s growth. The Company’s human 
capital comprises a prudent mix of youth and experience. The Company employs contract labour in its manufacturing faciliƟes. 
The Company partners with its employees to ensure a highly engaged and moƟvated workforce dedicated to achieving the 
Company’s goals. We ensure a safe work environment for all our women employees. We also promote gender equality. Abiding 
by the Sexual Harassment Policy, we have a Complaint CommiƩee which addresses any complaint from women employees in 
this relaƟon and take necessary acƟon. The Policy is being reframed as per the provision of Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Work Place (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon & Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year the Company has not received any complaints of 
sexual harassment. As on date of this report, the Company has 314 employees on its payroll.

CauƟonary Statement

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objecƟve and predicƟons may 
be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulaƟons. Actual results may vary significantly 
from the forward looking statements contained in this document due to various risks and uncertainƟes. These risks and 
uncertainƟes include the effect of economic and poliƟcal condiƟons in India, volaƟlity in interest rates new regulaƟons and 
government policies that may impact the Company’s business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The Company 
doesn’t undertake to update the statements.
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1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to achieve the highest levels of transparency, accountability in all 
its interacƟons with its stakeholders including shareholders, employees, lenders and the Government. The Company 
has always been taking the spirit of various legislaƟons as guiding principles and proposes to go well beyond statutory 
compliance by establishing such systems and procedures as are required to make the management completely transparent 
and insƟtuƟonally sound. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 A. Board composiƟon and category of Directors

  The composiƟon of the Board and category of Directors as on 31st March, 2018 are as follows:

Category Name of Directors

Non-ExecuƟve Non- Independent Directors 1. Mr. S.K. Patni (Chairman)
ExecuƟve Director 1. Mr. Ankit Patni 

2. Mr. R.K. Burnwal
Independent Directors 1. Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra 

2. Mr. Ankit Rungta
3. Mrs. Sujata Agarwal
4. Mr. Ankit Jain

Nominee Director
(Nominated by the State Bank of India)

1. Mr. P.B. Lahiri

  None of the Directors on the Board are member of more than 10 (ten) CommiƩees and they do not act as Chairman 
of more than 5 (five) CommiƩees across all the Companies of which they are the Directors. The Directors regularly 
inform the Company about the changes in their posiƟons as and when changes take place, apart from the annual 
disclosures. 

  Except Mr. S. K. Patni who is relaƟve of Mr. Ankit Patni, no other Director is, inter-se, related to any other Director on 
the Board nor is related to the other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Mr. Ankit Patni, Managing Director of 
the Company, currently not in receipt of any remuneraƟon from the Company.

 B. MeeƟng aƩended, Agenda & other Directorship :

  The composiƟon and category of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2018 along with the 
number of Board meeƟngs aƩended by the Directors during the year 2017-18 are given below: 

Name of the Director No. of 
Board 

MeeƟngs 
AƩended

No. of Directorship 
in other Public 

Limited Companies 
incorporated in 

India

No. of CommiƩee posiƟons 
held in other Public Limited 

Companies $1

No. of Shares 
held

Whether 
aƩended the 

Last AGM

As Member As Chairman

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni 3 5 1 - 2186403  No.
Mr. Ankit Patni 2 5 2 - 1128589 Yes.
Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra 3 1 1 1 - Yes
Mr. Ankit Rungta 1 1 - 1 - No.
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal 1 3 - 1 - Yes
Mr. R.K. Burnwal 1 - - - - No.
Mr. P.B. Lahiri 4 - - - - Yes
Mr. Ankit Jain * 4 1 1 1 - Yes

 Notes:
 $ Only the two commiƩees viz. Audit CommiƩee and Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee are considered for this purpose.
 *Regularised as an Independent Director in last AGM held on 21st September, 2017.
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 4 (Four) Board MeeƟngs were held during the year 2017-18 and the gap between two meeƟngs did not exceed one 
hundred and twenty days. The dates on which the Board MeeƟngs were held are as follows:

 30th May, 2017, 11th August, 2017, 14th November, 2017 and 13th February, 2018.   
 The Agenda papers along with the explanatory notes for Board MeeƟngs are circulated well in advance to the Directors. 

In some instances, documents are tabled at the meeƟngs and presentaƟons are also made by the respecƟve execuƟves 
on the maƩers related to them at the Board MeeƟngs. Every Board Member is free to suggest items for inclusion in the 
Agenda.

 INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 The Company has complied with Part A of Schedule II of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟon 

2015 read with regulaƟon 17(7) of the said regulaƟons with regard to informaƟon being placed before the Board of 
Directors.

 The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Steps are taken by the Company 
to recƟfy instances of non-compliance, if any.

 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING
 In Compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 25 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements), 

RegulaƟons, 2015, the Independent Directors MeeƟng of the Company was held on 28th March, 2018 without the 
presence of the Chairman & ExecuƟve Director, the Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent Directors and the Management Team. 
Independent Directors MeeƟng considered the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as whole, reviewed 
the performance of Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of ExecuƟve Directors and Non-ExecuƟve 
Directors and assessed the quality, quanƟty and Ɵmeliness of flow of informaƟon between the Company Management and 
the Board. Mr. Ankit Jain was the Chairman of the Independent Directors MeeƟng.

 ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS IN INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING.

Name of Directors MeeƟng held during the year MeeƟng AƩended

Mr. Ankit Jain 1 1
Mr. Ankit Rungta 1 1
Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra 1 1
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal 1 1

 CODE OF CONDUCT
 The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and all employees in management grade of 

the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company at www.rohiƞerrotech.com.
 All Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have confirmed compliance with the code.
 A declaraƟon signed by the ExecuƟve Director is aƩached and forms part of the Annual Report of the Company.
 CODE OF CONDUCT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
 As per the provisions of SecƟon 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors shall abide by the provisions 

specified in Schedule, which lays down a code for Independent Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the said provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has draŌed a Code for Independent Directors of the Company. 

 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 17(10), 19(4) and Part D of Schedule II of the 

SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 a Board EvaluaƟon Policy has been formed and 
approved by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and by the Board. The Chairman and Managing Director is 
evaluated on key aspects of the role which includes inter-alia effecƟve leadership to the Board and adequate guidance 
to the each level of Management. Based on prescribed criteria as laid down, the performance of the Board, various 
CommiƩees viz. Audit CommiƩee, Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee, NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
and Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee, and Individual were evaluated at saƟsfacƟon level. During the year under 
review, the Independent Directors of the Company reviewed the performance of Non- Independent Directors and Chairman 
of the Company, taking into account the views of ExecuƟve Directors and Non-ExecuƟve Directors. The Board as a whole 
is a balanced unit where diverse views are expressed and dialogued when required. All the directors are parƟcipaƟve, 
interacƟve and communicaƟve. The Chairman has abundant knowledge experience, skills and understanding of the Board’s 
funcƟoning, processes. The informaƟon flow between your Company’s Management and the Board is Ɵmely & sufficient. 
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 COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Company has an Audit CommiƩee within the scope & role as set out in RegulaƟon 18 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements), RegulaƟons, 2015, read with SecƟon 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The composiƟon of the Audit CommiƩee and the details of meeƟngs aƩended by the CommiƩee Members are given 
below: 

Name of the Member DesignaƟon Category No.  of MeeƟngs AƩended

Mr. Ankit Jain Chairman Independent/Non-ExecuƟve 4
Mr. Ankit Rungta Member Independent/Non-ExecuƟve 4
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal Member Independent/Non-ExecuƟve 4

 The ExecuƟve Director and Chief Financial Officer are permanent invitees to the CommiƩee. The Company Secretary acts as 
Secretary of the Audit CommiƩee. The representaƟve of Internal Auditors also aƩends the meeƟng. The Audit CommiƩee 
invites, as and when considered appropriate, the representaƟves from the Statutory Auditors and Cost Auditors to be 
present at the meeƟng of the CommiƩee.

 The Audit CommiƩee comprises of 3 (three) Directors all of whom are financially literate. All the members of the CommiƩee 
are Independent/Non-ExecuƟve. Mr. Ankit Jain, Independent Director having experƟse in Finance, is the Chairman of the 
Audit CommiƩee. Mr. Ankit Jain, Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee was present at the last Annual General MeeƟng of the 
Company held on 21st  September, 2017.

 During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018, 4 (four) Audit CommiƩee MeeƟngs were held on 30th May, 2017, 11th 
August, 2017,  14th November, 2017 and 13th February, 2018 .  

 The role of the Audit CommiƩee shall include the following:

 1. To oversee the Company’s Financial ReporƟng Process and the disclosure of its financial informaƟon to ensure that 
the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

 2. To recommend to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment, replacement or removal and 
remuneraƟon of the auditors.

 3. To examine the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon.

 4. To review, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 5. To approve the payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors.

 6. To review, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval, with 
parƟcular reference to : 

  a. MaƩers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report 
in terms of sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

  b. Changes, if any, in accounƟng policies and pracƟces and reasons for the same.
  c. Major accounƟng entries involving esƟmates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
  d. Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings. 
  e. Compliance with lisƟng and other legal requirements relaƟng to Financial Statements 
  f. Disclosure of any related party transacƟons. 
  g. QualificaƟons in the draŌ audit report.

 7. To approve or subsequently modify the transacƟons of the Company with related parƟes.

 8. To review, with the management, the statement of uses/applicaƟon of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferenƟal issue, etc.), the statement of funds uƟlized for purposes other than those stated in the 
offer document/prospectus/noƟce and the report submiƩed by the monitoring agency monitoring the uƟlisaƟon of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendaƟons to the Board to take up steps in this 
maƩer.

 9. To review, with the management and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance of Statutory and Internal 
Auditors, adequacy of the Internal Control Systems and effecƟveness of audit process including Internal Financial 
Control and Physical Stock VerificaƟon Process. 
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 10. To scruƟnize inter-corporate loans and investments, if any.

 11. To evaluate of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

 12. To evaluate the Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems.

 13. To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related maƩers, if any.

 14. To review the adequacy of Internal Audit funcƟon, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporƟng structure coverage and frequency of Internal 
Audit.

 15. To discuss with Internal Auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

 16. To review the findings of any internal invesƟgaƟons by the Internal Auditors into maƩers where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of Internal Control Systems of a material nature and reporƟng the maƩer to the Board.

 17. To call for comments of the auditors about Internal Control Systems, scope of audit, including the observaƟons of the 
Auditors and review of Financial Statement before their submission to the Board and discuss any related issues with 
the Internal and Statutory Auditors and the management of the Company.

 18. To give an opƟon to the Auditors and the Key Managerial Person of the Company to be heard at the Audit CommiƩee 
MeeƟng while considering the Auditors’ Report.

 19. To discuss with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

 20. To look into the reasons for substanƟal defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in 
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

 21. To approve the appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-Time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
funcƟon or discharging that funcƟon) aŌer assessing the qualificaƟons, experience & background, etc. of the 
candidate.

 22. To establish a Vigil Mechanism for the directors and employees of the Company to report genuine concerns in certain 
maƩers. The Mechanism shall provide adequate safeguard against vicƟmizaƟon of persons who use the mechanism. 
The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee shall be easily available for the same.

 23. To carry out any other funcƟon as is menƟoned in the terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩee from Ɵme to Ɵme.

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 The Company has consƟtuted NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon having terms of reference & consƟtuƟon in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and RegulaƟon 19 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements), 
RegulaƟons, 2015. The CommiƩee consists of 3 (three) Non-ExecuƟve/Independent Directors. There was no  CommiƩee 
meeƟng during the year under review. 

 The present composiƟon of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and details of the meeƟng aƩended by the 
member are given below:

Name of the Member DesignaƟon Category No.  of MeeƟngs AƩended

Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra Chairman Independent/Non-ExecuƟve N.A.
Mr. Ankit Rungta Member Independent/Non-ExecuƟve N.A.
Mr. Ankit Jain Member Independent/Non-ExecuƟve N.A.

 The terms of reference of the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee are as follows:
 1. To idenƟfy person who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management as per 

their criteria
 2. To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of the Directors and Senior Management
 3. To carry out evaluaƟon of every director’s performance
 4. To formulate criteria for determining qualificaƟon, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a Director
 5. Devise a policy on Board diversity;
 6. To recommend to the Board a policy relaƟng to remuneraƟon for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees
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 7. To carry out any other funcƟon as is mandated by the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme and/or enforced by any statutory 
noƟficaƟon, amendment or modificaƟon, as may be applicable

 8. To perform such other funcƟons as may be necessary or appropriate for performance of its duƟes.

  The Chairman of NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee was present at the 17th Annual General MeeƟng of the 
Company held on 21st September, 2017.

 REMUNERATION POLICY :
 A. RemuneraƟon to Managing Director/ExecuƟve Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel :
  i) Fixed pay: 
   The Managing Director/ExecuƟve Directors/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for 

a monthly remuneraƟon and perquisites as may be approved by the Board on the recommendaƟon of the 
CommiƩee. The statutory and retrial benefits shall be paid as per the applicable laws.  

   The remuneraƟon to be paid to the Managing Director/ExecuƟve Directors shall be paid on recommendaƟon of 
the CommiƩee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required. 

  ii) Minimum RemuneraƟon: 
   If, in any Financial Year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 

remuneraƟon to its Managing Director/ExecuƟve Director in accordance with the provisions of Part-II of 
Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the 
Central Government.

  iii) Provisions for excess remuneraƟon: 
   If any Managing Director/Whole-Ɵme Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneraƟon 

any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sancƟon of the Central 
Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and unƟl such sum is refunded, 
hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless 
permiƩed by the Central Government.  

 B. REMUNERATION TO NON- EXECUTIVE / INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR :  
  Siƫng fees 
  The Non- ExecuƟve / Independent Director may receive remuneraƟon by way of fees for aƩending meeƟngs of Board 

or CommiƩee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lac only) 
per meeƟng of the Board or CommiƩee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from Ɵme 
to Ɵme.

  Commission: 
  No Commission shall be paid.  

  Stock OpƟons: 
  An Independent Director shall not be enƟtled to any stock opƟon of the Company. 
  The RemuneraƟon Policy is also posted on the Company’s Website, www.rohiƞerrotech.com 

  REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
  The Company has paid remuneraƟon only by way of salary to its ExecuƟve Directors and the same is within the limits 

specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and duly approved by the Board as well as by the shareholders 
of the Company. Details of remuneraƟon paid during 2017-18 are as follows: 

Name of the Director and DesignaƟon Salary paid (`) Period of Contract Notice Period

From To

Mr. Ankit Patni (Managing Director)* N.A. 29.08.2016 28.08.2019 2 months
Mr. R.K. Burnwal (ExecuƟve Director) 25,68,000 24.03.2016 23.03.2019 1 months

 * Currently not in receipt of any remuneraƟon from the Company
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 REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 The remuneraƟon of Non-ExecuƟve Directors consists of only siƫng fees @ Rs. 2,500/- for aƩending each meeƟng of the 
Board of Directors or a CommiƩee thereof. The details of fees paid during the year and the equity shares held by them as 
on 31st March, 2018 are as follows :

Name of the Member Siƫng Fee paid (`) No. of  Shares held as on 31st March, 2018

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni 25,000 21,86,403
Mr. Ankit Rungta 12,500 Nil
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal 27,500 Nil
Mr. Jatindra Nath Rudra 22,500 Nil
Mr. P.B. Lahiri 10,000 Nil
Mr. Ankit Jain 20,000 Nil

3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 In compliance of provision of SecƟon 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with RegulaƟon 20 of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons 

and Disclosure Requirements), RegulaƟons, 2015 the Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee has been consƟtuted to 
specifically look into the transfer of Equity Shares/transmission of Equity Shares/issuance of duplicate Equity Share 
cerƟficates, complaints received from the shareholders of the Company and other allied connected maƩers. 

 The Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee consists of 3 (three) Non-ExecuƟve Directors, out of which 2 (two) are 
Independent Directors. The Chairman of the CommiƩee is an Independent Director. 

 The broad terms of reference includes the following:
 a. To review and ensure compliance of statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the guidelines of SEBI and the 

Stock Exchanges and other statutory requirements relaƟng to transfer and transmission of shares/debentures of the 
Company.

 b. To review and ensure that the Registrar/Company’s Transfer House implements all statutory provisions as above.
 c. Approve transfers/transmission of shares/debenture and demat/remat of the shares/debenture.
 d. Approve issue of duplicate shares cerƟficates/debenture cerƟficates, issue of cerƟficates on consolidaƟon/sub-

division/rematerialisaƟon.
 e. To consider and resolve all shareholders queries, grievance and complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of 

balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends etc. are aƩended and redressed in an expediƟous manner.
 f. Monitor implementaƟon of Company’s Code of Conduct for ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading
 g. Any other maƩer referred by the Board relaƟng to equity shareholders of the Company.
  During the year under review, the CommiƩee has met 6 (six) Ɵmes on 8th June ,2017,17th July, 2017, 5th August, 2017, 

14th September, 2017, 21st November, 2017  and 4th January, 2018 .

 The composiƟon of the commiƩee and the aƩendance of the members in the meeƟng are given hereunder:

Name of the Member DesignaƟon Category No.  of MeeƟngs AƩended

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal Chairman Independent/Non-ExecuƟve 6
Mr. JaƟndra Nath Rudra Member Independent/Non-ExecuƟve 6
Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Member Promoter/Non-ExecuƟve 6

 The Company Secretary has been designated as Secretary to the CommiƩee. The CommiƩee has delegated the authority 
to approve the requests for transfers/transmission, to deal with complaints, split and remat/demat of shares to the 
Company Secretary. The CommiƩee reviews the transfer/demat/remat approved by the Company Secretary and take note 
thereof in their subsequent meeƟng. During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018, the Company has not received any 
complaints from the shareholders.

4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) CommiƩee of the Board of Directors was consƟtuted on 7th May, 2014 in terms 
of the provision of SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Rules 2014. The 
objecƟve, composiƟon & terms of reference of the CommiƩee are as under:
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 a. Policy ObjecƟve:
  Corporate Social Responsibility is a form of corporate self-regulaƟon integrated into a business model. The main 

objecƟve of this Policy is to set a guiding principle for carrying out CSR acƟviƟes by the Company and also to set up 
process of execuƟon, implementaƟon and monitoring of the CSR acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the Company.

 b. Role: 
  The CommiƩee, referred above, shall
  a. Formulate  and  recommend  to  the  Board  the  CSR  Policy  and  any amendments thereof which shall indicate 

the acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;
  b. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the acƟviƟes, as per CSR Policy;
  c. Be responsible for implementaƟon and monitoring of CSR projects or programmes or acƟviƟes of the Company.
  d. Any other maƩer/thing as may be considered expedient by the members in furtherance of and to comply with 

the CSR Policy of the Company.
 c. AcƟviƟes/Projects
  The Company shall undertake any of the acƟviƟes which forms part of CSR as per Schedule VII of the Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”) as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme or such other acƟviƟes/projects as may be noƟfied by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs from Ɵme to Ɵme as a part of the Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”):

 The composiƟon of the CommiƩee is as under:

Name of the Member DesignaƟon Category No.  of MeeƟngs AƩended

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal Chairman Independent/Non-ExecuƟve Nil
Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Member Promoter/Non-ExecuƟve 1
Mr. R.K. Burnwal Member ExecuƟve 1

 During the year under review there was 1 (one) commiƩee meeƟng held on 27th March, 2018.

 Due to the losses incurred by the Company during year under review, the obligaƟons of making expenditure on account 
of CSR does not arise. However, as a maƩer of rouƟne, the Company has undertaken certain CSR iniƟaƟve like installaƟon 
of tube well, inauguraƟon for solar water pumping system for villagers, donaƟons & help for students, social acƟviƟes for 
villagers, expenses for child educaƟon, motor pump set repairs to poor class of people in village etc.

5. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

 An ExecuƟve CommiƩee was consƟtuted on 14th February, 2015 and the present composiƟon of the ExecuƟve CommiƩee 
are given below as under :

Name of the Member DesignaƟon Category

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Chairman Non-ExecuƟve
Mr. Ankit Patni * Member ExecuƟve
Mr. R. K. Burnwal Member ExecuƟve

* Currently not in receipt of any remuneraƟon from the Company.

 The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the CommiƩee.

 The brief descripƟon of terms of reference:

 The CommiƩee is consƟtuted with powers and responsibiliƟes including but not limited to

 • To review and follow up on the acƟon taken on the Board decisions;
 • To review the operaƟons of the Company in general;
 • To review the systems followed by the Company;
 • To review, propose and monitor annual budget including addiƟonal budget, if any, subject to the raƟficaƟon of the 

Board;
 • To review capital expenditure against the budget;
 • To authorise opening and closing of bank accounts;
 •  To authorise addiƟons/deleƟons to the signatories pertaining to banking transacƟons;
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 • To approve transacƟons relaƟng to foreign exchange exposure including but not limited to forward cover and 
derivaƟve products;

 • To delegate and authorise the Company officials to represent and appear before the various courts, government 
authoriƟes on behalf of the Company;

 • To aƩend to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board to invesƟgate any acƟvity within terms of 
reference;

 • To execute Power of AƩorney in favour of Company officials to represent and appear before the various courts, 
government authoriƟes on behalf of the Company;

 Further, the ExecuƟve CommiƩee is empowered to do the following:
 • To seek informaƟon from any employee as considered necessary
 • To obtain outside legal professional advice as considered necessary;
 • To secure aƩendance of outsiders with relevant experƟse; and
 • To invesƟgate any acƟvity within terms of reference.
ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading: 
The Company has  adopted a Code of Conduct for ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of 
India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015, with a view to regulate trading in the equity shares of the Company by 
the directors and designated employees.  
Compliance Officer: 
Mr. Anil Prasad Shaw, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with requirements of SecuriƟes Laws, LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015.
Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adopƟon of non-mandatory requirements
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of the LisƟng RegulaƟons. The Company has adopted the following 
non-mandatory requirements of RegulaƟon 27 read with Part E of Schedule II of the LisƟng RegulaƟons:
(a) The Board
 The Non-ExecuƟve Chairman has an office at the Company’s premises. 
(b) Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief ExecuƟve Officer
 The Chairman is not the Chief ExecuƟve Officer of the Company.
Subsidiary Companies
The Company does not have any material unlisted Indian Subsidiary Company and hence, it is not required to have an 
Independent Director of the Company on the Board of such Subsidiary Company. Significant issues pertaining to Subsidiary 
Companies are discussed at Audit CommiƩee meeƟngs of the Company. 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The last three Annual General MeeƟngs were held as under:

Financial Year Date Place Time

2016-17 21st  September, 2017 Paschimbanga Bangla Academy, Rabindra-Okakura Bhawan, 
DD-27/A/1, DD Block, Salt Lake, Sector-I, Kolkata – 700 064

11.00 a.m.

2015-16 29th  September, 2016 Aikatan, Eastern Zonal Cultural Conference (EZCC),IA-290, 
Sector-III, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700 097

10.00 a.m.

2014-15 30th  September, 2015 ‘PURBASHREE’
BharaƟyam Cultrual MulƟplex, IB-201, Sector-III, Salt Lake 
City, Kolkata- 700 106

10.00 a.m.

Special ResoluƟons Passed at the last three AGM:

Financial Year Items

2016-17 NIL
2015-16 Appointment of Mr. Ankit Patni as Managing Director of the Company.
2014-15 Re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Biyanee as ExecuƟve Directors (Works) for a further period of 3 years.      
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No Special ResoluƟon was passed through Postal Ballot in the last year AGM. No Special ResoluƟon requiring Postal Ballot is 
being proposed at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng.

There was no Special ResoluƟon Passed By Postal Ballot During the Financial Year 2017-18.

Disclosures

• There are no materially significant Related Party TransacƟons, i.e. transacƟons of the Company of material nature with 
its Promoters, Directors or the management or relaƟves etc. that may have potenƟal conflict with the interests of the 
Company at large. A statement in summary form of transacƟons with related parƟes in the ordinary course of business 
is placed periodically before the Audit CommiƩee. The pricing of all the transacƟons with the related parƟes were on an 
arm’s length basis. A disclosure of related party relaƟonship and transacƟons as per Ind AS-24 is given in the in the notes 
to the Financial Statement in the Annual Accounts of the Company.

• The Management confirms that the Financial Statements of the Company for Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018 have 
been prepared in accordance with the applicable AccounƟng principles in India and Indian AccounƟng Standard (Ind AS), 
as prescribed under provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder. 

• The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Uniform LisƟng Agreement/LisƟng RegulaƟons with the Stock 
Exchanges as well as regulaƟons and guidelines of SEBI. However during the year under review company had to pay penalty 
for late submission of financial result for the quarter June, 2016 to stock exchange. Further, during the year under review, 
SEBI vide it circular dated 7th August, 2017 declares 331 companies as Shell company including our company without 
giving any noƟce and informaƟon. Subsequently the both Stock exchanges i.e. NSE and BSE had restricted the trading 
of the Security of the Company on instrucƟon of SEBI on account of suspect of a Shell Company w.e.f. 8th August, 2017. 
However, both NSE and BSE has withdrawn the restricƟons on the trading of the Security of the Company vide leƩer dated 
31.01.2018 subject to certain audit to be conducted by the NSE in consultaƟon with SEBI. No other strictures or penalty 
were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority, on any maƩer related to capital 
markets during the last three years.

• A Risk Management Policy has been formed by the Company on 30th May, 2014. The risk assessment and minimisaƟon 
procedures are in place and the Board is regularly informed by the Senior ExecuƟves about the business risks, if any occurs, 
and the steps taken to miƟgate the same.

• Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy:

 In order to strengthen the process of conducƟng the business in a fair, transparent and ethical manner, the Company has 
set up a Vigil Mechanism. The policy is intended to establish a mechanism for employees to report to the management 
genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violaƟon of the Company’s Code of Conduct 
or ethics, for which a dedicated e-mail id vigil.mechanism@rohiƞerrotech.com has been established. Mr. Ankit Jain, 
Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee of the Company has been nominated by the Board as Ombudsperson for this purpose. 
The mechanism provides adequate safeguard against vicƟmizaƟon of the persons using this mechanism. No employee was 
denied access to the Audit CommiƩee. There has been no incidence reported to the Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee 
during the period under review.

• The Company does not have any material subsidiary.

• In terms of Uniform LisƟng Agreement, all Board members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance 
with the code.

A declaraƟon signed by the ExecuƟve Director is aƩached and forms part of the Annual Report of the Company.

• The Senior Management has disclosed to the Board that they have no personal interest in the material, financial and 
commercial transacƟons of the Company that may have potenƟal conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

• The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as mandated under Uniform LisƟng Agreement/LisƟng 
RegulaƟons with Stock Exchanges. A cerƟficate from the pracƟcing Company Secretary to this effect has been included in 
this report. 

• Management Discussion & Analysis Report

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given separately, and forms part of Annual Report.

CEO/CFO CerƟficaƟon

The requisite cerƟficate from the Managing/ExecuƟve Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2018 required to be given pursuant to SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 has been placed before the Board meeƟng held on 30th May, 2018 and 14th August, 2018.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

1. Financial Results

 In compliance with the requirements of the Uniform LisƟng Agreements/LisƟng RegulaƟons with Stock Exchanges, the 
Company has inƟmated Audited Financial Results as well as the Unaudited Quarterly Results to the Stock Exchanges 
immediately aŌer they are taken on record by the Board. Further coverage has been given for the informaƟon of the 
shareholders and investors by publicaƟon of the Financial Results in English NaƟonal Daily–“Financial Express” and in a 
local vernacular newspaper–“Dainik Statesman” widely circulated in the state of West Bengal. The results were also placed 
on the Company’s website at www.rohiƞerrotech.com. 

2. Other InformaƟon

 The Company has its own website www.rohiƞerrotech.com wherein other related informaƟon is available. The Company 
has a dedicated help desk e-mail id: grievance@rohiƞerrotech.com in the secretarial department for providing necessary 
informaƟon to the investors as well as for registering any complaints/grievances. The Company posts on its website 
all its official news releases, important announcements and presentaƟons made before the press meets, analysts and 
insƟtuƟonal investors, if any, from Ɵme to Ɵme for the benefit of its investors and public at large.

Profile of Directors Seeking Appointment/Re-appointment

Resume and other informaƟon of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng 
as required under SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements), RegulaƟons, 2015 are given in the noƟce of ensuing 
Annual General MeeƟng as an AddiƟonal InformaƟon.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) 
 Day, Date & Time : Thursday 27th   September, 2018 at 11.00 A.M.
 Venue   : “Rotary Sadan”, 94/2,Chowringhee Road, Kolkata – 700 020
2. Date of Book Closure : 20th September, 2018 to 27th September, 2018 
      (both days inclusive)
3. Dividend payment date : N.A.
4. Financial Calendar
 IndicaƟve calendar of events for the Financial Year 2018-2019 is as under:
 Financial Year  : 1st April to 31st March

FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR THE QUARTERS

First Quarter Held on 14th August, 2018
Second Quarter and Half Yearly Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
Third Quarter and Nine Months Within 45 days from the end of the quarter
Fourth Quarter and Annual (Audited) Within 60 days from the end of the quarter/Financial Year
Annual General MeeƟng On or before 30th September, 2019

5. LisƟng of the Equity Shares on Stock Exchange

Name of the Stock Exchange Address Stock Code

BSE Limited(BSE) “Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tower”
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001

532731

The NaƟonal Stock Exchange of 
India Ltd. (NSE)

“Exchange Plaza”
Bandra-Kurla Complex 
Bandra (E), Mumbai-400 051

ROHITFERRO

 The Company has paid the LisƟng Fee for the year 2018-19 to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are 
listed.

6. The InternaƟonal Security IdenƟficaƟon Number (ISIN) for NSDL & CDSL: INE248H01012.
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7. Market Price Data

 The Stock Market data on BSE & NSE for the last twelve months are provided herein:

Month NaƟonal Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (`)

BSE Limited (`)

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
April, 2017 7.70 5.50 7.90 5.73
May, 2017 6.50 4.90 6.55 4.94
June, 2017 5.35 4.65 5.41 4.66
 July, 2017 5.60 4.60 5.65 4.60
August, 2017 5.30 4.75 5.20 4.75
September, 2017 NT* NT* NT* NT*
October, 2017 NT* NT* 4.63 4.63
November, 2017 4.90 4.70 4.63 4.40
December, 2017 NT* NT* NT* NT*
January,2018 4.65 4.65 NT* NT*
February,2018 5.45 3.45 5.32 3.41
March, 2018 4.10 2.60 4.19 2.41

NT* Not traded

8. Performance of the Company in comparison with BSE Sensex 

Corporate Governance Report

9.  Category & Shareholding PaƩern as on 31st March, 2018

Category No. of Shares % of holding

Promoter & Promoter Group 8,19,17,842 72.00
Individuals 2,81,05,447 24.70
NBFC registered with RBI 4000 0.01
Bodies Corporate 18,20,828 1.60
Non-Resident Individuals 11,04,192 0.97
Clearing Member 7,99,259 0.70
IEPF Authority 24,555 0.02
Total 11,37,76,123 100.00
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10. DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2018

Range No. of 
Shareholders

% of Total Share-
holders

No. of Shares % of Total

Upto 500 12111 65.30 22,43,148 1.97
501 to 1000 2,567 13.84 22,54,777 1.98
1001 to 2000 1,573 8.49 25,28,736 2.22
2001 to 3000 593 3.20 15,51,795 1.37
3001 to 4000 326 1.75 11,83,864 1.04
4001 to 5000 334 1.80 16,04,330 1.41
5001 to 10000 527 2.84 40,12,705 3.53
10001 and above 515 2.78 9,83,96,768 86.48
Total 18,546 100.00 11,37,76,123 100.00

11. DematerialisaƟon of Shares and Liquidity 
 The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form which is available for trading on both NaƟonal 

SecuriƟes Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). As on 31st March, 2018, 
11,37,61,470 Equity Shares represenƟng 99.99 % of the share capital are held in dematerialised form viz., CDSL- 9,42,63,521 
Equity Shares and NSDL – 1,94,97,949 Equity Shares.

12. ReconciliaƟon of Share Capital Audit :
 As sƟpulated by SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), a pracƟcing Company Secretary carries out the ReconciliaƟon 

of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admiƩed Capital with NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and 
the report thereon is submiƩed to the Stock Exchanges, and is also placed before the Board of Directors.

13. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
 M/s. Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd. of 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata – 700 001 is the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent of the Company, both for Physical and Demat segments. Accordingly, all communicaƟons on maƩers relaƟng 
to Share Transfers, Dividend etc. may be sent directly to them. Complaints, if any, on these maƩers may also be sent to the 
Compliance Officer of the Company.

14. Share Transfer System
 The share transfer requests are processed on behalf of the Company by Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Maheshwari 

DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd. and are placed before the Company Secretary who has been delegated the authority by Stakeholders 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee to approve transfers. The Company Secretary addresses all the requests fortnightly.

15. Outstanding ADR’s & GDR’s, Warrants or any other converƟble instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity 
Shares 

 During the year under review, the Company has not issued any ADR’s & GDR’s, Warrants or any other converƟble 
instruments. The Company has at present no outstanding ADR’s/GDR’s/Warrants to be converted that has an impact on 
the Equity Shares of the Company.

16. Name, DesignaƟon & Address of Compliance Officer for Complaints & Correspondence

 Mr. Anil Prasad Shaw
 Company Secretary, Compliance and Nodal Officer
 Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited
 SKP House,
 132A, S.P. Mukherjee Road,
 Kolkata – 700 026
 Ph: +91 33-4016 8000/8100
 Fax: +91 33-4016 8107
 Email Id: cs@rohiƞerrotech.com
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 Address for Correspondence
 Registered Office:
 Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited
 35, C. R. Avenue,
 Kolkata – 700 012
 Phone: +91 33 2211 0225/26
 Email Id: grievance@rohiƞerrotech.com
 CIN: L27104WB2000PLC091629

 Corporate Office:
 Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited
 SKP House,
 132A, S. P. Mukherjee Road,
 Kolkata – 700 026
 Phone: +91 33 4016 8000/8100
 Fax    : +91 33 4016 8191/8107

17. Plant LocaƟons

Bishnupur WBIIDC Road, P.O. Dwarika
Bishnupur – 722 122, Dist: Bankura (West Bengal)

Jajpur Kalinganagar Industrial Complex
Duburi – 755 026, Dist: Jajpur (Odisha)

Haldia Jaynagar, P.O.: Buniaraichak, PS: Durgachak
Dist: Purba Medinipur (West Bengal)

Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements Specified In RegulaƟon 17 to 27 and Clauses (B) to (I) 
of RegulaƟon 46(2) of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, 2015

Pursuant to Schedule V of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, 2015, the Company hereby confirms that it has complied with the Corporate 
Governance requirements specified in RegulaƟon 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of RegulaƟon 46(2) inter-alia covering the 
following subject maƩer/heads:

a. Board of Directors

b. Audit CommiƩee

c. NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

d. Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee

e. Risk Management CommiƩee : Not Applicable

f. Vigil Mechanism

g. Related Party TransacƟons

h. Corporate Governance requirements with respect to Subsidiary of Company: The Company has no material Subsidiary, all 
other requirement is complied.

i. ObligaƟons with respect to Independent Directors

j. ObligaƟons with respect to Directors and Senior Management

k. Other Corporate Governance requirements as sƟpulated under the RegulaƟons

l. DisseminaƟon of various informaƟon on the website of the Company w.r.t clauses (b) to (i) of RegulaƟon 46(2).
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel as adopted is available on the Company’s 
website www.rohiƞerrotech.com. All the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed the 
compliances of the Code of Conduct.  

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with RegulaƟon 26(3) of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 , the Board members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with 
code of conduct of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2018.

For and On Behalf of the Board
For Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

Place: Kolkata, R. K. Burnwal
Dated: 30.05.2018 (ExecuƟve Director)

For and on behalf of the Board
Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

 Suresh Kumar Patni
Kolkata, 14th August, 2018 Chairman

Corporate Governance Report
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance by Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited (‘the Company’), for the 
year ended on 31st March, 2018, as sƟpulated in Chapter IV of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (LisƟng RegulaƟons), of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟon was limited 
to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condiƟons of the 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, we cerƟfy that the Company has 
complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in the above menƟoned LisƟng RegulaƟons, as applicable. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For K. C. Dhanuka & Co
Company Secretaries

CS K. C Dhanuka
Proprietor

Place: Kolkata  FCS – 2204 
Date: 14.08.2018 C.P. No. – 1247
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To 
The Members of
M/s. Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

Report on the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of M/S. ROHIT FERRO-TECH LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a summary 
of the significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in SecƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparaƟon of these Ind AS Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial posiƟon, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the 
Company in accordance with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
(Ind AS) prescribed under secƟon 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records 
in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds 
and other irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that 
are reasonable and prudent and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records relevant to the preparaƟon and 
presentaƟon of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS standalone financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounƟng and audiƟng standards and maƩers which are required to 
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng specified under 
secƟon 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparaƟon of the Ind AS standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluaƟng the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by the 
management, as well as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone IND-AS financial statements. 

Basis of Qualified opinion

We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No. 47 of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements with regard to non recogniƟon of interest 
expense amounƟng to ` 29,797.16 lacs on the borrowings of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2018 which is not in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 23 : Borrowing Costs read with Ind AS 109 : Financial Instruments.

The company has not provided accrued interest in its books of accounts during the year and reversed interest provided in earlier 
period pertaining to the period the account was declared NPA by the respecƟve lenders. Had the aforesaid interest expense 
been recognized the finance cost would have been ` 35,120.36 lacs instead of ` 5,323.20 lacs. Total expense for the year ended 
31.03.2018 would have been ` 1,37,265.1 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 1,07,467.97 lacs. Net loss aŌer tax for the year 
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ended 31.03.2018 would have been ` 63,684.29 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 33,887.13 lacs. Total comprehensive loss 
would have been ` 63,691.62 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 33,894.46 lacs, other Equity would have been ` (1,34,641.9) 
Lacs instead of reported amount of ` (1,04,844.74) lacs, other current financial liability would have been ̀  89,229.87 lacs instead 
of reported amount of ` 59,432.71 lacs.

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, except for the effects of 
our observaƟon stated above in the Basis of Qualified opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements give the 
informaƟon required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟng 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31,2018, and its loss, total comprehensive 
loss, cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Emphasis of MaƩer

1. We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No. 46 of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements which indicate that as at 31st March, 
2018, the accumulated losses amounƟng to ` 1,47,825.98 lacs has eroded the enƟre net worth of the company, indicaƟng 
the existence of a material uncertainty about the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going concern. These standalone 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note.

2. As referred in Note No. 36 of the Standalone Financial Statements, the balance of sundry debtors, advances, creditors 
etc. includes balances remaining outstanding for a substanƟal period. The balances are subject to confirmaƟons and 
reconciliaƟon. The reported financials might have consequenƟal impact which remains unascertained.

Our report is not qualified in this maƩer.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order,2016 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of subsecƟon (11) of the secƟon 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the maƩers specified 
in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by secƟon 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:

 a. We have sought, except for the effects of the maƩers described in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph above 
and  obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit;

 b. Except for the effects of the maƩers described in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, 
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examinaƟon 
of those books;

 c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income ,the Cash Flow Statement 
and  the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

 d. Except for the effects of the maƩers described in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian AccounƟng Standards specified under secƟon 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013; read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 e. The maƩers described in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect 
on the funcƟoning of the company.

 f. On the basis of wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on March  31, 2018, and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director 
in terms of secƟon 164(2) of the Act.

 g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of the Company and the 
operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”;and
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 h. In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟon given to us, we report as under 
with respect to other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on the financial posiƟon in the Standalone 
Financial Statements- Refer Note 34 (i) (a)to (d) to its standalone financial statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

  iii. During the year the company has transferred an amount of ` 1.61 Lacs to Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon 
Fund pertaining to dividend for the year 2009-10.

  iv. The disclosure requirements relaƟng to holding as well as dealings in specified bank notes were applicable for 
the period 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 which is not relevant to these Standalone Financial 
Statements. Hence, reporƟng under this clause is not applicable.

For R. Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: 30th May, 2018 Membership No.: 064308
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The Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of 
even date to the standalone fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full parƟ culars, including quanƟ taƟ ve details and situaƟ on, of 
property, plant and equipment. 

 (b) The Property, plant and equipment of the Company have been physically verifi ed by the management during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noƟ ced on such verifi caƟ on. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical 
verifi caƟ on is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. 

 (c) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟ on of the records of the 
Company, the Ɵ tle deeds of immovable properƟ es are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verifi ed by the management during the year at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the 
frequency of such verifi caƟ on is reasonable. The discrepancies noƟ ced on verifi caƟ on between the physical stocks and 
the book records were not material having regard to the size of the operaƟ ons of the Company and the same have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(iii) In our opinion and according to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of secƟ on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and 
providing guarantees and securiƟ es, as applicable.

(iv) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and consequently, the direcƟ ves issued by Reserve Bank 
of India and provisions of SecƟ on 73 to SecƟ on 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable 
to the company.

(v) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of manufacture of Ferro alloys & 
Minerals  and Iron & steel pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records 
under SecƟ on 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the records have been 
maintained.  We have however not made a detailed examinaƟ on of the records with a view to determining whether they 
are accurate and complete.

(vi) (a)  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟ on of the books of 
account, the Company has generally delayed in deposiƟ ng undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Income tax, sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues during the year 
with appropriate authoriƟ es.

  According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above 
were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become 
payable except the following :

SL. No. Nature of Dues Amount Involved
(` in Lacs)

1 Excise Duty 1080.8
2 Service Tax 552.97
3 Entry Tax 96.18
4 VAT 61.58
5 STDS 41.63
6 Welfare Cess 5.57
7 CST 3.04

Total 1841.77

 (b) According to the informaƟ on and explanaƟ ons given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, Sales tax, Value added 
tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Excise duty and Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authoriƟ es 
on account of any dispute except the following cases:
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues  Amount in lacs Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where the dispute is pending 

Central Excise Act, 1944

Excise Duty

 409.59 Feb 05-Jun 09 Commissioner of CE, CUS & ST, BBSR-I, Mr. P.K. Dash

   51.81 April 2007 to March 2008 AddiƟonal Commissioner of  CE, CUS & ST, BBSR-I,
Mr. Ashok Mahida

  8.25 April 2009 to March 2010 AddiƟonal Commissioner of  CE, CUS & ST, BBSR-I,
Mr. Ashok Mahida

  108.80 Sep 2012-Aug 2014 Commissioner of  CE,CUS & ST, BBSR-II Bhubaneswar, 
Mr. Deep Sekhar 

    6.85  Assistant Commissioner of  CE, CUS & ST, Jajpur,
Mr. Ambe M

  12.13  Assistant Commissioner of CGST & CE, JAJPUR
    1.95  Commissioner of Central Excise (APPEAL-IV),Kolkata
    2.81 2004-2005 Commissioner of Central Excise

  0.10  2005-2007 
  84.86 Jan 2008 to March 2008 CESTAT, Kolkata
 27.17 April 06-Dec 08

 Commissioner of Central Excise 
    4.22 Oct 2009-July 2010
   4.31 2006-2009

   14.56 2006-2007
     21.88 - Commissioner of Excise 

   201.54 2015-16 Commissioner of Excise

      0.86 2013-14 Commissioner of Excise
   26.24 2009-10 to 2012-13 Commissioner (Appeal)

    10.00 23.12.09 to 03.02.2010 CESTAT

   19.81 2011-12 Commissioner of Excise

Diff. Duty

   17.67 Apr-13 to Oct-13 AddiƟonal Commissioner
   37.54 Jan'14 to Sept'14 AddiƟonal Commissioner

  29.96 2008-09 to 2012-13 Central Excise and Service Tax Commissionerate
  1.35 ApriL'2013 to Dec'2013 Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise

   3.73 Oct'2014 to Nov'2014
 15.83 Dec'2014 to May'2015 Durgapur Commissionerate

   1.29 June'2015 to Feb'2016
Assistant Commissioner of Central ExciseClearing and 

forwarding
  4.10 Aug'2014 to May'2015

Directorate General 
of Central Excise 
Intelligence, Kolkata East 
Zonal Unit

Evasion of 
Central Excise 
duty

  624.52 2014ͳ15 Directorate General of Central Excise Intelligence, 
Kolkata East Zonal Unit

Central Excise, AnƟ 
Evasion Unit

Cenvat and 
Interest

 12.88 23.12.2009 to 03.02.2010
Commissioner of Excise

Central Excise Act, 1944 Cenvat credit 204.79  CESTAT, Kolkata

Cenvat credit 25.90  ADC, BBSR
 Sub-Total 1,997.28  

Service Tax Act,1994 Service tax 8.89 Jan'14 to July'14 AddiƟonal Commissioner
  5.09 29.03.2014 to 12.06.2014 Assistant Commissioner, Haldia Commissionerate
  28.41  Oct 2007 to 2011-2012 Commissioner of Central Excise Appeal - II
   66.11  2012-13 to 2015-16 Durgapur Audit Commissionerate
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  21.77  April'13 to May'15 Commissioner (Appeal)
  17.79  Asst.Commissioner of Central Excise and Service tax

  18.79  2012-13 Addl.Commissioner of Central Excise and Service tax

    3.41  CESTAT, Kolkata

  1.20 2012-13 to 2015-16 Durgapur Commissionerate
   22.63 2012-13 to 2016-17 Durgapur Commissionerate
   186.45 2012-13 to 2016-17 Durgapur Commissionerate

 Sub-Total   380.52  

The Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956 and West 

Bengal VAT Act, 2005

Central Sales Tax 
and Value Added 

Tax

 89.19 2006-2007 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
  219.45 2007-2008 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
  363.02 2012-13 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
  130.01 2014-15 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
  823.88 2012-2013 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,

 1,201.37 2013-14 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
  1,201.37 2014-15 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,

   402.41 2015-16 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
 102.88 2012-13 to 2013-14 Falta, SEZ, Kolkata

Orissa VAT Act, 2004

Orissa CST    10.14 2007-2008 and 2008-
2009

Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes

Orissa VAT

   363.49 April 2005- Oct 2007 AddiƟonal Commissioner
  11.95 2008-2009 Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes

  62.21 2007-2008
  29.38 2009-2010 AddiƟonal Commissioner of Sales Tax

Orissa CST Act CST
   6.77 2009-2010 AddiƟonal Commissioner of Sales Tax

  434.78 2011-12 Deputy commissioner of central tax Jajpur 
 Sub-Total   5,452.31  

Orissa Entry Tax Act Entry Tax

  0.70 2008-2009 Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes
   37.35 2007-2008 Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes

 12.32 April 2005- Oct 2007 Deputy Commissioner of Central Taxes

1.05 2009-2010 AddiƟonal Commissioner of Sales Tax

 Sub-Total  51.42   

Orissa Entry Tax Act Entry Tax Refund 103.97 2008-2009 High Court

Sub Total 103.97
Employee Provident 
Fund OrganisaƟon of 
India

Interest/
Damages   1.80 April, 1996-April 2014

Assistant/Regional Provident Fund Commissioner of 
EPFO

Sub Total 1.80

DRI, KOLKATA

Customs 40.35 2015-16 DRI, Kolkata
Non payment of 
Customs duty on 
ship demurrage 

charges

 500.00 2007-2017 DRI, Kolkata

 Sub-Total  540.35   

"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors' Report



Annual Report 2017-18 47

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax

 929.96 2014-15 CIT(A)

 3,099.23 2013-14 CIT(A)
17.19 2012-13 CIT(A)

2,098.98 2011-12 CIT(A)
 291.24 2010-11 ITAT

 Sub-Total 6,436.61   
 Grand Total 14,964.26   

 There were no other statutory dues which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2018   on account of dispute.

(viii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the records of the Company examined by us and the 
informaƟ on and explanaƟ on given to us, the Company has defaulted in payment of interest and repayment of principal on 
borrowings to banks as follows:

ParƟculars 

Amount of default 
as at the balance sheet date

(` in Lacs)
Period of default

 Principal 
Repayment 

 Interest 
Payment 

RUPEE TERM LOAN
Allahabad bank 1,585.00 486.88

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 
to 31st March 2018

Canara Bank 275.16 696.26
Exim Bank 1,068.00 2,505.52
State Bank of India 6,902.56 228.91
United Bank of India 1,365.30 597.65
Total 11,196.02 4,515.22

ParƟculars 

Amount of default 
as at the balance sheet date

(` in Lacs) Period of default
 Principal 

Repayment 
 Interest 
Payment 

WORKING CAPITAL TERM LOAN 
Allahabad Bank 176.16 106

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 
to 31st March 2018

Andhra Bank 142.92 362.97
Bank of Baroda 534   -   
Central Bank of India 27.72     -   
Punjab NaƟonal Bank 515.04     -   
State Bank Of India 2900.52 (48.82)                        
United Bank Of India 1,427.76 1,262.54
UCO Bank 349.8 305.79
Total 6,073.92 1,988.48  
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ParƟculars 

Amount of default 
as at the balance sheet date

(` in Lacs) Period of default
 Principal 

Repayment 
 Interest 
Payment 

FUNDED INTEREST TERM LOAN 
Allahabad Bank 1,210.99 28.57

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 
to 31st March 2018

Andhra Bank 242.2 147.2
Bank of Baroda 699.93                         -   
Canara Bank 279.97 171.68
Central Bank of India 157.21 (19.05)
Exim Bank 1,079.34 506.33
Punjab NaƟonal Bank 902.69 1.00
State Bank of India 8,270.28 148.96
United Bank of India 2,941.93 557.16
UCO Bank 412.18 105.16
Total 16,196.72 1,647.01

ParƟculars 

Amount of default 
as at the balance sheet date

(` in Lacs) Period of default
 Principal 

Repayment 
 Interest 
Payment 

WORKING CAPITAL LOAN 
Allahabad  Bank (CC)                    -   771.31

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 to 
31st March 2018

Andhra Bank (CC)                    -   1,126.45
Bank of Baroda (CC)                    -   248.67
Central Bank Of India (CC)                    -   (28.63)
Punjab NaƟonal Bank  (CC)                    -   131.2
Punjab NaƟonal Bank  (OD)                    -   (86.19)
State Bank Of India (CC)                    -  389.76
United Bank Of India (CC)                    -   1,091.78
UCO Bank (CC)                    -   338.88
UCO Bank (OD)                    -   29.91
Total                    -   4013.14  
GRAND TOTAL 33,466.66                  12,163.85  

The unprovided liability amounƟng to ` 61,188.56 lacs as referred in Note No. 47 of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements 
conƟnued to be a default.
The company does not have any loans or borrowings from the government and has not issued any Debentures.
(viii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, the 

company has not raised moneys by way of iniƟal public issue/ follow-on offer (including debt instruments) and term loans.
(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, we report 

that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noƟced or reported during the 
year.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, the 
managerial remuneraƟon has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of secƟon 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Therefore, the reporƟng under Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xii) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, all transacƟons with the related parƟes are 
in compliance with SecƟon 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in 
the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable AccounƟng Standards.

(xiii) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟon given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the company, the 
company has not made any prefenƟal allotment or private placement of shares of fully or partly converƟble debentures 
and hence reporƟng under paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transacƟons with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the 
reporƟng under Paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xv) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under secƟon 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For R. Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: 30th May, 2018 Membership No.: 064308
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng under Clause (i) of Sub-secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of M/s. ROHIT FERRO-TECH LIMITED (“the Company”) 
as of 31st March, 2018 in conjuncƟon with our audit of the Ind AS standalone financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporƟng based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
ReporƟng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on AudiƟng issued 
by ICAI and prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporƟng was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng

A company's internal financial control over financial reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporƟng and the preparaƟon of Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounƟng principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporƟng includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparaƟon of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizaƟons of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized 
acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng to future periods are subject to the risk 
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that the internal financial control over financial reporƟng may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal 
control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.  

For R. Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia
Place: Kolkata  Partner
Date: 30th May, 2018 Membership No.: 064308
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date: 30th day of May, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

 Sl. No. PARTICULARS  Note No. 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

 I  ASSETS 
 (1) Non-Current Assets 
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4  65,764.06  69,136.51 
 (b) Capital Work-in-Progress 5  44,795.79  44,728.15 
 (c) Financial Assets 

 (i) Investments  6  7,724.41  8,009.16 
 (ii) Loans  7  3,084.53  3,214.01 

 (d) Other Non-Current Assets 8  765.01  722.62 
 122,133.80  125,810.45 

 (2) Current Assets 
 (a) Inventories 9  12,092.70  36,610.40 
 (b) Financial Assets 

 (i) Trade Receivables 10  51,460.71  62,168.75 
 (ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 11  1,027.07  864.51 
 (iii) Other Bank Balances 12  17.18  848.30 
 (iv) Loans  7  1,572.14  1,255.54 
 (v) Other Current Financial Assets 13  6,379.36  6,255.42 

 (c) Other Current Assets 14  10,726.75  19,688.26 
 83,275.91  127,691.18 

 TOTAL  205,409.71  253,501.63 
 II  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 
 (a) Equity Share Capital 15  11,377.61  11,377.61 
 (b) Other Equity 16  (104,844.74)  (70,949.63)

 (93,467.13)  (59,572.02)
 LiabiliƟes 
 (1) Non-Current LiabiliƟes 
 (a) Financial LiabiliƟes 

 (i) Borrowings 17  97,116.75  111,856.11 
 (ii) Other Non-Current Financial LiabiliƟes 18  -    99.96 

 (b) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 19  -    -   
 (c) Other Non-Current LiabiliƟes 23  97.86  106.03 

 97,214.61  112,062.10 
 (2) Current LiabiliƟes 
 (a) Financial LiabiliƟes 

 (i) Borrowings 17  114,072.05  109,644.91 
 (ii) Trade Payables 20  21,773.95  37,683.85 
 (iii) Other Current Financial LiabiliƟes 21  59,432.71  43,736.09 

 (b) Current Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 22  389.49  406.94 
 (c) Other Current LiabiliƟes 23  5,994.03  9,539.76 

 201,662.23  201,011.55 
TOTAL  205,409.71  253,501.63 
Significant AccounƟng Policies 3
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date: 30th day of May, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Sl. No. PARTICULARS Note No. 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

I INCOME:
Revenue From OperaƟons 24  73,138.75  72,414.18 

 II Other Income 25  442.09  648.53 
 III Total Revenue (I + II)  73,580.84  73,062.71 
 IV EXPENSES:

Cost of Materials Consumed 26  66,883.92  67,656.57 
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 27  -    288.24 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-Progress 28  1,431.70  983.37 
Excise Duty  1,790.03  6,399.23 
Employee Benefits Expense 29  1,506.77  1,341.61 
Finance Costs 30  5,323.20  (1,866.01)
DepreciaƟon and AmorƟzaƟon Expense 4  3,374.07  3,418.15 
Other Expenses 31  27,158.28  28,440.76 
Total Expenses (IV)  107,467.97  106,661.92 

 V PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (III-IV)  (33,887.13)  (33,599.21)
 VI TAX EXPENSES

Current Tax -  - 
MAT Credit EnƟtlement -  - 
Earlier Years' Tax -  - 
Deferred Tax -  - 

 VII PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (V - VI)  (33,887.13)  (33,599.21)
 VIII OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (7.33)  (54.76)
(ii) Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   
(ii) Income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (NET OF TAXES)  (7.33)  (54.76)

 IX Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (VII + VIII)  (33,894.46)  (33,653.97)
 X Earnings per Equity Share [Nominal Value of Share - Rs. 10]

 Basic & Diluted 33  (29.78)  (29.53)
 Significant accounƟng policies 3
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(` in Lacs)

Sl. No. PARTICULARS  Year Ended
 31st March, 2018

 Year Ended
 31st March, 2017

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax  (33,887.13)  (33,599.21)
Adjustments for :
DepreciaƟon  3,388.20  3,418.15 
Interest Income  (235.49)  (548.89)
Finance Costs  5,323.20  (1,866.01)
Net (gain)/Loss on sale of investments  (20.42)  -   
Provision/(Reversal) for supplement payments on 
retirement

 (7.33)  (54.76)

Net gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL  -    (24.40)
Exchange FluctuaƟon Loss/(Gain)  144.57  6.94 
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  -    10.20 
Sundry Balances wriƩen off / (back)  (115.84)  112.66 

 8,476.89  1,053.89 
OperaƟng Profit before Working Capital Changes  (25,410.24)  (32,545.32)
Adjustments for :
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  24,517.71  27,880.56 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  10,823.88  12,840.27 
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Financial Assets  129.47  (39.03)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Financial Assets  (212.41)  (86.79)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets  (42.39)  (207.05)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  8,961.51  (3,137.54)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (15,909.90)  1,043.09 
Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Current Financial 
LiabiliƟes

 (99.96)  (102.41)

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Financial LiabiliƟes (5,085.44) 2,756.96
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current LiabiliƟes  (8.17)  (8.13)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current LiabiliƟes and 
Provisions

 (3,563.35)  1,424.34 

19,510.95 42,364.27
Cash generated from operaƟons (5,899.29) 9,818.95
Direct Tax Paid  (0.41) -
 Exchange FluctuaƟon Loss/(Gain)  (144.57)  (6.94)
Net Cash from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes (6,044.27) 9,812.01

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including 
Capital Work-in- Progress and Capital Advances)

 (83.47)  (691.88)

Sale of property, plant and equipment  -    1,908.83 
Interest Received  7.36  69.01 
Sale of Investment  305.17  -   
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits with Banks  831.12  56.10 
Net Cash used in InvesƟng AcƟviƟes  1,060.18  1,342.06 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018
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Sl. No. PARTICULARS  Year Ended
 31st March, 2018

 Year Ended
 31st March, 2017

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings-Non 
Current

 (14,739.36)  (20,532.50)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings-Current 16,520.80 12,887.57
Increase/ (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  4,427.14  (3,131.74)
Interest Paid  (1,061.93)  (265.66)
Net Cash from Financing AcƟviƟes 5,146.65 (11,042.33)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  162.56  111.74 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
(Refer Note No.11 to the Accounts)

 864.51  752.77 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 
(Refer Note No.11 to the Accounts)

 1,027.07  864.51 

(` in Lacs)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date: 30th day of May, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018 (Contd.)
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A.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL  (` in Lacs) 
ParƟculars  Numbers  Amount 
Balance as at 1st April 2016  1,137.76  11,377.61 
Changes in equity share capital during 2016-17  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March 2017  1,137.76  11,377.61 
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-18  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March 2018  1,137.76  11,377.61 

B. OTHER EQUITY
For the year ended 31st March, 2018 (` in Lacs)

 ParƟculars  Reserve and Surplus  EffecƟve 
porƟon of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges 

 Total 
 Capital 
Reserve 

 SecuriƟes 
Premium 
Reserve 

 General 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April 2017  128.14  42,403.10  450.00 (113,931.52)  -    (70,950.28)
Profit /(Loss) for the year    -    -    -  (33,887.13)    -  (33,887.13)
Movement during the year    -    -    -    -    -  -   
Other Comprehensive Income    -    -    -  (7.33)    -  (7.33)
Total Comprehensive Income  128.14  42,403.10  450.00 (147,825.98)  -    (104,844.74)
DepreciaƟon charge  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as at 31st March 2018  128.14  42,403.10  450.00 (147,825.98)  -    (104,844.74)

For the year ended 31st March, 2017 
 ParƟculars  Reserve and Surplus  EffecƟve 

porƟon of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges 

 Total 
 Capital 
Reserve 

 SecuriƟes 
Premium 
Reserve 

 General 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 1st April 2016  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  (80,277.54)  -    (37,296.30)
Profit /(Loss) for the year    -    -    -  (33,599.21)    -  (33,599.21)
Movement during the year    -    -    -    -  -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income    -    -    -  (54.76)    -  (54.76)
Total Comprehensive Income  128.14  42,403.10  450.00 (113,931.52)  -    (70,950.28)
DepreciaƟon charge  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as at 31st March 2017  128.14  42,403.10  450.00 (113,931.52)  -    (70,950.28)

Significant accounƟng policies: Note 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date: 30th day of May, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2018



Annual Report 2017-18 57

1 Company Overview    
 Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited (“the Company”) is a well-differenƟated player in the Ferro Alloy manufacturing sector. Since 

its incepƟon, the Company has come a long way to posiƟon itself as one of the leading producer of High Carbon Ferro 
Chrome. The company has accreditaƟon like ISO 9001:2000, a Two Star Export House Status, award for Export Excellence 
by EEPC, Membership of ICDA (InternaƟonal Chrome Development AssociaƟon), IMNI (InternaƟonal Manganese InsƟtute) 
etc. The company is listed with the two major stock exchanges of India – NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India and Bombay 
Stock Exchange Limited.

 The Company is a public company incorporated in India on 7th April, 2000. The address of its registered office is 35, 
ChiƩaranjan Avenue, Kolkata - 700012.    

2 Basis of preparaƟon    
 a) Statement of Compliance    
  These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(‘Act’) (to the extent noƟfied) and Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convenƟon on the 
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed 
under secƟon 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended). 

  Accordingly, the company has prepared these standalone financial statements which compromise the balance sheet 
as at 31st March 2018, the statement of profit & loss, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes 
in equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon (together 
hereinaŌer referred to as 'standalone financial statements' or 'financial statement').

  AccounƟng policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounƟng standard is iniƟally 
adopted or a revision to an exisƟng standard requires a change in the accounƟng policy hitherto in use.

 b) FuncƟonal and presentaƟon currency    
  The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘`’) which is Company’s presentaƟon currency. The 

funcƟonal currency of the Company is also Indian Rupees ('`') 
 c) Basis of measurement    
  The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convenƟon on the accrual basis, except for the 

following items:
  (i)  Certain financial assets and financial liabiliƟes measured at fair value; 
  (ii)  Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuaƟon.
  Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transacƟon between market parƟcipants at the measurement date under current market condiƟons, regardless of 
whether that price is directly observable or esƟmated using another valuaƟon technique. In determining the fair 
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characterisƟcs of the asset or liability if market 
parƟcipants would take those characterisƟcs into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date.    

 d) Use of judgments and esƟmates    
  In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect 

the applicaƟon of accounƟng policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabiliƟes, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these esƟmates.

  EsƟmates and underlying assumpƟons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounƟng esƟmates are 
recognized prospecƟvely.    

  CriƟcal accounƟng judgements and key sources of esƟmaƟon uncertainty: Key assumpƟons -   
(i)  Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment :    

   The Company reviews the esƟmated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the 
end of each reporƟng period. During the current Financial Year, the management determined that there were 
no changes to the useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment.  

  (ii) Allowances for doubƞul debts:    
   The Company makes allowances for doubƞul debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and 

other receivables. The idenƟficaƟon of doubƞul debts requires use of judgement and esƟmates. Where the 
expectaƟon is different from the original esƟmate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade 
and other receivables and doubƞul debts expenses in the period in which such esƟmate has been changed.
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  (iii) Allowances for inventories :    
   Management reviews the inventory age lisƟng on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the 

carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respecƟve net realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain 
whether an allowance is required to be made in the Financial Statements for any obsolete and slow-moving 
items.    

  (vi)  Fair value measurement of financial instruments :    
   When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in acƟve markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuaƟon 
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is 
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideraƟons 
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volaƟlity.

  (v)  Defined benefit plans:
   The cost of the defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity obligaƟon are 

determined using actuarial valuaƟons using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuaƟon involves 
making various assumpƟons that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the 
determinaƟon of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexiƟes 
involved in the valuaƟon and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligaƟon is highly sensiƟve to changes 
in these assumpƟons. All assumpƟons are reviewed at each reporƟng date. 

  (vi)  RecogniƟon and measurement of provisions and conƟngencies : 
   The certain key assumpƟons about the likelihood and magnitude of an ouƞlow of resources. Provision is 

towards known contractual obligaƟon, liƟgaƟon cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duƟes 
and other levies, if any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligaƟons and the 
seƩlement of such obligaƟons are expected to result in ouƞlow of resources, to the extent provided for.

 e) Measurement of fair values    
  A number of the Company's accounƟng policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both 

financial and non-financial assets and liabiliƟes.
  The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
  The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuaƟon adjustments.
  Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuaƟon 

techniques as follows.
  - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes.
  - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
  - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
  When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its enƟrety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is significant to the enƟre measurement.

  The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporƟng period 
during which the change has occurred.   

 f) Standard issued but not yet effecƟve    
  (i)  Revenue from contracts with customers - Ind AS 115    
   Ind AS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 

is recognised. It replaces exisƟng revenue recogniƟon guidance, including Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 
ConstrucƟon Contracts. The effecƟve date of Ind AS 115 is yet to be announced.

  (ii)  Amendments to Ind AS 7 
   In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) 

(Amendments) Rules, 2017, noƟfying amendments to Ind AS 7, “Statement of Cash flows”. These amendments 
are in accordance with the recent amendments made by InternaƟonal AccounƟng Standard Board (IASB) to 
IAS 7, “Statement of Cash flows”. The amendments are applicable to the Company from 1st April, 2017.

   The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires the enƟƟes to provide disclosures that enable users of the financial 
statements to evaluate changes in liabiliƟes arising from financing acƟviƟes, including both changes arising 
from cash flows and non – cash changes, suggesƟng inclusion of a reconciliaƟon between the opening and 
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closing balances in the balance sheet for liabiliƟes arising from financing acƟviƟes, to meet the disclosure 
requirement. 

3 Significant accounƟng policies
 a) OperaƟng Cycle    
  All assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operaƟng cycle 

and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 – PresentaƟon of Financial 
Statements based on the nature of products and the Ɵme between the acquisiƟon of assets for processing and their 
realisaƟon in cash and cash equivalents.

 b) Financial Instruments
  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enƟty and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another enƟty.      
  i. Financial Assets
   IniƟal recogniƟon and measurement    
   All financial assets are recognised iniƟally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss, transacƟon costs that are aƩributable to the acquisiƟon of the financial asset. 
Trade receivables are iniƟally measured at transacƟon price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets 
are accounted for at trade date.  

   Subsequent measurement
   For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories :
   •  AmorƟsed cost
   •  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
   •  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
   Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their iniƟal recogniƟon, except if and in the period the 

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.   
   Financial assets at amorƟsed cost 
   A financial asset is measured at amorƟsed cost if it is held within a business model whose objecƟve is to hold 

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

   The effecƟve interest rate (EIR) amorƟsaƟon is included in finance income in the profit or loss. 
   Financial assets at FVTOCI
   A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objecƟve is achieved by 

both collecƟng contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

   Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured iniƟally as well as at each reporƟng date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

   Financial assets at FVTPL
   A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets 

included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement 
of Profit & Loss.

   Investment in Subsidiary
   The Company has accounted for its investments in its subsidiary at cost/deemed cost.
   Other equity investments
   All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of 

Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value 
changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income.

   DerecogniƟon
   The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecogniƟon under Ind AS 
109. 
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  ii.  Financial liability
   IniƟal recogniƟon and measurement
   Financial liabiliƟes are iniƟally recognised at fair value plus any transacƟon cost that are aƩributable to the 

acquisiƟon of the financial liabiliƟes except financial liabiliƟes at fair value through profit or loss which are 
inƟally measured at fair value.

   Subsequent measurement    
   For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabiliƟes are classified in following categories:
   • Financial liabiliƟes through profit or loss (FVTPL)
   • Financial liabiliƟes at amorƟsed cost
   Financial liabiliƟes through FVTPL
   A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivaƟve or it is 

designated as such on iniƟal recogniƟon. Financial liabiliƟes at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains 
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

   Financial liabiliƟes at amorƟsed cost
   Other financial liabiliƟes are subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost using the effecƟve interest method. 

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecogniƟon is also recognised in profit or loss.

   Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabiliƟes are derecognised as well as through the 
EIR amorƟsaƟon process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, 
the carrying amounts approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

   DerivaƟve financial instruments and Hedge AccounƟng
   The Company uses various derivaƟve financial instruments to miƟgate the risk of changes in interest rates, 

exchange rates and commodity prices. Such derivaƟve financial instruments are iniƟally recognised at fair value 
on the date on which a derivaƟve contract is entered into and are also subsequently measured at fair value. 
DerivaƟves are carried as financial assets when the fair value is posiƟve and as financial liabiliƟes when the 
fair value is negaƟve. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivaƟves are taken directly 
to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effecƟve porƟon of cash flow hedges which is recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged item affects profit 
or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transacƟon subsequently results in the recogniƟon 
of a non-financial assets or non-financial liability.

   Cash flow hedge
   The Company designates derivaƟve contracts or non derivaƟve financial assets / liabiliƟes as hedging 

instruments to miƟgate the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange 
exposure on highly probable future cash flows aƩributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash 
transacƟons. When a derivaƟve is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effecƟve porƟon of 
changes in the fair value of the derivaƟve is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve being part of other 
comprehensive income. Any ineffecƟve porƟon of changes in the fair value of the derivaƟve is recognized 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relaƟonship no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounƟng, then hedge accounƟng is disconƟnued prospecƟvely. If the hedging instrument expires or 
is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulaƟve gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash 
flow hedging reserve Ɵll the period the hedge was effecƟve remains in cash flow hedging reserve unƟl the 
underlying transacƟon occurs. The cumulaƟve gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging 
reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transacƟon. If 
the forecasted transacƟon is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging 
reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   DerecogniƟon
   A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when 

the obligaƟon specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
   An exchange between an exisƟng borrower and lender of debt instruments with substanƟally different 

terms shall be accounted for as an exƟnguishment of the original financial liability and the recogniƟon of 
a new financial liability. Similarly, a substanƟal modificaƟon of the terms of an exisƟng financial liability or 
a part of it (whether or not aƩributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be accounted for as an 
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exƟnguishment of the original financial liability and the recogniƟon of a new financial liability. The difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) exƟnguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideraƟon paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabiliƟes assumed, 
shall be recognised in profit or loss. 

  iii.  Offseƫng of financial instruments
   Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet  when, 

and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and  it intends 
either to seƩle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and seƩle the liability simultaneously.

 c) Property, plant and equipment
  i.  RecogniƟon and measurement
   Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less 

accumulated depreciaƟon and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant 
and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duƟes and non-refundable purchase taxes, 
aŌer deducƟng trade discounts and rebates, any directly aƩributable cost of bringing the item to its working 
condiƟon for its intended use and esƟmated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 
site on which it is located. Borrowing costs directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or construcƟon of those 
qualifying property, plant and equipment, which necessarily take a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for 
their intended use, are capitalised.     

   A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from 
its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in 
profit or loss. Cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet date together 
with all related expenses are shown as Capital Work-in-Progress.

  ii.  TransiƟon to Ind AS    
   On transiƟon to Ind AS, the Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value of all of its property, 

plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that 
carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

  iii.  Subsequent expenditure
   Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 

with the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
  iv.  DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon
   DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
   DepreciaƟon on fixed assets are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at the rates 

and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule II of the Act except for electrical installaƟons which have 
been depreciated over a period of twenty five years based on technical evaluaƟon and internal assessment.
The rates of depreciaƟon as prescribed in Part C of Schedule II of the Act are considered as the minimum rates. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land (includes development cost) is amorƟsed on a 
straight line basis over the period of respecƟve lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease.
DepreciaƟon methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
as appropriate.    

 d) Inventories    
  Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories compries material cost on 

FIFO basis, labour and manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing the iventories to their present locaƟon and 
condiƟon. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty.  The cost of Work-In-Progress and finished goods includes the 
cost of labour, material and a proporƟon of manufacturing overheads.

 e) Impairment
  i.  Impairment of financial instruments: financial assets
   Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to iniƟal recogniƟon other than 

financials assets in FVTPL category.
   For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected 

credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporƟng date the credit risk of the financial 
asset has not increased significantly since its iniƟal recogniƟon. The expected credit losses are measured 
as lifeƟme expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its iniƟal 
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recogniƟon. The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance 
on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life Ɵme expected losses i.e. expected cash shorƞall. 
The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

  ii.  Impairment of non-financial assets
   The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporƟng date to determine whether there is any 

indicaƟon of impairment. For impairment tesƟng, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are 
grouped together into cash-generaƟng units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets 
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any 
such indicaƟon exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is esƟmated to determine the extent of 
impairment, if any. When it is not possible to esƟmate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Company esƟmates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value 
in use is based on the esƟmated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the Ɵme value of money and risk specific to the assets.
The impairment loss recognised in prior accounƟng period is reversed if there has been a change in the 
esƟmate of recoverable amount.

 f) Foreign Currency TransacƟons 
  (a) IniƟal RecogniƟon
   Foreign currency transacƟons are recorded in the reporƟng currency, by applying to the foreign currency 

amount the exchange rate between the reporƟng currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transacƟon.   

  (b) Conversion   
   Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried 

in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transacƟon.

  (c)   Exchange Differences
   Exchange differences arising on the seƩlement of monetary items are recognised as income or as expense in 

the year in which they arise.
  (d)  Forward Exchange Contracts
   Forward Exchange Contracts outstanding as at the year end on account of firm commitment transacƟons are 

translated at period end exchange rates and the resultant gains and losses as well as the gains and losses on 
cancellaƟon of such contracts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 g) Government grants
  Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 

aƩached condiƟons will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income 
on a systemaƟc basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the 
related asset.

 h) Employee Benefits    
  i.  Short-term employee benefits
   The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 

rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the 
services.

  ii.  Defined contribuƟon plans
   ContribuƟons as per the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 towards 

provident fund and family pension fund are charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year when 
the contribuƟons to the respecƟve funds are due. There is no other obligaƟon other than the contribuƟon 
payable to the respecƟve funds.

  iii.  Defined benefit plans
   The Company has an Employees Gratuity Fund managed by the Life Insurance CorporaƟon of India.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from 
employees’ services.
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   Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other 
Comprehensive Income.

   Short-Term Compensated Absences are provided for based on esƟmates.
 i) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)
  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligaƟon (legal or construcƟve) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to seƩle the obligaƟon and a reliable esƟmate can be made of the amount of the obligaƟon.
If the effect of the Ɵme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounƟng is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of Ɵme is recognised as a finance cost.

 j) Revenue RecogniƟon
  Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideraƟon received or receivable, taking into account contractually 
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duƟes collected on behalf of the government.
DomesƟc sales are recognised at the Ɵme of dispatch of materials to the buyer. Export sales are recognised on the 
issue of bill of lading.

  Export IncenƟves arising out of Export Sales are accounted for on accrual basis. 
  Purchases are inclusive of freight and net of Input Tax, Credit, Trade Discount and Claims.
 k) RecogniƟon of dividend income, interest income or expense
  Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is 

established. Interest income or expense is recognised using the effecƟve interest method.
 l) Leases
  Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substanƟally all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured iniƟally at an amount equal to the 
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.  The minimum lease payments 
are apporƟoned between finance charges and reducƟon of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company substanƟally all the risks and rewards of ownership 
(i.e. operaƟng leases) are not recognised in the Company’s Balance Sheet. Payments made under operaƟng leases 
are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the 
payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with general inflaƟon.

 m) Income tax
  Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combinaƟon, or items recognized directly 
in equity or in OCI.

  i.  Current tax
   Current tax assets and liabiliƟes are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxaƟon authoriƟes, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substanƟvely enacted at the Balance 
sheet date.

  ii.  Deferred tax
   Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliƟes 

in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computaƟon of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabiliƟes and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is seƩled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substanƟvely enacted by the end of the reporƟng period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabiliƟes and 
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporƟng period.    

 n) Research and Development Expenses
  Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged as an expense through the normal heads of account 

in the year in which the same is incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on equipment and faciliƟes that are acquired 
for research and development acƟviƟes is capitalised and is depreciated according to the policies followed by the 
Company. 
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 o) Borrowing costs
  Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connecƟon with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs 

directly aƩributable to acquisiƟon or construcƟon of an asset which necessarily take a substanƟal period of Ɵme 
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

  Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is a 
realised or unrealised gain in respect of the seƩlement or translaƟon of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent 
of the loss previously recognised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest.

 p) Earnings per Share
  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
  For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares.

 q) Expenditure on new projects & substanƟal expansion
  Preliminary project expenditure, capital expenditure, indirect expenditure incidental and related to construcƟon/ 

implementaƟon, interest on term loans to finance fixed assets and expenditure on start-up of the project are 
capitalised upto the date of commissioning of project to the cost of the respecƟve assets.   
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NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

 5 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

At the beginning of the year  44,728.15  44,279.46 

Add: Incurred during the year  67.64  702.60 

Less: Capitalised during the year  -    (253.91)

At the end of the year  44,795.79  44,728.15 

Capital work-in-progress includes Pre OperaƟve Expenses as below relaƟng to project under implementaƟon, pending allocaƟon 
to Fixed Assets :

Opening Balance  15,435.35  14,747.23 
Add: Expenditure incurred during the period 

 Salaries  0.12  1.43 
Rent    - (0.71) 
Electricity Charges  -    0.29 
Telephone Expenses  0.01  0.07 
Travelling & Conveyance  0.01  0.10 
Repairs & Maintenance  1.88  0.18 
Labour charges (0.15) (1.56) 
Security Service Charges  21.53  36.36 
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges    - (0.79) 
General Expenses  0.47 (0.62) 
Bank Charges    -  0.09 
Interest on Term Loan from Banks    -  639.15 
Depreciation  14.13  14.13 
Total  15,473.35  15,435.35 
Amount allocated to Fixed Assets    -    - 
Closing Balance  15,473.35  15,435.35 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2017 31-03-2016

6 NON - CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Investments in Equity Instruments– unquoted

Investments in subsidiaries - At cost
210.75 (31st March 2017: 210.75) shares of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd (Face value of 
US$ 1 each fully paid up)

 7,724.41  7,724.41 

Investments in Mutual Fund– unquoted  
Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
NIL (31st March 2017: 25) units of SBI Mutual Fund 

 -    284.75 

Total of Non Current Investments  7,724.41  8,009.16 
Aggregate value of unquoted equity Investments  7,724.41  7,724.41 
Aggregate value of unquoted Mutual Funds    -  284.75 
Aggregate value of diminution other than temporary in value of Investments    -    - 

 (` in Lacs)

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018



Annual Report 2017-18 67

 (` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

7 LOANS

 (Unsecured, Considered good) 

 Non-Current 

 Security Deposits 

  - Related Parties  -    168.00 

  - Parties other than Related Parties  3,084.53  3,046.01 

 3,084.53  3,214.01 

Current 

 Loans to Related ParƟes - Subsidiary  1,572.14  1,255.54 

 1,572.14  1,255.54 

Total Loans  4,656.67  4,469.55 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

8 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 (Unsecured, Considered good) 

 Capital Advances (Refer Note No. 34 (ii)) 

  - Related Parties  -    7.91 

  - Parties other than Related Parties  765.01  714.71 

 Total  765.01  722.62 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

9 INVENTORIES

(As taken, valued and cerƟfied by the management)

 Raw Materials  8,389.30  31,625.62 

 Work In Process  2,182.51  2,901.50 

 Finished Goods  993.20  1,705.90 

 Stores & Spares  432.66  189.08 

 Packing Materials  16.78  18.38 

 Intermediates  78.25  169.92 

 Total  12,092.70  36,610.40 

Notes:        
a) The amount wriƩen down for raw materials in Haldia as an expense (included in cost of raw materials consumed) during 

the year is ` 6,323.03 Lacs (P.Y. ` 6,323.03 Lacs) on prudent basis as the plant was shut down since July'15.
b)   For details of inventory pledged as security against secured borrowings refer note 17 (c) & 20 (b)
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(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES
 Unsecured 
- Considered good  51,460.71  62,168.75 
- Considered doubtful  4,104.28  2,657.95 

 55,564.99  64,826.70 
Less: Allowances for expected credit losses  (4,104.28)  (2,657.95)

 51,460.71  62,168.75 
Age analysis of trade receivables
Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding Six months from the date they were 
due for payment.     

 45,963.69  51,131.29 

Other receivables  51,460.72  11,037.46 
Total  51,460.71  62,168.75 

Notes:        
a)  Trade Receivables include ` 853.51 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 1.62 Lacs) due from Related Party and ` 130.09 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 129.68 Lacs)

 due from the Subsidiary.      
b)  For details of book debts pledged as security against secured borrowings refer note 17 (c)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 Cash In Hand (as cerƟfied by the management)  5.56  10.31 
 Balances With Banks 
  - In Current Accounts  1,021.51  673.61 
 Term deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months*  -    180.59 
Total  1,027.07  864.51 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

12 OTHER BANK BALANCES 
 (A) Term Deposits with Banks * 
with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months  10.63  840.14 
with maturity more than 12 months  3.90  3.90 
 (B) Earmarked Balances with Banks  2.65  4.26 
Total  17.18  848.30 

* Held as Margin against Bank guarantee and leƩer of credit.

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
 (Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated) 
Accrued Interest on Deposits  2.28  16.46 
Insurance Claim Receivable  1,902.12  1,902.12 
Export Incentive Receivable:
        Considered Good  43.78  124.85 
        Considered doubtfull  188.99  188.99 
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables  (188.99)  (188.99)
Subsidy/Power Incentive Receivable  4,126.01  4,211.99 
SBI Mutual Fund Receivable  305.17  -   
Total  6,379.36  6,255.42 

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018



Annual Report 2017-18 69

(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

14 OTHER  CURRENT ASSETS
 (Unsecured, Considered Good) 
Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received
 To Related Parties  70.00  50.00 
 To Subsidiary  97.57  320.19 
 To Others  8,296.04  13,851.23 
Balance with statutory/Government authority 2,252.56 5,422.16
Prepaid Expenses  10.58  44.68 
Total  10,726.75  19,688.26 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorised 

1,850.00 lacs (P.Y.: 1,850.00 lacs) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  18,500.00  18,500.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

1,137.76 lacs (P.Y.: 1,137.76 lacs) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  11,377.61  11,377.61 

a)    ReconciliaƟon of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporƟng period

PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
 Nos. (in Lacs)  (` in Lacs)  Nos. (in Lacs)  (` in Lacs)

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the Period  1,137.76  11,377.61  1,137.76  11,377.61 

Issued during the Period  -    -    -    -   

At the end of the Period  1,137.76  11,377.61  1,137.76  11,377.61 

b) Terms/Rights aƩached to Equity Shares       
 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having  a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is 

enƟtled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be enƟtled to 
receive remaining assets of the Company aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amount. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon 
to the number of Equity Shares held by the share holders.     

c) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
No. of Shares 

(in lacs)
% holding No. of Shares 

(in lacs )
% holding

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid

Suanvi Trading and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.  112.38  9.88  112.38  9.88 

Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd  113.60  9.98  113.60  9.98 

Invesco Finance Pvt Ltd  110.39  9.70  110.39  9.70 

Poddar Mech Tech Services Pvt. Ltd.  129.80  11.41  129.80  11.41 

Shreyansh Leafin Pvt. Ltd.  109.93  9.66  109.93  9.66 

Whitestone Suppliers Pvt. Ltd  109.08  9.59  109.08  9.59 
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` in Lacs)

NOTES COMPONENTS Note 
No.

 01-04-
2017 

Movement 
during the 

year 

31-03-
2018

01-04-
2016

Movement 
during the 

year 

31-03-
2017

16 OTHER EQUITY

Capital Reserve a  128.14  -    128.14  128.14  -    128.14 

Securities Premium Account b  42,403.10  -    42,403.10  42,403.10  -    42,403.10 

General Reserve c  450.00  -    450.00  450.00  -    450.00 

Retained Earnings d  (1,13,828.43)  (33,887.13)  (1,47,715.56)  (80,229.21)  (33,599.21)  (1,13,828.43)

Other Comprehensive Income e  (103.09)  (7.33)  (110.42)  (48.33)  (54.76)  (103.09)

 (70,950.28)  (33,894.46)  (1,04,844.74)  (37,296.30)  (33,653.97)  (70,950.28)

(a)  Capital reserve: Capital reserves consists of Deposits forfeited against share warrants 

(b)  SecuriƟes Premium Account: SecuriƟes premium account represents the premium received on issue of shares over and 
above the face value of equity shares. The account is available for uƟlisaƟon in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.       

(c)  General reserve: The general reserve is used from Ɵme to Ɵme to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriaƟon 
purposes.

(d)  Retained earnings: It comprise of accumulated profit/ (loss) of the Company. The movement is on account of ` (33,887.13) 
lacs {P.Y.: ` (33,599.21 Iacs)} profit/ (loss) incurred by the Company.

(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS Non-Current Current
31-03-2018 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

17 BORROWINGS

Borrowings consist of the following:

NON - CURRENT BORROWINGS

Term Loans from Banks (Secured)

Rupee Term Loans  42,852.65  47,737.93  16,081.30  11,196.02 

Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL)  41,148.56  44,185.51  9,110.88  6,073.92 

Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL)  5,688.98  12,167.67  22,675.40  16,196.71 

 89,690.19  1,04,091.11  47,867.58  33,466.65 

Loans from Related Parties (Unsecured)

from Body Corporates  7,280.00  7,280.00  -    -   

 7,280.00  7,280.00  -    -   

Other Loans and Advances

Loans from Body Corporates (Unsecured)  146.56  485.00  -    -   

 146.56  485.00  -    -   

 97,116.75  1,11,856.10  47,867.58  33,466.65 

The above amount includes

Secured Borrowings  89,690.19  1,04,091.11  47,867.58  33,466.65 

Unsecured Borrowings  7,426.56  7,765.00  -    -   

Amount disclosed under the head - "Other Current Financial 
Liabilities" (Refer Note 21)

 (47,867.58)  (33,466.65)

Total  97,116.75  1,11,856.11  -    -   
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NOTE - 17 BORROWINGS (Contd.) 
(` in Lacs)

31-03-2018 01-04-2017

CURRENT BORROWINGS

Working Capital Loans from Banks (Secured)

Rupee Loans  1,13,435.77  1,09,358.59 

Other Loans and Advances

Bridge Loan from WBIDC Ltd. (against interest subsidy receivable)  -    86.14 

SBI Global Factors Limited under factoring facility secured against specific debts  636.28  200.18 

Total  1,14,072.05  1,09,644.91 

(A)  Working Capital Term Loan : 
 Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package (Refer Note 32), the overdrawn porƟon of the Cash Credit Accounts of the 

Company has been carved out into separate Working Capital Term Loans (WCTL).
(B)  Funded Interest Term Loan :      
 Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package (Refer Note 32), funding of interest has been provided for: 
 - Interest on exisƟng term loans for a period of 24 months from the Cut-Off Date i.e. from 1st October, 2013 to 30th 

September, 2015;
 - Interest on WCTL for a period of 24 months from the Cut-Off Date i.e. from 1st October, 2013 to 30th September, 2015;
 - Interest on residual cash credit limit for a period of 9 months from the Cut-Off Date i.e. from 1st October, 2013 to 30th 

June, 2014; 
(C)  Details of security : 
 (i)  In terms of the CDR package, Rupee Term Loans , Working Capital Term Loans, Funded Interest Term Loans and 

Working Capital Loan are pooled together and secured as under:    
  a)  First pari-passu charge on the enƟre Fixed Assets of the Company (excluding value of vehicles), both present 

and future, including equitable mortgage of factory land & building at Bishnupur (West Bengal), Jajpur (Odisha) 
and Haldia (West Bengal). Also, secured by way of mortgage on Freehold land at New Town, District: North 24 
Parganas measuring 50 CoƩahs.

  b)  First pari-passu charge on the enƟre Current Assets of the Company comprised of stock of raw materials, 
semi finished and finished goods and book debts, outstanding moneys, receivables, both present and future 
pertaining to the Company’s manufacturing units/divisions at Bishnupur (West Bengal), Jajpur (Odisha) and 
Haldia (West Bengal) and at other Units.

  c)  Collateral security by equitable mortgage on Land & Building at 1/26, Vidyadhar Nagar, Jaipur, Rajasthan held 
in the name of Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd., Office space measuring 835 sq. Ō. located at Flat no. 21B, 4th Floor, 
Bowbazar, 35, C.R. Avenue, Kolkata-12, held in the name of Mr. S.K.Patni and Flat No. A-52, Block-A, 35, Dr. Abani 
DuƩa Road, Salkia, Howrah, held in the name of Mr. Rohit Patni.  

  d)  Pledge of 100% of the promoter's shares represenƟng 72% of the paid up Capital of the company on pari passu 
basis. 

  e)  Personal Guarantee of the Promoters - Mr. S.K.Patni, Mr. Rohit Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni.
  f)  Corporate Guarantee of the Group Companies - Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd., 

Poddar Mech Tech Services Pvt. Ltd., Invesco Finance Pvt. Ltd. and Suanvi Trading and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.
(D)  Terms of Repayment of Loans :
 (i)  Terms of Repayment of Rupee Term Loans availed for Haldia Project, 33 MVA Furnace and Stainless Steel Plant of the 

Company and Working Capital Term Loan :
  Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package, the exisƟng Rupee Term Loan amounƟng to ` 33,234.93 lacs in respect 

of Haldia Project, 33 MVA Furnace and Stainless Steel Project and Working Capital Term Loan are to be repaid over 
a period of 8 years by way of 32 structured quarterly installments commencing from December 31, 2015 up to 
September 30, 2023 as per the Repayment Schedule given below. Further, such loans carry the interest rate @ 11% 
p.a. linked to the Base Rate of the State Bank of India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG.
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NOTE - 17 BORROWINGS (Contd.) 

Financial Year Quarters Repayment 
per Quarter

Total

2015-2016 2 1.00% 2.00%

2016-2017 4 1.00% 4.00%

2017-2018 4 1.50% 6.00%

2018-2019 4 1.50% 6.00%

2019-2020 4 1.50% 6.00%

2020-2021 4 4.00% 16.00%

2021-2022 4 4.50% 18.00%

2022-2023 4 6.00% 24.00%

2023-2024 2 9.00% 18.00%

Total 32 100.00%

 (ii)  Terms of Repayment of Term Loan availed for 67.5 MVA CapƟve Power Plant project of the Company :
  Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package, the Rupee Term Loan amounƟng to ` 25,699.04 lacs in respect of 

67.5 MVA CapƟve Power Plant is to be repaid by way of  38 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st 
December, 2015 up to  31st March, 2025. Further, the loan carries the interest rate @ 11% p.a. linked to the Base 
Rate of the State Bank of India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG. 

 (iii)  Terms of Repayment of Funded Interest Term Loan : 
  Repayment of FITL is to be made in 18 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 with the 

last installment due on 31st March, 2020. FITL carries interest @11% pa linked to the Base Rate of the State Bank of 
India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG.

 (iv)  Terms of Repayment of Working Capital Loan :
  The rate of interest on the working capital loans from banks is 10.3% linked to the base rate of State Bank of 

India. 
 (v)  Period and Amount of Default as on the Balance Sheet date :

(` in Lacs)

Rupee Term Loan Amount of default as at the 
balance sheet date

(` in Lacs)

Period of default

 Principal 
Repayment 

 Interest (Net 
of Reversals) 

ALLAHABAD BANK  1,585.00  486.88 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 
2015 to 31st March 2018

CANARA BANK  275.16  696.26 
EXIM BANK  1,068.00  2,505.52 
STATE BANK OF INDIA  6,902.56  228.91 
UNITED BANK OF INDIA  1,365.30  597.65 
TOTAL  11,196.02  4,515.22 
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Rupee Term Loan Amount of default as at the 
balance sheet date

(` in Lacs)

Period of default

 Principal 
Repayment 

 Interest (Net 
of Reversals) 

WORKING CAPITAL TERM LOAN 
ALLAHABAD BANK  176.16  106.00 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 
2015 to 31st March 2018

ANDHRA BANK  142.92  362.97 
BANK OF BARODA  534.00  -   
CENTAL BANK OF INDIA  27.72  (0.00)
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK  515.04  -   
STATE BANK OF INDIA  2,900.52  (48.82)
UNITED BANK OF INDIA  1,427.76  1,262.54 
UCO BANK  349.80  305.79 
Total  6,073.92  1,988.48 

FUNDED INTEREST TERM LOAN 
ALLAHABAD BANK  1,210.99  28.57 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 
2015 to 31st March 2018

ANDHRA BANK  242.20  147.20 
BANK OF BARODA  699.93  -   
CANARA BANK  279.97  171.68 
CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA  157.21  (19.05)
EXIM BANK  1,079.34  506.33 
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK  902.69  1.00 
STATE BANK OF INDIA  8,270.28  148.96 
UNITED BANK OF INDIA  2,941.93  557.16 
UCO BANK  412.18  105.16 
TOTAL  16,196.72  1,647.01 
WORKING CAPITAL LOAN 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 
2015 to 31st March 2018

ALLAHABAD BANK (CC)    -  771.31 
ANDHRA BANK (CC)    -  1,126.45 
BANK OF BARODA (CC)    -  248.67 
CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA (CC)    -  (28.63)
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK  (CC)    -  131.20 
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK  (OD)    -  (86.19)
STATE BANK OF INDIA (CC)    -  389.76 
UNITED BANK OF INDIA (CC)    -  1,091.78 
UCO BANK (CC)    -  338.88 
UCO BANK (OD)    -  29.91 
TOTAL    -  4,013.15 
GRAND TOTAL 33,466.66  12,163.86 

The above disclosure is as per provision made in books. The unprovided liability in respect of interest on non-current and current 
borrowings amounƟng to ` 61,88.56 Lacs as per notes no. 47 also conƟnued to be in default. 
 (vi)  Pursuant to CDR Package, the Company has received unsecured loans amounƟng to ` 7,280 lacs from promoters 

& promoter group companies as promoter's contribuƟon, to be converted into equity. Subsequently, with the 
invocaƟon of SDR, the said amount of ` 7,280 lacs was allowed to be converted into equity at par.  Since the SDR has 
been kept in abeyance no allotment has been made by the company. 

NOTE - 17 BORROWINGS (Contd.)  (` in Lacs)
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 (vii)  Unsecured Loan from Body Corporates (Other than related parƟes) aggregaƟng to ` 146.56 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 485.01 Lacs) 
are interest free. Such loans are repayable at the opƟon of the Company and are stated by the management to be 
in the nature of Long term borrowings.

(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

18 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Liability for Accrued Expenses  -    99.96 

Total  -    99.96 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
 Deferred tax liabiliƟes  15,100.25  12,611.65 
 Deferred tax assets (77,633.06) (45,266.90) 
 Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)  (62,532.81)  (32,655.25)

2017-18
Deferred tax liabiliƟes/(assets) in relaƟon to:

Opening 
balance 

 Recognised in 
Statement of 
Profit & Loss 

 Closing 
Balance 

 Provision for doubƞul debts and advances/other write offs   2,846.94  1,446.33  4,293.27 
 Property, plant & equipment (PPE)  9,764.71  1,042.28  10,806.98 
 Unabsorbed Depreciation  (8,552.47) (4,416.35) (12,968.82) 
 Unabsorbed business Loss  (36,714.43) (27,949.81) (64,664.24) 
 Total  (32,655.25)  (29,877.56)  (62,532.81)

2016-17
Deferred tax liabiliƟes/(assets) in relaƟon to:

Opening 
balance

 Recognised in 
Statement of 
Profit & Loss 

 Closing 
Balance 

 Provision for doubƞul debts and advances/other write offs   -    2,846.94  2,846.94 
 Property, plant & equipment (PPE)  9,018.78  745.93  9,764.71 
 Unabsorbed Depreciation  (6,960.60) (1,591.86) (8,552.47) 
 Unabsorbed business Loss  (28,346.37) (8,368.06) (36,714.43) 
 Total  (26,288.19)  (6,367.06)  (32,655.25)

Net Deferred Tax Asset has not been recognised as a maƩer of Prudence, in accordance with the Ind AS-12 (Income Taxes) issued 
by The InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India.

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

20 TRADE PAYABLES

 Due to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises [Refer Note (a) below]  -    -   

 Due to others  21,773.95  37,683.85 
 Total  21,773.95  37,683.85 

a. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more 
than 45 days as at 31st March 2018. This informaƟon as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parƟes have been idenƟfied on the basis of 
informaƟon available with the Company.

b. Trade Payables include ` 5,731.33 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 5,531.51 Lacs) against pledge of stock of raw materials.
c. Trade Payables include ` 2.23 lacs (P.Y.: ` 9.57  lacs) due to related parƟes. (Refer Note No. 40).

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
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NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

21 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
 Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 17)  47,867.58  33,466.65 
 Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings  8,830.45  6,710.57 
 Unclaimed Dividend *  2.65  4.26 
 Other Payables 
     For Capital Goods   1,850.65  2,426.06 
     For Accrued Expenses & Others  881.38  1,128.55 
 Total  59,432.71  43,736.09 

* An amount  of ` 1.61 lacs  (P.Y.: ` 1.88 lacs) has been transferred during the year to Investor EducaƟon & ProtecƟon Fund.

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

22 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

 Tax Liabilities: 

 -Provision For Taxation  871.17  871.17 

 Tax Assets: 

  -Income Tax Payments (Including TDS)  (458.58)  (441.55)

  -Income Tax Refundable  (23.10)  (22.68)

 Total  389.49  406.94 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

23 OTHER LIABILITIES

Non Current

Deferred Government Grant  97.86  106.03 

 97.86  106.03 

Current

 Advance from Parties  3,860.78  6,615.14 

 Deferred Government Grant  8.15  8.15 

 Liabilities against statutory dues  2,125.10  2,916.47 

 5,994.03  9,539.76 

Total Other Liabilities  6,091.89  9,645.79 
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(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
 Sale of Products 
 Sale of Manufactured Goods 
      Export Sales  3,959.25  5,673.73 
      Domestic Sales  67,481.75  61,939.90 
 Sale of Raw Materials  1,576.97  3,650.56 
 Sale of Traded Goods 
      Domestic Sales    -  325.52 

 73,017.97  71,589.71 
 Other Operating Revenues 
 Export Incentives   120.78  824.47 
Total  73,138.75  72,414.18 

Note: 
Revenue from OperaƟons for the year is not comparable with previous year since sales are net of GST whereas in previous year 
sales were gross of excise duty. 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

25 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
  - On Credit Sales    -  11.85 
  - On Fixed Deposits  9.64  85.47 
  - Other Deposits  136.86  367.67 
  - On loan/ advances to subsidary  88.99  83.90 
Sundry Balances WriƩen Back  171.09  4.00 
Lease Rent Received  5.76  3.60 
Miscellaneous Income  21.55  59.20 
Insurance Claim Received  0.02  0.31 
AmorƟsaƟon of Deferred Government Grant  8.18  8.13 
Changes in Fair Value of Mutual Funds    -  24.40 
Total  442.09  648.53 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

26 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(including cost of Raw Materials sold)
Opening Stock of Raw Materials (including intermediates)  31,795.54  57,367.53 
Purchases during the year (including freight)  43,555.93  42,084.58 
  75,351.47  99,452.11 
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials  8,389.30  31,625.62 
Cost of Raw Materials consumed  66,962.17  67,826.49 
Less: Closing Stock of Intermediates  78.25  169.92 
 Cost of Materials consumed   66,883.92  67,656.57 

Note: 
Raw Material consumed includes ` 6,323.03 Lacs (P.Y. ` 6,323.03 Lacs) on account of amount write down of raw material in 
Haldia plant on prudent basis as the Haldia plant was shut down since July'15. 
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(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

27 PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE

Iron and Steel Products    -  288.24 

   -  288.24 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

28 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

 Opening Stock  

 Finished Goods  903.96  306.24 

 Ferro Alloys  801.94  649.92 

 Iron & Steel Products 

 Work-In-Progress  2,607.62  3,205.68 

 Ferro Alloys  293.89  1,428.94 

 Iron & Steel Products 

 4,607.41  5,590.78 

 Closing Stock 

 Finished Goods 

 Ferro Alloys  425.25  903.96 

 Iron & Steel Products  567.96  801.94 

 Work-In-Progress 

 Ferro Alloys  1,686.46  2,607.62 

 Iron & Steel Products  496.04  293.89 

 3,175.71  4,607.41 

 1,431.70  983.37 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Allowances  1,319.16  1,189.79 

 Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  84.23  68.25 

 Gratuity [Refer Note 38]  34.65  24.92 

 Directors' Remuneration  49.68  30.50 

 Welfare Expenses  19.05  28.15 

 1,506.77  1,341.61 

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

30 FINANCE COSTS

 Interest Expense 

     To Banks (Refer Note 47)  4,261.25 (2,131.67) 

     To Others  721.26  144.65 

 Other Borrowing Costs  340.69  121.01 

 5,323.20 (1,866.01) 
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(` in Lacs)

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

31 OTHER EXPENSES
Labour Charges  1,754.54  1,423.75 
Power & Fuel  16,375.12  16,183.75 
Water Supply Charges  115.14  64.10 
Stores, Spares and Consumables  4,026.92  4,058.69 
Packing Materials  12.34  49.05 
Material Handling Expenses  441.24  409.86 
Excise Duty on Variation in Stock [Refer Note (a) below]    -  75.61 
Repairs 
- To Factory Shed & Building  21.68  30.74 
- To Plant & Machinery  88.86  72.63 
Rent  22.68  23.29 
Rates & Taxes  13.04  45.75 
Electricity Expenses  17.07  14.13 
Insurance  72.56  111.98 
Printing and Stationery  8.76  12.22 
Postage and Courier  6.34  8.80 
Telephone Charges  27.67  43.48 
Travelling & Conveyance  86.33  103.10 
Car Running and Maintenance  53.90  55.73 
Other Repairs and Maintenance  62.82  51.68 
Security Service Charges  183.32  175.19 
Membership and Subscription  6.48  8.35 
Internal Audit Fees  2.00  2.50 
Legal and Professional Charges  160.11  104.37 
Auditors' Remuneration [Refer Note Below (b)]  15.37  14.50 
Directors' Sitting Fees  1.18  1.40 
Miscellaneous Expenses  71.53  144.50 
Short Realisation/ Loss on sale of DEPB  6.71  233.30 
Testing & Inspection Charges  17.91  20.80 
Donations  3.11  2.28 
Advertisement & Sales Promotion  44.88  58.40 
Freight & Forwarding on Export  122.99  178.29 
Transportation & Delivery Charges  1,619.80  1,582.57 
Commission on Sales  44.13  88.52 
Corporate Social Responsibility  5.60  2.82 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets    -  10.20 
Short Recovery & Damages    -  3.88 
Sundry Balances Written Off  55.25  116.66 
Allowances for expected credit losses  1,446.33  2,657.95 
Allowances for doubtful export incentives    -  188.99 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss  144.57  6.94 

 27,158.28  28,440.76 

 a) Amount of excise duty on variaƟon in stock represents differenƟal excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished 
goods.
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NOTE - 31 OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.) (` in Lacs)

b) Auditors' RemuneraƟon: 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
 i)   As Statutory Auditor [includes tax audit fees of ` 2.00 Lacs (P.Y. ` 2.00 Lacs)]  10.00  10.00 
 ii)  For TaxaƟon maƩers 0.10 - 
 iii) For Other services  5.27 4.50
 Total  15.37  14.50 

32 CORPORATE DEBT RESTRUCTURING 
 During the year 2013-14 , at the request of the Company, the Corporate Debt Restructuring Proposal (CDR Proposal) was 

referred to CDR Empowered Group (CDR EG) by the consorƟum of lenders led by State Bank of India (SBI). The CDR Propos-
al as recommended by SBI was approved by CDR EG on 24th March, 2014 and communicated vide LeƩer of Approval dated 
28th March, 2014, as amended / modified from Ɵme to Ɵme. Under CDR package, the Company’s debts were restructured 
/ rescheduled and addiƟonal credit faciliƟes have been sancƟoned as set out in the said LeƩer of Approval. The cut off date 
for CDR package was 30th September, 2013 and upon implementaƟon, the financial effect thereof has been duly taken 
into accounts.

 The CDR Package includes reliefs / measures such as reducƟon in interest rates, funding of interest, rearrangement of 
securiƟes etc. The key features of the CDR Proposal are as follows:

 (i)  Repayment of Rupee Term Loans (RTL) (except term loan for CapƟve Power Plant of the Company) aŌer moratorium 
of 2 years from the cut-off date in 32 structured quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 
30th September, 2023.

 (ii)  Repayment of Rupee Term Loans for CapƟve Power Plant of the Company aŌer moratorium of 2 years from the cut-
off date in 38 structured quarterly installments commencing from  31st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2025.

 (iii)  Conversion of various irregular/outstanding/devolved financial faciliƟes into Working Capital Term Loan (‘WCTL’). 
Repayment of WCTL aŌer moratorium period of 2 years from cut-off date in 32 structured quarterly installments 
commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 30th September, 2023.

 (iv)  Restructuring of exisƟng fund based and non fund based financial faciliƟes.
 (v)  Interest on RTL and WCTL during the moratorium period of 2 years from cut-off date and interest on Cash Credit 

limit for a period of 9 months from the cut-off date shall be converted to FITL. Repayment of FITL would be done in 
18 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2020.

 (vi)  The rate of interest on RTL, WCTL, FITL and Fund Based Working Capital FaciliƟes shall be 11% (linked to the base 
rate of SBI) with the right to reset the rate of the Term loan(s) and FITL every year with the approval of CDR-EG.

 (vii)  Waiver of penal interest for irregulariƟes in the Cash Credit accounts for the period from cut-off date to the date of 
implementaƟon of the package.

 (viii)  ContribuƟon of ` 5,664 lacs in the Company by the promoters in lieu of bank sacrifices and ` 8,577 lacs to meet the 
addiƟonal cost over run towards the CapƟve Power plant project of the Company. The contribuƟon is to be brought 
iniƟally in the form of unsecured loan by 30th September, 2014 and the same is to be converted into equity by 30th 
June, 2015.

 (ix)  The CDR Package as well as the provisions of the Master Circular on Corporate Debt Restructuring issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India, gives a right to the CDR Lenders to get a recompense of their waivers and sacrifices made as 
part of the CDR Proposal. The recompense payable by the Company is conƟngent on various factors, the outcome 
of which currently is materially uncertain and hence the proporƟonate amount payable as recompense has been 
treated as a conƟngent liability. The aggregate present value of the outstanding sacrifice made/ to be made by CDR 
Lenders as per the CDR package is approximately ` 69,987 lacs.

(` in Lacs)

NOTES PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year  1,137.76  1,137.76 
Number of Shares considered as weighted average shares and potential shares 
outstanding for calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share (Refer Note below)

 1,137.76  1,137.76 

Profit after Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (` in Lacs)  (33,887.13)  (33,599.21)
Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares (`)  10.00  10.00 
Earnings Per Share (Basic) (`)  (29.78)  (29.53)
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (`)  (29.78)  (29.53)
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NOTE - 33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd.)

Notes : Pursuant to CDR Package, the Company has received unsecured loans amounƟng to ` 7,131 Lacs from promoters 
& promoter companies as promoter's contribuƟon, to be converted into equity by 30th June, 2015, at such price as will be 
determined in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons. Pending approval & 
determinaƟon of price by SEBI, the same has not been considered in the calculaƟon of EPS.

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
 (i) ConƟngent LiabiliƟes not provided for in the books of accounts in respect of :
  (a)   Bills discounted, outstanding as on 31st March, 2018 - ` NIL (P.Y.: ` NIL)
  (b) Corporate Guarantee to Indian Overseas Bank, Hongkong to secure the financial assistance to SKP Overseas 

Pte Ltd, a Wholly Owned Subsidary. Amount payable by SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. to Indian Overseas Bank, 
Hongkong as on 31st March 2018 is USD. 6.06 Million (P.Y.:USD. 6.06 Million).

  (c)  Right of Recompense to CDR Lenders for the relief and sacrifice extended, subject to provisions of CDR 
Guidelines, amounƟng to ` 69,987 lacs (Refer Note 32)

  (d) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt: (` in Lacs)

31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Disputed Excise Duty under appeal  1,997.28  1,927.74 
Service Tax  380.52  42.39 
Disputed Sales Tax/ VAT under appeal  5,452.31  1,616.46 
Disputed VAT Refund claim under appeal  -    1,305.99 
Disputed Entry Tax under appeal  51.42  51.42 
Disputed Entry Tax Refund claim under appeal  103.97  103.97 
Disputed Provident Fund demand under appeal  1.80  1.80 
Customs  540.35  540.35 
Income Tax  6,436.61  3,407.66 
Dispute with parƟes not acknowledged as debt  2,995.61  3,067.38 

 (ii) EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for (Net of Advances)- 
` 1,574.33 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 1,402.36 Lacs). 

35 The current and non-current assets, in the opinion of the management, have a value on realizaƟon in the ordinary course 
of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the accounts. Adequate provisions have been made 
for all known losses and liabiliƟes. 

36 Certain Balances of the sundry creditors, sundry debtors, unsecured loans and advances are subject to confirmaƟon 
and reconciliaƟon. The reported financials might have consequenƟal impact once the reconciliaƟon is completed, the 
quantum where of remains unascertained. Advance from ParƟes includes ` 198.62 lacs (P.Y.: ` 1,249.64 lacs) being certain 
receipts lying under suspense account in absence of informaƟon as to the credits in the bank account.

37 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
 Research and Development expenses aggregaƟng to ` NIL ( P.Y.: ` 0.35 Lacs) in the nature of revenue expenditure have 

been included under the appropriate account heads.
38 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 a. Defined benefits - Gratuity
  The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme for its employees in India is a defined benefit plan (unfunded). 
  The Company provides for gratuity from employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees 

who are in conƟnuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 
reƟrement/ terminaƟon is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proporƟonately for 15 days 
salary mulƟplied for the number of years of completed service.

  The present value of obligaƟon is determined based on the actuarial valuaƟon using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method as on 31st March, 2017 which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to addiƟonal unit of employee 
benefit enƟtlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligaƟon. The Company’s gratuity 
expense is recognized under the head – “Employee Benefit Expense” in Note 29.
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  These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, liquidity risk, salary 
escalaƟon risk and regulatory risk.

 b.  Defined Benefit Plan:                                             (` in Lacs) 

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
ReconciliaƟon of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit ObligaƟon and the 
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Present Value of funded obligaƟon at the end of the year  231.13  187.42 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  206.18  123.46 
Net Asset /( Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

 (i)  ReconciliaƟon of Opening and Closing balances of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit ObligaƟon :   

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
(a) Balance at the beginning of the year  187.42  154.69 
(b) Current service cost  28.03  21.78 
(c) Interest cost  14.05  12.37 
(d) Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- financial assumptions  (9.10)  22.29 
- experience adjustment  16.42  32.47 

(e) Past Service Cost  1.83  -   
(f) Benefits paid  (7.53)  (56.17)
Balance at the end of the year  231.13  187.42 

 (ii)  Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets and reconciliaƟon thereof:                                                               

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
(a) Balance at the beginning of the year  123.46  115.40 
(b) Interest income  9.25  9.23 
(c) Remeasurements due to: 
     Actual return on plan asset less interest on plan asset

 -    -   

(d) ContribuƟons by the employer  81.00  55.00 
(e) Benefits paid  (7.53)  (56.17)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the close of the year  206.18  123.46 

 (iii)  Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet including a reconciliaƟon of the present value of the defined obligaƟon 
in (i) and the fair value of the plan assets in (ii) to assets and liabiliƟes recognised in the Balance Sheet :

                                                                

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Present value of defined benefit obligaƟon  (231.13)  (187.42)
Fair value of plan assets  206.18  123.46 
Net defined benefit obligaƟons in the Balance Sheet  (24.95)  (63.97)

 (iv)  Amount recognised in the Profit and Loss Account are as follows :           

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Current service cost  28.03  21.78 
Interest cost  4.79  3.14 
Past Service Cost  1.83  -   
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss  34.65  24.92 
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 (v)  Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income                           (` in Lacs) 

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Actuarial loss (gain) arising on defined benefit obligaƟon from 
- financial assumpƟons  (9.10)  22.29 
- experience adjustment  16.42  32.47 
Actual return on plan asset less interest on plan asset  -    -   
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income  7.33  54.76 

 (vi)  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligaƟon

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Within the next 12 months  18.50  10.34 
Between 1 and 5 years  36.13  30.22 
Between 5 and 10 years  98.81  72.75 
More than 10 years  649.29  536.39 

 (vii)  SensiƟvity analysis      
  Significant actuarial assumpƟons for the deteminaƟon of the defined benefit obligaƟon are discount rate,expected 

salary increase and mortality.The sensiƟvity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible 
changes of the assumpƟons occurring at the end of the reporƟng period,while holding all other assumpƟons 
constant. The results of sensiƟvity analysis is given below:

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Defined benefit obligaƟon on discount rate plus 100 basis points  204.22  164.60 
Defined benefit obligaƟon on salary growth rate plus 100 basis points  263.67  214.21 
Attrition Rate(+50%)  233.78  189.18 
Mortality Rate(+10%)  231.27  187.52 
Defined benefit obligation on discount rate minus 100 basis points  263.57  215.09 
Defined benefit obligation on salary growth rate minus 100 basis points  203.68  164.58 
Attrition Rate(-50%)  228.18  185.45 
Mortality Rate(-10%)  231.00  187.33 

 (viii)  Broad Categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of Total Assets as at 31st March, 2018                                   

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Qualifying Insurance Policy 100% 100%

 (ix)  Actuarial assumpƟons

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
a. Discount Rate 7.80% 8.00%
b. Salary EscalaƟon Rate 6.50% 6.00%
c. Mortality Rate (% of IALM 06-08) 100.00% 100.00%

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS
 A.  Basis of segmentaƟon      
  An operaƟng segment is a component of the Company that engages in business acƟviƟes from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transacƟons with any of the Company's 
other components, and for which discrete financial informaƟon is available. All operaƟng segments' operaƟng 
results are reviewed regularly by the Company's management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segments and assess their performance.      

  The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which is the Company's strategic business units. 
These business units are managed separately because they require different technology and markeƟng strategies. 
For these business units, the Company's management reviews internal reports on at least a quarterly basis.
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  The following summary describes the operaƟons in each of the Company's reportable segments:

Reportable segment OpearƟons
Ferro Alloys and Minerals Manufacturing
Iron and Steel Manufacturing

 B.  InformaƟon about reportable segments      
  InformaƟon regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on 

segment profit (before tax), as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company's 
CEO. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such informaƟon is the most 
relevant in evaluaƟng the results of certain segments relaƟve to other enƟƟes that operate within these industries. 
Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

(` in Lacs) 

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Segment Revenue
Ferro Alloys and Minerals  47,117.76  53,631.55 
Iron and Steel  33,846.23  24,418.79 
Inter Segment Revenue  (7,825.24)  (5,636.15)
Total  73,138.75  72,414.18 

(` in Lacs) 

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Segment Results (Profit before Finance Cost & Tax)
Ferro Alloys and Minerals  (22,896.39)  (16,015.90)
Iron and Steel  (5,878.53)  (19,796.22)
Unallocated  210.99  347.10 
Total  (28,563.93)  (35,465.22)
Finance Cost  5,323.20  (1,866.01)
Exceptional Items  -    -   
Profit before tax  (33,887.13)  (33,599.21)
Less: Income Tax  -    -   
Profit after tax  (33,887.13)  (33,599.21)

Other informaƟon
Year Ended Assets LiabiliƟes Capital 

Expenditure
DepreciaƟon Non-cash Exps 

(other than 
DepreciaƟon)

Ferro Alloys and Minerals 31-03-2018  1,59,954.54  38,466.53  15.80  2,954.66  -   
31-03-2017  1,81,914.22  26,261.03  1,213.83  2,997.38  -   

Iron and Steel 31-03-2018  37,249.08  (7,712.41)  -    419.41  -   
31-03-2017  63,114.02  24,549.56  -    420.77  -   

Unallocated 31-03-2018  8,206.09  871.17  -    -    -   
31-03-2017  8,473.39  871.17  -    -    -   

Total (31-03-2018)  2,05,409.71  31,625.29  15.80  3,374.07  -   
Total (31-03-2017)  2,53,501.63  51,681.75  1,213.83  3,418.15  -   
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Secondary segment informaƟon (geographical segment) (` in Lacs)

Segment Period External 
revenue by 
locaƟon of 
customers

Carrying amount 
of segment assets 

by locaƟon of 
assets

Cost incurred 
on acquisiƟon 
of tangible and 
intangible fixed 

assets
Within India  Year ended 31-03-2018  69,179.50  1,95,884.95  15.80 

 Year ended 31-03-2017  66,740.45  2,46,566.31  1,213.83 
Outside India  Year ended 31-03-2018  3,959.25  9,524.76  -   

 Year ended 31-03-2017  5,673.73  6,935.32  -   
Total Year ended 31-03-2018  73,138.75  2,05,409.71  15.80 

Year ended 31-03-2017  72,414.18  2,53,501.63  1,213.83 
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1. Related ParƟ es where control exists 1. SKP Overseas PTE Ltd. - Wholly Owned Subsidiary
2. PT Bara Prima Mandiri - Subsidiary of SKP Overseas 

PTE Ltd.

2(a) Key Managerial Personnel 1. Mr. Ankit Patni - Managing Director
2. Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni - Non-ExecuƟve Director
3. Mr. Ankit Jain - Independent Director
4. Mr. Ravindra Kumar Mehra - Independent Director
5. Mrs. Sujata Agarwal - Independent Director
6. Mr. Ankit Rungta - Independent Director
7. Mr. Parama BhaƩaraka Lahiri - Nominee Director
8. Mr. Vipul Jain - Chief Financial Officer
9. Mr. Anil Prasad Shaw - Company Secretary

(b) Enterprises in which director is interested 1. M/s. Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.
2. M/s. Impex Fero Tech Ltd.
3. M/s. Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.
4. M/s. Relybulls Stock Broking Pvt. Ltd.
5. M/s. Relybulls DerivaƟves and 
CommodiƟes Pvt. Ltd.

(c) Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by the Key managerial Personnel 
or their relaƟves

1. M/s. Nucore Exports Pvt. Ltd.
2. M/s. Arthodock Vinimay Pvt. Ltd.
3. M/s. Gajkarna Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.
4. M/s. SBM Steels Pvt. Ltd.
5. M/s. Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd.
6. M/s. Relybulls Stock Broking Pvt. Ltd.
7. M/s. Relybulls DerivaƟves and 
CommodiƟes Pvt. Ltd.
8. M/s. SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.
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(d)    Related Party TransacƟon taken place during the year                                                                                                (` in Lacs)
Nature of TransacƟons 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Interest Received on Loan
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd.  88.99  83.90 
Purchases
Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.  66.14  2,498.94 
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.                             24.86  219.65 
Sales of Goods
Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  -    303.64 
Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.  86.02  3,337.64 
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.                             24.89  218.02 
DEPB/Focus Licence Sold
Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.  11.25  26.34 
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.                             42.88  96.80 
Lease Rent Received
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd  4.09  3.60 
Re-imbursement of Security Service Charges
Marble Arch ProperƟes Pvt.Ltd.  7.50  -   
Rent Paid
Marble Arch ProperƟes Pvt.Ltd.  6.15  6.90 
Security Deposit Received
Sarita Patni  1.00  -   
Managerial RemuneraƟon
 Ankit Patni  24.00  13.80 
 R.K. Burnwal  25.68  16.26 
Siƫng Fees
Suresh Kumar Patni  0.25  0.20 
Ankit Patni  -    0.03 

e)  Outstanding Balances

Nature of TransacƟons 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Trade Payables/ Payables for Accrued Expenses
Marble Arch ProperƟes Pvt.Ltd.  2.23  9.57 
Trade Receivables
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.                             102.05  1.62 
Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.  633.65  -   
Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  117.81  -   
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd.  130.09  129.68 
Loan Given *
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd.  1,572.14  1,255.54 
* Including accrued interest 

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

NOTE - 40 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND ACCOUNTING STANDARD-24 (Contd.)



Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited86

Nature of TransacƟons 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Loan Taken
Suanvi Trading & Investment Co.Pvt. Ltd  150.00  150.00 
Shreyansh Leafin Pvt. Ltd.  1,498.50  1,498.50 
Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.  1,613.00  1,613.00 
Whitestone Suppliers Pvt.Ltd.  1,467.00  1,467.00 
Gajkarna Merchandise Pvt Ltd.  1,459.00  1,459.00 
Astabhuja ProperƟes Pvt. Ltd.  1,010.50  1,010.50 
Poddar Mech Tech Services Pvt. Ltd.   82.00  82.00 
Advances / Deposits Given
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.                             -    7.91 
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd.  97.57  320.19 
Sarita Steel & Power Ltd.  70.00  50.00 
Investment in Equity Shares
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd.  7,724.41  7,724.41 
Advances / Deposits taken
Sarita Patni  1.00  -   
Managerial RemuneraƟon
Ankit Patni  37.80  13.80 
Security Deposit
Marble Arch Properties Pvt. Ltd.  -    168.00 

Term Loans, Working Capital Term Loan, Funded Interest Term Loans and Working Capital FaciliƟes from banks are secured by 
way of Corporate Guarantee of the Related ParƟes - Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd., Poddar Mech 
Tech Services Pvt. Ltd., Invesco Finance Pvt. Ltd. and Suanvi Trading and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. and Personal Guarantee of the 
Promoters - Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni, Mr. Rohit Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni.
Corporate Guarantee to Indian Overseas Bank, Hongkong has been given to secure the financial assistance to SKP Overseas Pte. 
Ltd. Amount payable by SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd. to Indian Overseas Bank, Hongkong as on 31st March, 2018 is USD. 6.06 Million 
(P.Y. USD. 6.06 Million).      

41      INFORMATION PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 32 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENTS WITH STOCK EXCHANGES

NOTES ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017 Maximum
balance during

the current year

Maximum
balance during

the previous year

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
subsidiary companies*
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd.  1,572.14  1,255.54  1,572.14  1,426.69 
(*Including accured interest)
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42 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:                                                                                                                  (` in Lacs)
NOTES ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Earnings in Foreign Currency:
F.O.B. Value of Exports  3,920.77  5,599.81 
Interest on Loan to Subsidiary  88.99  83.90 
Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Travelling & Conveyance  2.58  16.94 
Membership & Subscription  4.03  3.96 
Interest on Purchase  -    6.82 
Commission on Sales  27.70  18.31 
CIF Value of Imports:
Raw Materials  4,660.68  5,145.02 
Stores & Spares  30.73  53.85 

43 AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE / PAYABLE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

a. Forward contracts/ hedging instruments outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are ` Nil (P.Y. ` Nil)  

b. ParƟculars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the year end are as follows:    

Nature (Nos.) of Contract Currency 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
a) Amount receivable in foreign currency EURO  -    -   
a) Amount receivable in foreign currency USD  3.88 11.85
b) Amount payable in foreign currency EURO  0.20  0.19 
c) Amount payable in foreign currency USD  40.36 16.55

44.  The lenders have communicated to go for  change in management by indenƟfying an investor who will acquire the shares 
held by the promoters in RFTL. A Deed of Undertaking has been executed by RFTL and its promoters in this regard.  On 
ExecuƟon of the Deed of Undertaking, the Lenders have invited bids from prospecƟve investors by way of sale of equity 
stake held by the promoters of the Company and the same is in process.The maƩer is subjudice in the Kolkata High Court.

45.  The Company's Factory at Haldia (West Bengal) is suspended since 1st July, 2015 on account of depressed domesƟc 
and global market condiƟons in steel industry and excess procurement cost of Electricity. Robbery/Damages to certain 
properƟes had occurred and the Company had filed insurance claim which is under process. The claim seƩlement is 
currently under process. The financial impact of such insurance claim (Buglary/Robbery) on the reported financial year 
remains unascertained and unquanƟfied. 

46.  The operaƟons of the company was severely impacted by weak steel industry scenario and  lack of demand for company’s 
finished product. The company has incurred loss of ` 33,894.46 Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2018 and accumulated 
loss as on 31st March 2018 is ` 147,825.98 Lacs which is in excess of the enƟre net worth of the company. The company 
has conƟnuous support from the promoters and has put in place measures for revival and cost reducƟon. Considering the 
iniƟaƟve of the company and given the emerging scenario of steel industry with noƟficaƟon of Minimum Support Price in 
India, the management is of view of foreseeable future about the operaƟons of the company and accordingly the financial 
statements have been prepared under Going Concern basis. 

47.  The lenders have stopped charging interest on debts, since the dues from the company have been categorised as Non 
Performing Asset. Pending finalizaƟon of the restructuring plan, the company has not provided accrued interest in its books 
as the account has been declared NPA by the respecƟve lenders. The amount of interest not so provided for the year ended 
31st March 2018 stands at ` 29,797.16 Lacs. Penal interest and charges thereof (amount remaining unassertained) has not 
been provided for. The unprovided liability in respect of interest on long term and short term borrowings as on 31st March, 
2018 amounted to ` 61,188.56 Lacs. The same have consequenƟal impact on the reported figures.  

48.  The Company has not made any remiƩance in foreign currencies on account of dividend during the year and does not have 
informaƟon as to the extent to which remiƩance in foreign currencies on account of dividends have been made on behalf 
of non – resident shareholders.
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49.  Financial risk management 

 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

 (i)  Credit risk 

 (ii)  Liquidity risk

 (iii)  Market risk

Risk management framework       

The Company's principal financial liabiliƟes comprises of borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these 
financial liabiliƟes is to finance the Company operaƟons. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other 
receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operaƟons.

The Company’s acƟviƟes expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimise potenƟal adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. 
The Company uses derivaƟve financial instruments to miƟgate foreign exchange related risk exposures. The Company's exposure 
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characterisƟc of each customer and the concentraƟon of risk from the top few 
customers. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to idenƟfy and analyse the 
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. 
Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condiƟons and the 
Company’s acƟviƟes.  

This note presents informaƟon about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objecƟves, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk.

(i)  Credit risk        

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligaƟons, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans. In addiƟon, credit risk 
arises from finance guarantees.Company's credit risk arises principally from the trade receivables and cash & cash equivalents.

Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the company through credit approvals establishing credit limits and conƟnously 
monitoring the credit worthiness of the customers to whom the credit is extended in the normal course of business.The 
concentraƟon of credit risk is limited due the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.The company esƟmates the 
Expected Credit Losses on the basis of its evaluaƟon of each case.Provision is being made as per company's expected credit 
policy in the manner menƟoned below;
Overdue for more than 1 year but not more than 2 years: 5% 
Overdue for more than 2 years but not more than 4 years: 15%
Overdue for more than 4 years: 50%
followed by further provision on year to year basis based on the management evaluaƟon of each case. 
Credit risks from balances with banks are managed in accordance with the Company's policy.

Exposure to credit risks 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk as of 31st March, 2018 and 31st March, 2017 are as follows: (` in Lacs)

ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Cash and cash equivalents  1,027.07  864.51 
Other Bank balances  17.18  848.30 
Loans and other receivables  18,760.44  18,734.12 
Trade accounts and notes receivable, net  51,460.71  62,168.75 
Total  71,265.40  82,615.68 
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(` in Lacs)

The ageing of trade accounts and notes receivable as of 31st March, 2018 and 31st March, 2017 are as follows: 

ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Not Due  -    -   
Over due but less than 3 month  19,133.62  10,176.75 
3 months - 12 months  942.83  1,721.31 
over 12 months  31,384.26  50,270.69 

Trade receivables are primarily unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk is managed through 
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and by conƟnuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the 
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of 
expected credit loss on trade receivables using a provision matrix to miƟgate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate 
provisions at each reporƟng date whenever is for longer period and involves higher risk.

Movement in impairment loss account is as follows:

ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Balance at the beginning  2,657.95  -   
Impairment loss recognised/ reversed  1,446.33  2,657.95 
Amounts written-back  -    -   
Balance at the end  4,104.28  2,657.95 

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable 
price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's finance team is 
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, Processes and policies related to such risks 
are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the 
basis of expected cash flows. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity, subject to its restructuring proposals, to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions. 

In the opinion of the management, the company's cash flow from business, borrowing or financing would be sufficient to meet 
the cash requiments for its operation with support of its lenders. 

Exposure to liquidity risk       

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date 
based on contractual undiscounted payments.

31-03-2018 Less than 1 
year

1-5 years > 5 years Total

Borrowings  1,13,533.42  54,656.17  42,999.21  2,11,188.80 
Trade payables  21,773.95  -    -    21,773.95 
Other non - current financial liabiliƟes  -    -    -    -   
Other current financial liabilities (Including current 
maturities of borrowings)

 59,432.71  -    -    59,432.71 

31-03-2017  Less than 1 
year 

 1-5 years  > 5 years  Total 

Borrowings  1,09,644.91  63,252.22  48,603.90  2,21,501.03 
Trade payables  37,683.85  -    -    37,683.85 
Other non - current financial liabiliƟes  -    99.96  -    99.96 
Other current financial liabilities (Including current 
maturities of borrowings)

 43,736.09  -    -    43,736.09 
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(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value or future cash flows that may result from a change  in the price of a 
financial instrument . The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency 
exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. Market 
risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency 
receivables, payables and borrowings. The goal of market risk management is optimization of profit and controling the exposure 
to market risk within acceptable limits.

(a) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which 
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates 
relates primarily to the import of raw materials and spare parts, and exports of finished goods. 

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency are at the end of the reporting period are as follows:                 

ParƟculars In original currency 
(USD/EURO)

In Rupees 
(`)

31st March, 2018
Trade receivables  3.68  47.65 
Cash and cash equivalents  -    -   
Other financial assets  -    -   

 3.68  47.65 
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term debt)  -   
Trade payables  40.36  2,625.35 
Derivatives  -    -   

 40.36  2,625.35 
Net exposure in respect of recognised financial assets and liabilities  (36.68)  (2,577.70)

ParƟculars In original currency 
(USD/EURO)

In Rupees 
(`)

31st March, 2017
Trade receivables  12.04  786.63 
Cash and cash equivalents  -    -   
Other financial assets  -    -   

 12.04  786.63 
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term debt)

Trade payables  16.55  1,073.08 
Derivatives

 16.55  1,073.08 
Net exposure in respect of recognised financial assets and liabilities  (4.51)  (286.45)

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the USD against Indian rupee at 31 March would have affected the 
measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact 
of forecast sales and purchases.
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ParƟculars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31st March, 2018

USD (5% Movement)  (128.88)  128.88  (89.06)  89.06 
31st March, 2017
USD (5% Movement)  (14.32)  14.32  (9.90)  9.90 

(b) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates related primarily to the Company's 
short term borrowing with floating interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its 
financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost. 
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company 's interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are as 
follows:

ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets  -    -   
Financial liabilities  -    -   

 -    -   
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets  -    -   
Financial liabilities  2,51,630  2,47,203 

 2,51,630  2,47,203 
Sensitivity analysis

Fixed rate instruments that are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate risk for the purpose of sensitive analysis.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in variable rate instruments at the reporting dates would have increased or 
decreased profit or loss by the amounts shown below.                                                                                                                 

(` in Lacs)
ParƟculars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
31st March, 2018
Variable rate instruments  2,516  (2,516)  1,739  (1,739)
Cash flow sensitivity (net)  2,516  (2,516)  1,739  (1,739)
31st March, 2017
Variable rate instruments  2,472  (2,472)  1,708  (1,708)
Cash flow sensitivity (net)  2,472  (2,472)  1,708  (1,708)

(c) Equity price risks 
The Company is not exposed to equity risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for stratergic rather 
than trading purposes. The Company does not actively trade these investments.
(d) Hedge accounting 
Currency risk-Transactions in foreign currency
The Company is exposed to transactional foreign currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in 
which sales and interest rate exposures are denominated.  The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated 
are US dollars. The Company buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks. All 
such transactions are carried out as per the risk management policy of the Company.
The Company holds derivative financial  instruments such as foreign currency forward to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange 
rates on foreign currency exposures.The Company’s risk management policy is to hedge its foreign currency exposure in respect 
of firm commitments and highly probable forecasted transcations and interest rate risks. The counterparty for these contracts  
is generally a bank or a  financial institution.       
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The Company determines the existence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based 
on the currency, amount and timing of their respective cash flows. The Company assesses whether the derivative designated 
in each hedging relationship is expected to be and has been effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item. 
In order to designate a derivative contract as an effective hedge, the management objectively evaluates and evidence with 
appropriate underlying documents of each contract whether the contract is effective in offsetting cash flow attributable to the 
hedged risk.
In these hedging relationships, the main sources of ineffectiveness are :
− the effect of the counterparty and the Company’s own credit risk on the fair value of the forward exchange contracts, which is 
not reflected in the change in the fair value of the hedged cash flows attributable to the change in exchange rates; and
− changes in the timing of the hedged transactions.       
Interest rate risk       
The Company adopts a policy of hedging its certain interest rate risk exposure is at a fixed rate. This is achieved partly by entering 
into fixed-rate instruments and partly by borrowing at a floating rate.
The Company determines the existence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based 
on the reference interest rates, tenors, repricing dates and maturities and the notional of hedging instruments or par amounts 
of hedged items.
50. Capital Management (Ind AS-1)       
The fundamental goals of capital management are to:
- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, subject to note no. 30 so that they can continue to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through 
prudent management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to 
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company 
manages its capital structure in light of changes in the economic and regulatory environment and the requirements of the 
financial covenants. The Company applied the same capital risk management strategy that was applied in the previous period.
The Company manages its capital on the basis of net debt to equity ratio which is net debt (total borrowings net of cash and 
cash equivalents) divided by total equity.                                                                                                                                         

 (` in Lacs)
ParƟculars 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Debt *  2,51,630  2,47,203 
Cash and bank balances  1,044  1,713 
Net Debt  2,50,586  2,45,490 
Total Equity  (93,467)  (59,572)
Net debt to equity ratio  (2.68)  (4.12)

* Debt is defined as Non-Current Borrowings from Banks, Current Borrowings and Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings 
from Banks.

51. Previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary to 
conform to this year's classification. Accordingly, amounts and other disclosures for the preceding years are included as an 
integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to amounts and other disclosures relating to 
the current year.

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date: 30th day of May, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

NOTE - 49 Financial risk management (Contd.)
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To 
The Members of 
Rohit  Ferro-Tech Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of ROHIT FERRO-TECH LIMITED (‘hereinaŌer 
referred to as the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the 
Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st  March 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the year ended, and a summary of the significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon prepared based on the 
relevant records (hereinaŌer referred to as the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements)

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparaƟon of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinaŌer referred to as ‘the Act’) that give a true and fair view 
of the Consolidated Financial posiƟon, Consolidated Financial performance, Consolidated Cash Flows and Changes in Equity 
of the Group in accordance with accounƟng principles generally accepted in India including the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
specified in the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under SecƟon 133 of the Act. The Holding 
Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial informaƟon considered 
necessary for the preparaƟon of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. The respecƟve Board of Directors of the Companies 
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes, the selecƟon 
and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies, making judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent, and the 
design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls, that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
which has been used for the purpose of preparaƟon of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Directors of the 
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. While con-
ducƟng the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under including the AccounƟng 
and AudiƟng Standards and maƩers which are required to be included in the audit report.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng specified 
under SecƟon 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritaƟve pronouncements issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers Internal Financial Control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparaƟon of the Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluaƟng the appropriateness of the accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounƟng esƟmates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon of 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion 
on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

1. We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No. 41 of the accompanying statement with regard to non-recogniƟon of inter est expense 
amounƟng to ` 30,057.65 lacs on the borrowings of the Company for the year ended 31st  March, 2018 which is not in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 23: Borrowing Cost read with Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments. Had the 
aforesaid interest expenses been recognized, the finance cost for the year ended 31st march, 2018 would have been 
` 35,381.49 lacs, instead of reported amount of ` 5,323.84 lacs. Total expenses for the year ended 31st March, 2018 would 
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have been ` 1,49,322.41 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 1,19,264.76 lacs. Net loss aŌer tax for the year ended 31st 
March, 2018 would have been ` 75,830.56 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 45,772.91 lacs. Total comprehensive 
losses for the year ended 31st March, 2018 would have been ` 76,016.91 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 45,959.26 
lacs. Other Equity would have been ` 146,245.63 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 1,16,187.98 lacs. Other current 
financial liability would have been ` 92,417.45 lacs instead of reported amount of ` 62,359.80 lacs.  

 The unprovided liability in respect of interest on long term and short term borrowings as on 31st March, 2018 amounted 
to ` 61,449.05 lacs. The same have consequenƟal impact on the reported figures of current financial year as well as earlier 
periods on finance cost, total expenses, total comprehensive loss etc.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, except for the effects of our 
observaƟon stated above in the Basis of Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give 
the informaƟon required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟng 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the company as at 31st  March, 2018, and its loss, 
total comprehensive loss, cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of MaƩer

1. We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No. 43 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements which indicate that as at 31st  
March, 2018, the accumulated losses has eroded the enƟre net worth of the holding company, indicaƟng the existence of 
a material uncertainty about the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going concern. These Statements have been prepared 
on a Going Concern Basis for the reason stated in the said note.

2. We draw your aƩenƟon to Note No: 45 of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, that the balance of sundry 
debtors, advances, creditors etc. includes balances remaining outstanding for a substanƟal period. The balances are 
subject to confirmaƟons and reconciliaƟon. The reported financials might have consequenƟal impact which remains 
unascertained.

3. In the case of the Company’s subsidiary SKP Overseas Pte Ltd., as per last available audit report for the year 2016-17 
their auditor has pointed out maƩer of emphasis that the company’s total liabiliƟes exceeded its total assets by US $ 
1,38,59,332 (INR 8986.20 lacs ). The appropriateness of the going concern assumpƟon on which the financial statements 
of the company are prepared is dependent on the conƟnued financial support from its directors. The directors have agreed 
to conƟnue providing financial support to the company and not recall the amount unƟl such Ɵme when the company is 
financially solvent and also confirmed that if and when required addiƟonal funds will be made available to the company 
in order for it to meet all its liabiliƟes which may fall due.

 Our Report is not qualified in this maƩer.
 Other MaƩer

 We did not audit the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries, whose Financial Statements /financial informaƟon reflect total 
assets of  ` 6,229.64 lacs as at 31st March, 2018, total revenues of ` Nil  total comprehensive income ` Nil for the year 
ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. The financial statement / financial 
informaƟon of subsidiaries are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of Sub-secƟons (3) and (11) of SecƟon 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such Unaudited Financial Statements as cerƟfied by the management.

 Our report is not modified in these maƩer.
 Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, is not modified in respect of the above maƩers with respect to our reliance on Financial Statements cerƟfied by the 
management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:
 a. We have sought and, except for the possible effect of the maƩer described in the basis for Qualified Opinion 

paragraph above, obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

 b. In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the maƩer described in the basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph 
above, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company, incorporated in India 
including relevant records relaƟng to preparaƟon of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements have 
been kept so far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those books and records of the Holding Company. The 
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subsidiaries of the Holding Company are incorporated outside India hence requirements of SecƟon 143(3) are not 
applicable to them.

 c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained by the Holding Company incorporated 
in India including relevant records relaƟng to the preparaƟon of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. The 
subsidiaries of the Holding Company are incorporated outside India hence requirements of SecƟon 143(3) are not 
applicable to them.

 d. Except for the possible effect of the maƩer described in the basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our 
opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act.

 e. The maƩers described in the basis for the Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse 
effect on the funcƟoning of the Company.

 f. On the basis of wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors of Holding Company as on 31st March, 2018, 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company incorporated in India, none of the directors 
are disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of secƟon 164(2) of the Act. The 
subsidiaries of the Holding Company are incorporated outside India hence requirement of SecƟon 143(3) are not 
applicable to them.

 g. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng of the Holding Company and 
the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. The subsidiaries of the 
Holding Company are incorporated outside India hence requirement of SecƟon 143(3) are not applicable to them.

 h. With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the 
explanaƟons given to us:

  i. The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending liƟgaƟons as at 31st  March, 2018 
on the Consolidated Financial posiƟon of the Group- Refer Note 36 to its Consolidated Financial Statements.

  ii. The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

  iii. During the year the holding company has transferred an amount of ` 1.61 lacs to Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund pertaining to dividend for the year 2009-10. 

For R. Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 307069E

CA: Manoj Kumar Sethia 
Place  : Kolkata  Partner
Dated: 14th August, 2018  Membership No: 064308
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng under Clause (i) of Sub-SecƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act)

In conjuncƟon with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st 
March, 2018, we have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng of Rohit Ferro Tech Limited (The Holding 
Company) incorporated in India as of that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, which is a company incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining Internal Financial Controls based on internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibiliƟes include the 
design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respecƟve company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the 
Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
ReporƟng (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on AudiƟng deemed to be prescribed under SecƟon 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng was established and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls system 
over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng includ-
ed obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s Internal Financial Control Systems over Financial ReporƟng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng

A Company’s Internal Financial Control over financial reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporƟng and the preparaƟon of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles. A Company’s Internal Financial Control over financial reporƟng 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacƟons 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizaƟons of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or 
Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng

Because of the inherent limitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the Internal Financial Control over financial reporƟng may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is a Company incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate 
Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporƟng and such Internal Financial Controls over financial reporƟng were 
operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31st  March, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the 
Company considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other MaƩer

ReporƟng on IFCFR is not applicable to subsidiaries incorporated outside India. Our opinion in Opinion paragraph above is not 
qualified in respect of this maƩer.

For R. Kothari & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 307069E

CA: Manoj Kumar Sethia 
Place  : Kolkata  Partner
Dated: 14th August, 2018  Membership No: 064308
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018

(` in Lacs)

 Sl. No. PARTICULARS  Note No. 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

 I  ASSETS 
 (1) Non-Current Assets 
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  66,195.55  69,634.93 
 (b) Capital work-in-progress 3  44,795.79  44,728.15 
 (c) Goodwill  4  -    3,506.93 
 (d) Other Intangible Assets under development 5  3,944.06  4,053.82 
 (e) Financial Assets 

 (i) Investments 6  -    4,175.07 
 (ii) Loans 7  3,087.07  3,216.61 

 (f) Other Non-Current Assets 8  773.77  3,181.42 
 1,18,796.54  1,32,496.93 

 (2) Current Assets 
 (a) Inventories 9  13,389.60  37,943.41 
 (b) Financial Assets 

 (i) Trade Receivables 10  51,330.62  62,168.75 
 (ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 11  1,032.06  871.57 
 (iii) Other Bank Balances 12  17.18  848.30 
 (iv) Other Current Financial Assets 13  6,379.36  6,255.42 

 (c) Other Current Assets 14  11,170.08  21,687.65 
 83,318.90  1,29,775.10 

 TOTAL  2,02,115.44  2,62,272.03 
 II  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 Equity 
 (a) Equity Share Capital 15  11,377.61  11,377.61 
 (b) Other Equity 16  (1,16,187.98)  (70,229.11)

 (1,04,810.37)  (58,851.50)
 Non Controlling Interest           (471.95)  (458.44)
 LiabiliƟes 
 (1) Non-Current LiabiliƟes 
 (a) Financial LiabiliƟes 

 (i) Borrowings 17  97,116.75  1,11,856.11 
 (ii) Other Non-Current Financial LiabiliƟes 18  -    99.96 

 (b) Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 19  -    -   
 (c) Other Non-Current LiabiliƟes 23  97.86  106.03 

 97,214.61  1,12,062.10 
 (2) Current LiabiliƟes 
 (a) Financial LiabiliƟes 

 (i) Borrowings 17  1,16,387.44  1,11,952.99 
 (ii) Trade Payables 20  22,491.71  38,399.41 
 (iii) Other Current Financial LiabiliƟes 21  62,359.80  46,458.98 

 (b) Current Tax LiabiliƟes (Net) 22  389.49  406.94 
 (c) Other Current LiabiliƟes 23  8,554.81  12,301.55 

 2,10,183.15  2,09,519.87 
TOTAL  2,02,115.44  2,62,272.03 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date: 14th day of August, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(` in Lacs)

Sl. No. PARTICULARS Note No. 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

I INCOME:
Revenue From OperaƟons 24  73,138.75  72,414.18 

 II Other Income 25  353.10  608.08 
 III Total Revenue (I + II)  73,491.85  73,022.26 
IV EXPENSES:

Cost of Materials Consumed 26  66,883.92  67,656.57 
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 27  -    288.24 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-Progress 28  1,431.70  983.37 
Excise Duty  1,790.03  6,399.23 
Employee Benefits Expense 29  1,519.91  1,385.70 
Finance Costs 30  5,323.84  (1,574.48)
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2  3,429.16  3,474.15 
Other Expenses 31  35,379.27  28,452.12 
Total Expenses (IV)  1,15,757.83  1,07,064.90 

 V PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (III-IV)  (42,265.98)  (34,042.64)
 VI Exceptional Items  3,506.93  -   
 VII PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (V-VI)  (45,772.91)  (34,042.64)
 VIII TAX EXPENSES

Current Tax  -    -   
MAT Credit EnƟtlement  -    -   
Earlier Years' Tax  -    -   
Deferred Tax  -    -   

 IX PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (VII - VIII)  (45,772.91)  (34,042.64)
 X Non Controlling Interest  (25.94)  (24.38)
 XI PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  (IX - X)  (45,746.97)  (34,018.26)
 XII OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (7.33)  (54.76)
(ii) Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   
Changes in foreign currency translation reserve  (204.96)  481.28 

   (ii) Income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXES  (212.29)  426.52 

 XIII Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (XI + XII)  (45,959.26)  (33,591.74)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
 - Owner of the Company  (45,746.97)  (34,018.26)
 - Non-Controling Interest  (25.94)  (24.38)

 (45,772.91)  (34,042.64)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) attributable to:
- Owner of the Company  (45,959.26)  (33,591.74)
- Non-Controling Interest  (25.94)  (24.38)

 (45,985.20)  (33,616.12)
 XIV  Earnings per Equity Share [Nominal Value of Share - ` 10] 

 Basic & Diluted 33  (40.21)  (29.90)
Significant Accounting Policies 1 c

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date:14th day of August, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

( ` in Lacs)

PARTICULARS  Year Ended
 31-03- 2018 

 Year Ended
 31-03-2017 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax (45,772.91) (34,042.64) 
Adjustments for :
DepreciaƟon  3,429.16  3,474.15 
Foreign Currency TranslaƟon Reserve  (204.96)  481.28 
Interest Income  (146.50)  (470.80)
Finance Costs  5,323.84  (1,574.48)
Fair value (gain)/Loss on investments  -    24.40 
Net (gain)/Loss on sale of investments  (20.42)  -   
Provision/(Reversal) for supplement payments on reƟrement  (7.33)  (54.76)
Exchange FluctuaƟon Loss/(Gain)  144.57  6.94 
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  -    10.20 
Sundry Balances wriƩen off / (back)  (115.83)  112.66 

 8,402.53  2,009.60 
OperaƟng Profit before Working Capital Changes  (37,370.38)  (32,033.04)
Adjustments for :
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  24,553.81  27,928.82 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 10,953.96  12,743.85 
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Financial Assets  129.54  (39.47)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Financial Assets  15.21  (341.84)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets  2,407.65  (150.25)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets  10,517.57  (2,856.09)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (15,907.70)  1,026.58 
Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Current Financial LiabiliƟes  (99.96)  (102.40)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Financial LiabiliƟes (4,452.37) 2,463.13
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current LiabiliƟes  (8.17)  (8.13)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current LiabiliƟes and Provisions  (3,763.16)  1,315.20 

24,346.38 41,979.40
Cash generated from operaƟons (13,024.00) 9,946.36
Direct Tax Paid  (0.41)  -   
 Exchange FluctuaƟon Loss/(Gain)  (144.57)  (6.94)
Net Cash from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes (13,168.98) 9,939.42
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (83.44)  (699.60)
(including Capital Work-in-Progress and Capital Advances)
Exchange Translation Adjustment for Property, Plant and Equipment  11.86  19.05 
Sale of property, plant and equipment  -    1,908.83 
(Increase) / Decrease in Non-Current Assets (Other than Property, 
Plant & Equipment)

 7,507.01  (356.53)

Interest Received  7.36  74.82 
Sale of Investment  305.17    - 
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits with Banks  831.12  324.24 
Net Cash used in InvesƟng AcƟviƟes  8,579.08  1,270.81 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018 (Contd.)

PARTICULARS  Year Ended
 31-03- 2018 

 Year Ended
 31-03-2017 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings-Non Current  (14,739.36)  (21,195.81)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings-Current 16,091.94 13,903.92
Increase/ (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  4,434.45  (3,564.81)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Controlling Interest  25.94  24.38 
Interest Paid  (1,062.58)  (266.62)
Net Cash from Financing Activities 4,750.39 (11,098.94)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  160.49  111.29 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
(Refer Note No.11 to the Accounts)

 871.57  760.28 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 
(Refer Note No.11 to the Accounts)

 1,032.06  871.57 

( ` in Lacs)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date:14th day of August, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity  for the year ended 31st March, 2018

A.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL  (`in Lacs) 
ParƟculars  Numbers  Amount 
Balance as at 01-04-2016  1,137.76  11,377.61 
Changes in equity share capital during 2016-17  -    -   
Balance as at 31-03-2017  1,137.76  11,377.61 
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-18  -    -   
Balance as at 31-03-2018  1,137.76  11,377.61 

B. OTHER EQUITY
For the year ended 31st March, 2018
 ParƟculars  Reserve and Surplus  EffecƟve 

porƟon of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges 

 Total 
 Capital 
Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium 
Reserve 

 General 
Reserve 

 Foreign 
Currency 

TranslaƟon 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 01-04-2017  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  2,379.04 (1,15,588.99)  -    (70,229.11)
Profit /(Loss) for the year  -    -    -    -    (45,746.97)  -    (45,746.97)
Movement during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    (204.96)  (7.33)  -    (212.29)
Total Comprehensive Income  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  2,174.08 (1,61,343.29)  -    (1,16,187.98)
DepreciaƟon charge  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as at 31-03-2018  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  2,174.08 (1,61,343.29)  -    (1,16,187.98)

For the year ended 31st March, 2017 
 ParƟculars  Reserve and Surplus  EffecƟve 

porƟon of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges 

 Total 
 Capital 
Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium 
Reserve 

 General 
Reserve 

 Foreign 
Currency 

TranslaƟon 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

Balance as at 01-04-2016  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  1,897.75  (81,515.97)  -    (36,636.98)
Profit /(Loss) for the year    -  -      -    -  (34,018.26)    -  (34,018.26)
Movement during the year    -  -      -    -    -  -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income    -  -      -  481.28  (54.76)    -  426.52 
Total Comprehensive Income  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  2,379.04 (1,15,588.99)  -    (70,229.11)
DepreciaƟon charge  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance as at 31-03-2017  128.14  42,403.10  450.00  2,379.04 (1,15,588.99)  -    (70,229.11)

Significant accounƟng policies: Note no. 1c

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date:14th day of August, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

1 a) The consolidated financial statements include results of the subsidiaries of Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited, consolidated 
in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’.

Name of the Company Country of 
incorporaƟon

Current Year 
Percentage 

Holding-Share

Previous Year 
Percentage 

Holding-Share
SKP Overseas PTE Limited Singapore 100% 100%
PT Bara Prima Mandiri Indonesia 60% 60%

  The above subsidiaries are consolidated on the basis of available unaudited financial statements/informaƟon.
 b) These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) noƟfied under 

secƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.

  All assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operaƟng cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products 
and the Ɵme between the acquisiƟon of assets for processing and their realisaƟon in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operaƟng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classificaƟon 
of assets and liabiliƟes.

 c) AccounƟng policies applicable in consolidated financial statements
  i) The Company combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together 

like items of assets, liabiliƟes, equity, income and expenses. Inter-company transacƟons, balances and 
unrealised gains on transacƟons between group companies are eliminated.

  ii) Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Balance Sheet respecƟvely.

  iii) The results and financial posiƟon of foreign operaƟons that have a funcƟonal currency different from the 
presentaƟon currency are translated into the presentaƟon currency as follows:

   –  Assets and liabiliƟes are translated at the closing rate at the date of that Balance Sheet
   –  Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
   –  All resulƟng exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
  Goodwill arising on the acquisiƟon of a foreign operaƟon are treated as assets of the foreign operaƟon and 

translated at the closing rate.
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

3. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

At the beginning of the year 44,728.15 44,279.46 

Add: Incurred during the year 67.64 702.60 

Less: Capitalised during the year -   (253.91)

At the end of the year 44,795.79 44,728.15 

Capital work-in-progress includes Pre OperaƟ ve Expenses as below relaƟ ng to 
project under implementaƟ on, pending allocaƟ on to Fixed Assets:
Opening Balance 15,435.35 14,747.23 

Add: Expenditure incurred during the period 

Salaries 0.12 1.43 

Rent -   (0.71)

Electricity Charges -   0.29 

Telephone Expenses 0.01 0.07 

Travelling & Conveyance 0.01 0.10 

Repairs & Maintenance 1.88 0.18 

Labour charges (0.15) (1.56)

Security Service Charges 21.53 36.36 

Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges -   (0.79)

General Expenses 0.47 (0.62)

Bank Charges -   0.09 

Interest on Term Loan from Banks -   639.15 

DepreciaƟ on 14.13 14.13 

Total 15,473.35 15,435.35 

Amount allocated to Fixed Assets -   -   

Closing Balance 15,473.35 15,435.35 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

4. GOODWILL

At the beginning of the year -   2,962.75 

Add: On AcquisiƟ on -   -   

Add: Exchange translaƟ on adjustments -   544.18 

At the end of the year -   3,506.93 

Note:
Due to no operaƟons and non-realizaƟon from non-current and current assets of the Step down subsidiary PT Bara Prima Mandiri, 
write off has been made in the books of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. thus completely eroding the Networth of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. 
Accordingly the carrying value of Goodwill amounƟng to ` 3,506.93 Lacs has been impaired and shown under excepƟonal items. 
Appropriateness of the going concern assumpƟon on which the financial statements of the SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. are prepared 
is dependent on the conƟnued financial support from its director and the operaƟons of Indonesia coal mine being restarted. 
Accordingly the financial statement of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. has been prepared on 'Going Concern' basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(` in Lacs)
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

5. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Intangible Assets under development represents expenses incurred for 
development of mines under the following heads:
Opening Balance 4,053.82 4,200.62 
Add: On AcquisiƟ on -   -   
Less: Exchange translaƟ on adjustments (109.76) (146.80)
Closing Balance 3,944.06 4,053.82 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

6. NON - CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Investments in Exchangeable Bonds– unquoted*

PT Pacifi c Samudra Perkasa (F.V. 10,00,000 USD) -   3,890.32 
Investments in Mutual Fund– unquoted

Investment carried at fair value through profi t and loss (FVTPL)

NIL (31-03-2017: 25) units of SBI Mutual Fund -   284.75 
Total of Non Current Investments -   4,175.07 
Aggregate value of unquoted equity Investments -   3,890.32 
Aggregate value of unquoted Mutual Funds -   284.75 
Aggregate value of diminuƟ on other than temporary in value of Investments -   -   

Note:
Due to no operaƟ ons and non-realizaƟ on from non-current and current assets of the Step down subsidiary PT Bara Prima 
Mandiri, write off  has been made in the books of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. thus completely eroding the Networth of SKP Overseas 
Pte Ltd. Accordingly the carrying value of Investment amounƟ ng to `3,890.32 Lacs has been wriƩ en off . Appropriateness of the 
going concern assumpƟ on on which the fi nancial statements of the SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. are prepared is dependent on the 
conƟ nued fi nancial support from its director and the operaƟ ons of Indonesia coal mine being restarted. Accordingly the fi nancial 
statement of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. has been prepared on ‘Going Concern’ basis.

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

7. LOANS
 (Unsecured, Considered good) 
 Non-Current 
 Security Deposits 
  - Related ParƟ es -   168.00 
  - ParƟ es other than Related ParƟ es 3,087.07 3,048.61 

3,087.07 3,216.61 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
 (Unsecured, Considered good) 
 Capital Advances (Refer Note No. 34 (ii) of standalone) 
  - Related ParƟ es -   7.91 
  - ParƟ es other than Related ParƟ es 773.77 723.71 
 UnamorƟ sed Expenses 
  - Deferred Expenses -   2,449.80 

773.77 3,181.42 
Note:
Due to no operaƟons and non-realizaƟon from non-current and current assets of the Step down subsidiary PT Bara Prima 
Mandiri, write off has been made in the books of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. thus completely eroding the Networth of SKP Overseas 
Pte Ltd. Accordingly the carrying value of Deferred Expenses amounƟng to ` 2,450 Lacs has been wriƩen off. Appropriateness of 
the going concern assumpƟon on which the financial statements of the SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. are prepared is dependent on the 
conƟnued financial support from its director and the operaƟons of Indonesia coal mine being restarted. Accordingly the financial 
statement of SKP Overseas Pte Ltd. has been prepared on ‘Going Concern’ basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(` in Lacs)
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

9. INVENTORIES
(As taken, valued and cerƟ fi ed by the management)
 Raw Materials 8,389.30 31,625.62 
 Work In Process 3,176.75 3,923.42 
 Finished Goods 1,295.86 2,016.99 
 Stores & Spares 432.66 189.08 
 Packing Materials 16.78 18.38 
 Intermediates 78.25 169.92 

13,389.60 37,943.41 
Notes: 
a) The amount wriƩen down for raw materials in Haldia as an expense (included in cost of raw materials consumed) during 

the year is ` 6,323.03 Lacs (P.Y. ` 6,323.03 Lacs) on prudent basis as the plant was shut down since July'15.
b) For details of inventory pledged as security against secured borrowings refer note 17 (c) & 20 (b)

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES
 Unsecured 
- Considered good 51,330.62 62,168.75 
- Considered doubƞ ul 4,104.28 2,657.95 

55,434.90 64,826.70 
Less: Allowances for doubƞ ul debts (4,104.28) (2,657.95)

51,330.62 62,168.75 
Age analysis of trade receivables
 Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding Six months from the date they were 
due for payment. 

45,963.69 51,131.29 

 Other receivables 5,366.93 11,037.46 
 Total 51,330.62 62,168.75 

Notes: 
a) Trade Receivables include ` 853.51 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 1.62 Lacs) due from Related Party.
b) For details of book debts pledged as security against secured borrowings refer note 17(c)

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 Cash In Hand (as cerƟ fi ed by the management) 9.78 14.65 
 Balances With Banks 
  - In Current Accounts 1,022.28 676.33 
 Term deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months* -   180.59 

1,032.06 871.57 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

12. OTHER BANK BALANCES 
 (A) Term Deposits with Banks * 
with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 10.63 840.14 
with maturity more than 12 months 3.90 3.90 
 (B) Earmarked Balances with Banks 2.65 4.26 

17.18 848.30 
* Held as Margin against Bank guarantee and leƩer of credit.
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

13. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
 (Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated) 
Accrued Interest on Deposits 2.28 16.46 
Insurance Claim Receivable 1,902.12 1,902.12 
Export IncenƟ ve Receivable:
        Considered Good 43.78 124.85 
        Considered doubƞ ull 188.99 188.99 
Less: Allowance for doubƞ ul receivables (188.99) (188.99)
Subsidy/Power IncenƟ ve Receivable 4,126.01 4,211.99 
SBI Mutual Fund Receivable 305.17 -   

6,379.36 6,255.42 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

14. OTHER  CURRENT ASSETS
 (Unsecured, Considered Good) 
 Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received 
 To Related ParƟ es 70.00 50.00 
 To Others 8,832.08 16,165.81 
Balance with Central Excise and Cenvat Receivable 1,060.85 2,019.89 
Sales Tax / VAT Receivable/ Refundable 598.96 3,402.27 
GST Receivable 592.75 -   
 Prepaid Expenses  15.44 49.68 

11,170.08 21,687.65 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

15. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1,850.00 Lacs  (P.Y.: 1,850.00 Lacs) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 18,500.00 18,500.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
1,137.76 Lacs (P.Y.: 1,137.76 Lacs) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up 11,377.61 11,377.61 

a) ReconciliaƟon of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporƟng period

Equity Shares 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
 Nos. (in Lacs)  (` in Lacs)  Nos. (in Lacs)  (` in Lacs)

At the beginning of the Period 1,137.76 11,377.61 1,137.76 11,377.61 
Issued during the Period -   -   -   -   
At the end of the Period 1,137.76 11,377.61 1,137.76 11,377.61 

b) Terms/Rights aƩached to Equity Shares
 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having  a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is 

enƟtled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be enƟtled to 
receive remaining assets of the Company aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amount. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon 
to the number of Equity Shares held by the share holders.
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NOTE - 15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Contd.)
c) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
 No. of Shares 

(in Lacs ) 
% holding  No. of Shares 

(in Lacs ) 
% holding

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
   Suanvi Trading and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. 112.38 9.88 112.38 9.88 
   Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd 113.60 9.98 113.60 9.98 
   Invesco Finance Pvt. Ltd. 110.39 9.70 110.39 9.70 
   Poddar Mech Tech Services Pvt. Ltd. 129.80 11.41 129.80 11.41 
   Shreyansh Leafi n Pvt. Ltd. 109.93 9.66 109.93 9.66 
   Whitestone Suppliers Pvt. Ltd. 109.08 9.59 109.08 9.59 

16. OTHER EQUITY
Below are the other components of other equity:
Components Note 

No.
01-04-2017  Movement 

during the 
year 

31-03-2018 01-04-2016  Movement 
during the 

year 

31-03-2017

Capital Reserve a 128.14 -   128.14 128.14 -   128.14 
SecuriƟ es Premium Account b 42,403.10 -   42,403.10 42,403.10 -   42,403.10 
General Reserve c 450.00 -   450.00 450.00 -   450.00 
Foreign Currency TranslaƟ on Reserve d 2,379.03 (204.96) 2,174.07 1,897.75 481.28 2,379.03 
Retained Earnings e (1,15,485.90) (45,746.97) (1,61,232.87) (81,467.64) (34,018.26) (1,15,485.90)
Other Comprehensive Income f (103.09) (7.33) (110.42) (48.33) (54.76) (103.09)

(70,229.11) (45,959.26) (1,16,187.98) (36,636.98) (33,591.74) (70,229.11)

(a) Capital reserve: Capital reserves consists of Deposits forfeited against share warrants.
(b) SecuriƟes Premium Account: SecuriƟes premium account represents the premium received on issue of shares over and 

above the face value of equity shares. The account is available for uƟlisaƟon in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(c) General reserve: The general reserve is used from Ɵme to Ɵme to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriaƟon 
purposes.

(d) Retained earnings: It comprise of accumulated profit/ (loss) of the Company. The movement is on account of  ` (45,746.97) 
Lacs {P.Y.: ` (34,018.26 Lacs)} profit/ (loss) incurred by the Company.
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NOTE PARTICULARS

17. BORROWINGS
Borrowings consist of the following:
NON - CURRENT BORROWINGS  Non-Current  Current 

31-03-2018 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2017
Term Loans from Banks (Secured)
Rupee Term Loans 42,852.65 47,737.93 16,081.30 11,196.02 
Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) 41,148.56 44,185.51 9,110.88 6,073.92 
Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) 5,688.98 12,167.67 22,675.40 16,196.71 
Foreign Currency Loan -   -   1,626.10 1,620.97 

89,690.19 1,04,091.11 49,493.68 35,087.62 
Loans from Related ParƟ es (Unsecured)
from Body Corporates 7,280.00 7,280.00 -   -   

7,280.00 7,280.00 -   -   
Other Loans and Advances
Loans from Body Corporates (Unsecured) 146.56 485.00 -   -   

146.56 485.00 -   -   
97,116.75 1,11,856.10 49,493.68 35,087.62 

The above amount includes
Secured Borrowings 89,690.19 1,04,091.11 49,493.68 35,087.62 
Unsecured Borrowings 7,426.56 7,765.00 -   -   
Amount disclosed under the head - "Other 
Current Financial LiabiliƟ es" (Refer Note 21)

-   -   (49,493.68) (35,087.62)

97,116.75 1,11,856.11 -   -   

CURRENT BORROWINGS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Working Capital Loans from Banks (Secured)

       -Rupee Loans 1,13,435.77 1,09,358.59 
       -Foreign Currency Loans-Bank OverdraŌ  2,315.39 2,308.08 
Other Loans and Advances

Bridge Loan from WBIDC Ltd. (against interest subsidy receivable) -   86.14 
SBI Global Factors Limited under factoring facility secured against specifi c debts 636.28 200.18 

1,16,387.44 1,11,952.99 

(A) Working Capital Term Loan :
 Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package (Refer Note 32), the overdrawn porƟon of the Cash Credit Accounts of the 

Company has been carved out into separate Working Capital Term Loans (WCTL).
(B) Funded Interest Term Loan :
 Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package (Refer Note 32), funding of interest has been provided for: 
 - Interest on exisƟng term loans for a period of 24 months from the Cut-Off Date i.e. from 1st October, 2013 to 30th 

September, 2015;
 - Interest on WCTL for a period of 24 months from the Cut-Off Date i.e. from 1st October, 2013 to 30th September, 

2015;
 - Interest on residual cash credit limit for a period of 9 months from the Cut-Off Date i.e. from  1st October, 2013 to 

30th June, 2014;
(C) Details of security :
 (i) In terms of the CDR package, Rupee Term Loans , Working Capital Term Loans, Funded Interest Term Loans and 

Working Capital Loan are pooled together and secured as under:
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NOTE - 17  BORROWINGS (Contd.)

  a) First pari-passu charge on the enƟre Fixed Assets of the Company (excluding value of vehicles), both present 
and future, including equitable mortgage of factory land & building at Bishnupur (West Bengal), Jajpur 
(Odisha) and Haldia (West Bengal). Also, secured by way of mortgage on Freehold land at New Town, District: 
North 24 Parganas measuring 50 CoƩahs.

  b) First pari-passu charge on the enƟre Current Assets of the Company comprised of stock of raw materials, 
semi finished and finished goods and book debts, outstanding moneys, receivables, both present and future 
pertaining to the Company’s manufacturing units/divisions at Bishnupur (West Bengal), Jajpur (Odisha) and 
Haldia (West Bengal) and at other Units.

  c) Collateral security by equitable mortgage on Land & Building at 1/26, Vidyadhar Nagar, Jaipur, Rajasthan held 
in the name of Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd., Office space measuring 835 sq. Ō. located at Flat no. 21B, 4th 
Floor, Bowbazar, 35, C.R. Avenue, Kolkata-12, held in the name of Mr. S.K.Patni and Flat No. A-52, Block-A, 35, 
Dr. Abani DuƩa Road, Salkia, Howrah, held in the name of Mr. Rohit Patni.

  d) Pledge of 100% of the promoter’s shares represenƟng 72% of the paid up Capital of the company on pari 
passu basis.

  e) Personal Guarantee of the Promoters - Mr. S.K.Patni, Mr. Rohit Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni.
  f) Corporate Guarantee of the Group Companies - Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd., 

Poddar Mech Tech Services Pvt. Ltd., Invesco Finance Pvt. Ltd. and Suanvi Trading and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.
(D) Terms of Repayment of Loans :
 (i) Terms of Repayment of Rupee Term Loans availed for Haldia Project, 33 MVA Furnace and Stainless Steel Plant of 

the Company and Working Capital Term Loan :
  Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package, the exisƟng Rupee Term Loan amounƟng to ` 33,234.93 Lacs in respect 

of Haldia Project, 33 MVA Furnace and Stainless Steel Project and Working Capital Term Loan are to be repaid over a 
period of 8 years by way of 32 structured quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 up to 30th 
September, 2023 as per the Repayment Schedule given below. Further, such loans carry the interest rate @11% p.a. 
linked to the Base Rate of the State Bank of India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG.

Financial Year Quarters Repayment 
per Quarter

Total

2015-2016 2 1.00% 2.00%
2016-2017 4 1.00% 4.00%
2017-2018 4 1.50% 6.00%
2018-2019 4 1.50% 6.00%
2019-2020 4 1.50% 6.00%
2020-2021 4 4.00% 16.00%
2021-2022 4 4.50% 18.00%
2022-2023 4 6.00% 24.00%
2023-2024 2 9.00% 18.00%
Total 32 100.00%

 (ii) Terms of Repayment of Term Loan availed for 67.5 MVA CapƟve Power Plant project of the Company :
  Upon implementaƟon of the CDR Package, the Rupee Term Loan amounƟng to ` 25,699.04 Lacs in respect of 

67.5 MVA CapƟve Power Plant is to be repaid by way of  38 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st 
December, 2015 up to 31st March, 2025. Further, the loan carries the interest rate @ 11% p.a. linked to the Base 
Rate of the State Bank of India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG.

 (iii) Terms of Repayment of Funded Interest Term Loan :
  Repayment of FITL is to be made in 18 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 with the 

last installment due on 31st March, 2020. FITL carries interest @11% pa linked to the Base Rate of the State Bank of 
India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG.

  Repayment of FITL is to be made in 18 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 with the 
last installment due on 31st March, 2020. FITL carries interest @11% pa linked to the Base Rate of the State Bank of 
India, with annual reset opƟon with the approval of CDR-EG.

 (iv) Terms of Repayment of Working Capital Loan :
  The rate of interest on the working capital loans from banks is 10.3% linked to the base rate of State Bank of India.
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NOTE - 17  BORROWINGS (Contd.)
(v)  Period and Amount of Default as on the Balance Sheet date :

RUPEE TERM LOAN Amount of default as at the balance 
sheet date (` in Lacs)

Period of default

 Principal 
Repayment 

 Interest (Net of 
Reversals) 

ALLAHABAD BANK 1,585.00 486.88 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 to 31st 
March, 2018

CANARA BANK 275.16 696.26 
EXIM BANK 1,068.00 2,505.52 
STATE BANK OF INDIA 6,902.56 228.91 
UNITED BANK OF INDIA 1,365.30 597.65 
TOTAL 11,196.02 4,515.22 
WORKING CAPITAL TERM LOAN 
ALLAHABAD BANK 176.16 106.00 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 to 31st 
March, 2018

ANDHRA BANK 142.92 362.97 
BANK OF BARODA 534.00 -   
CENTAL BANK OF INDIA 27.72 (0.00)
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK 515.04 -   
STATE BANK OF INDIA 2,900.52 (48.82)
UNITED BANK OF INDIA 1,427.76 1,262.54 
UCO BANK 349.80 305.79 
TOTAL 6,073.92 1,988.48 
FUNDED INTEREST TERM LOAN 
ALLAHABAD BANK 1,210.99 28.57 

Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 to 31st 
March 2018

ANDHRA BANK 242.20 147.20 
BANK OF BARODA 699.93 -   
CANARA BANK 279.97 171.68 
CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA 157.21 (19.05)
EXIM BANK 1,079.34 506.33 
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK 902.69 1.00 
STATE BANK OF INDIA 8,270.28 148.96 
UNITED BANK OF INDIA 2,941.93 557.16 
UCO BANK 412.18 105.16 
TOTAL 16,196.72 1,647.01 
FOREIGN CURRENCY LOAN:
INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK (TL) 1,626.10 107.47  Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 to 31st 

March, 2018 INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK (WC) 2,315.39 153.02 
TOTAL 3,941.49 260.49 
WORKING CAPITAL LOAN 
ALLAHABAD BANK (CC) 771.31 Quarter ending 31st Dec, 2015 to 31st 

March, 2018ANDHRA BANK (CC) 1,126.45 
BANK OF BARODA (CC) 248.67 
CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA (CC) (28.63)
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK  (CC) 131.20 
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK  (OD) (86.19)
STATE BANK OF INDIA (CC) 389.76 
UNITED BANK OF INDIA (CC) 1,091.78 
UCO BANK (CC) 338.88 
UCO BANK (OD) 29.91 
TOTAL 4,013.14 
GRAND TOTAL 37,408.15 12,424.34 

The above disclosure is as per provision made in books. The unprovided liability in respect of interest on non-current and current 
borrowings amounƟng to `61,449.05 Lacs as per notes no. 41 also conƟnued to be in default.
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NOTE - 17  BORROWINGS (Contd.)
(vi) Pursuant to CDR Package, the Company has received unsecured loans amounƟng to ` 7,280 Lacs from promoters & 

promoter group companies as promoter’s contribuƟon, to be converted into equity. Subsequently, with the invocaƟon 
of SDR, the said amount of ` 7,280 Lacs was allowed to be converted into equity at par.  Since the SDR has been kept in 
abeyance no allotment has been made by the company.

(vii) Terms of Repayment of Foreign Currency Loan : 
 Repayment of Foreign Currency Loan is to be made in 1 quarterly installment of ` 120.20 Lacs, 6 quarterly installments of 

` 150.25 Lacs each, 3 quarterly installments of ` 180.30 Lacs each and 4 quarterly installments of Rs. 240.40 Lacs each. 
The loan carries effecƟve interest rate @ 6 months Libor+ 4.5%.

(viii) Unsecured Loan from Body Corporates (Other than related parƟes) aggregaƟng to ` 146.56 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 485.01 Lacs) are 
interest free. Such loans are repayable at the opƟon of the Company and are stated by the management to be in the 
nature of Long term borrowings.

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

18. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Liability for Accrued Expenses -   99.96 

-   99.96 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

 Deferred tax liabiliƟ es 15,100.25 12,611.65 

 Deferred tax assets (77,633.06) (45,266.90)

 Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (62,532.81) (32,655.25)

 2017-18 

 Deferred tax liabiliƟ es/(assets) in relaƟ on to:  Opening 
balance 

 Recognised in 
Statement of 
Profi t & Loss 

 Closing 
Balance 

 Provision for doubƞ ul debts and advances/other write off s  2,846.94 1,446.33 4,293.27 

 Property, plant & equipment (PPE) 9,764.71 1,042.28 10,806.98 

 Unabsorbed DepreciaƟ on (8,552.47) (4,416.35) (12,968.82)

 Unabsorbed business Loss (36,714.43) (27,949.81) (64,664.24)

 Total (32,655.25) (29,877.56) (62,532.81)

 2016-17 

 Deferred tax liabiliƟ es/(assets) in relaƟ on to:  Opening 
balance 

 Recognised in 
Statement of 
Profi t & Loss 

 Closing 
Balance 

 Provision for doubƞ ul debts and advances/other write off s  -   2,846.94 2,846.94 

 Property, plant & equipment (PPE) 9,018.78 745.93 9,764.71 

 Unabsorbed DepreciaƟ on (6,960.60) (1,591.86) (8,552.47)

 Unabsorbed business Loss (28,346.37) (8,368.06) (36,714.43)

 Total (26,288.19) (6,367.06) (32,655.25)

Net Deferred Tax Asset has not been recognised as a maƩ er of Prudence, in accordance with the Ind AS-12 (Income Taxes) issued 
by The InsƟ tute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

20. TRADE PAYABLES

 Due to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises [Refer Note (a) below] -   -   

 Due to others 22,491.71 38,399.41 

 22,491.71 38,399.41 

a. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more 
than 45 days as at 31st March, 2018. This informaƟon as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parƟes have been idenƟfied on the basis of 
informaƟon available with the Company.

b. Trade Payables include ` 5,731.33 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 5,531.51 Lacs) against pledge of stock of raw materials.
c. Trade Payables include ` 2.23 Lacs (P.Y.: ` 9.57 Lacs) due to related parƟes. (Refer Note No. 40 of standalone)

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

21. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 Current maturiƟ es of long-term debt (Refer Note 17) 49,493.68 35,087.62 

 Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings 8,830.45 7,144.57 

 Unclaimed Dividend * 2.65 4.26 

 Other Payables 

For Capital Goods  1,850.65 2,426.06 

For Accrued Expenses & Others 2,182.37 1,796.47 

   62,359.80 46,458.98 

* An amount  of ` 1.61 Lacs  (P.Y.: ` 1.88 Lacs) has been transferred during the year to Investor EducaƟ on & ProtecƟ on Fund.

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

22. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

 Tax LiabiliƟ es: 

 Provision For TaxaƟ on 871.17 871.17 

 Tax Assets: -   

  -Income Tax Payments (Including TDS) (458.58) (441.55)

  -Income Tax Refundable (23.10) (22.68)

   389.49 406.94 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

23. OTHER LIABILITIES

Non Current

Deferred Government Grant 97.86 106.03 

97.86 106.03 

Current

 Advance from ParƟ es 6,387.67 9,342.10 

 Deferred Government Grant 8.15 8.15 

 LiabiliƟ es against statutory dues 2,158.99 2,951.30 

8,554.81 12,301.55 

Total Other LiabiliƟ es 8,652.67 12,407.58 
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
 Sale of Products 
 Sale of Manufactured Goods  71,441.00 67,613.63 
 Sale of Raw Materials 1,576.97 3,650.56 
 Sale of Traded Goods -   325.52 

73,017.97 71,589.71 
 Other OperaƟ ng Revenues 
 Export IncenƟ ves  120.78 824.47 

   73,138.75 72,414.18 

Note:
Revenue from OperaƟons for the year is not comparable with previous year since sales are net of GST whereas in previous year 
sales were gross of excise duty.

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

25. OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
  - On Credit Sales -   11.85 
  - On Fixed Deposits 9.64 91.28 
  - Other Deposits 136.86 367.67 
Commission Income -   37.64 
Sundry Balances WriƩ en Back 171.09 4.00 
Lease Rent Received 5.76 3.60 
Miscellaneous Income 21.55 59.20 
Insurance Claim Received 0.02 0.31 
AmorƟ saƟ on of Deferred Government Grant 8.18 8.13 
Changes in Fair Value of Mutual Funds -   24.40 
   353.10 608.08 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

26. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(including cost of Raw Materials sold)
 Opening Stock of Raw Materials (including intermediates) 31,795.54 57,367.53 
 Purchases during the year (including freight) 43,555.93 42,084.58 
   75,351.47 99,452.11 
 Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 8,389.30 31,625.62 
 Cost of Raw Materials consumed  66,962.17 67,826.49 
 Less: Closing Stock of Intermediates 78.25 169.92 
 Cost of Materials consumed  66,883.92 67,656.57 

Note: 
Raw Material consumed includes ` 6,323.03 Lacs (P.Y. ` 6,323.03 Lacs) on account of amount write down of raw material in 
Haldia plant on prudent basis as the Haldia plant was shut down since July'15.
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

27. PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE
Iron and Steel Products -   288.24 

-   288.24 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

28. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS 
 Opening Stock  
 Finished Goods 
 Ferro Alloys 903.96 306.24 
 Coal 322.35 322.35 
 Iron & Steel Products 801.94 649.92 
 Work-In-Progress 
 Ferro Alloys 2,607.62 3,205.68 
 Coal In Progress 1,058.92 1,058.92 
 Iron & Steel Products 293.89 1,428.94 

5,988.68 6,972.05 
 Closing Stock 
 Finished Goods 
 Ferro Alloys 425.25 903.96 
 Coal 322.35 322.35 
 Iron & Steel Products 567.96 801.94 
 Work-In-Progress 
 Ferro Alloys 1,686.46 2,607.62 
 Coal In Progress 1,058.92 1,058.92 
 Iron & Steel Products 496.04 293.89 

4,556.98 5,988.68 
1,431.70 983.37 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

29. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
 Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Allowances 1,332.30 1,231.45 
 ContribuƟ on to Provident & Other Funds 84.23 68.25 
 Gratuity [Refer Note 38 of standalone] 34.65 24.92 
 Directors' RemuneraƟ on 49.68 32.93 
 Welfare Expenses 19.05 28.15 

1,519.91 1,385.70 

NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

30. FINANCE COSTS
 Interest Expense 
 - To Banks (Refer Note 41) 4,261.25 (1,841.10)
 - To Others 721.26 144.65 
 Other Borrowing Costs 341.33 121.97 

   5,323.84 (1,574.48)
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

31. OTHER EXPENSES
Labour Charges 1,754.54 1,423.75 
Power & Fuel 16,375.12 16,183.75 
Water Supply Charges 115.14 64.10 
Stores, Spares and Consumables [Refer Note (a) below] 4,026.92 4,058.69 
Packing Materials 12.34 49.05 
Material Handling Expenses 441.24 409.86 
Excise Duty on VariaƟ on in Stock [Refer Note (a) below] -   75.61 
Repairs 

- To Factory Shed & Building 21.68 30.74 
- To Plant & Machinery 88.86 72.63 

Rent 22.68 23.29 
Rates & Taxes 13.04 45.75 
Electricity Expenses 17.07 14.13 
Insurance 72.56 111.98 
PrinƟ ng and StaƟ onery 8.76 12.22 
Postage and Courier 6.34 9.03 
Telephone Charges 27.67 43.48 
Travelling & Conveyance 86.33 103.10 
Car Running and Maintenance 53.90 55.73 
Other Repairs and Maintenance 62.82 51.68 
Security Service Charges 183.32 175.19 
Membership and SubscripƟ on 6.48 8.35 
Internal Audit Fees 2.00 2.50 
Legal and Professional Charges 160.11 107.29 
Auditors' RemuneraƟ on [Refer Note Below (c)] 16.68 17.78 
Directors' Siƫ  ng Fees 1.18 1.40 
Miscellaneous Expenses 71.50 144.50 
Short RealisaƟ on/ Loss on sale of DEPB 6.71 233.30 
TesƟ ng & InspecƟ on Charges 17.91 20.80 
DonaƟ ons 3.11 2.28 
AdverƟ sement & Sales PromoƟ on 44.88 58.40 
Freight & Forwarding on Export 122.99 178.29 
TransportaƟ on & Delivery Charges 1,619.80 1,582.57 
Commission on Sales 44.13 88.52 
Corporate Social Responsibility 5.60 2.82 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -   10.20 
Short Recovery & Damages -   3.88 
Sundry Balances WriƩ en Off 55.25 116.66 
Allowances for Doubƞ ul Debt 3,233.06 2,657.95 
Allowances for doubƞ ul export incenƟ ves -   188.99 
Impairment Loss 3,941.31 -   
Deferred Expenditure WriƩ en Off 2,481.91 -   
Provision for Expenses 9.76 4.95 
Foreign Exchange FluctuaƟ on Loss 144.57 6.94 

35,379.27 28,452.12 
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NOTE - 31 OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)
a) Amount of excise duty on variaƟon in stock represents differenƟal excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished 

goods.
b) Auditors’ RemuneraƟon:

31-03-2018 31-03-2017

As Statutory Auditor [includes tax audit fees of `2.00 Lacs (P.Y. ` 2.00 Lacs)] 11.31 10.00 

For TaxaƟ on maƩ ers 0.10 -   

For Other services 5.27 4.50 

Total 16.68 14.50 

32. CORPORATE DEBT RESTRUCTURING
 During the year 2013-14, at the request of the Company, the Corporate Debt Restructuring Proposal (CDR Proposal) 

was referred to  CDR Empowered Group (CDR EG) by the consorƟum of lenders led by State Bank of India (SBI). The CDR 
Proposal as recommended by SBI was approved by CDR EG on March 24, 2014 and communicated vide LeƩer of Approval 
dated 28th March, 2014, as amended / modified from Ɵme to Ɵme. Under CDR package, the Company’s debts were 
restructured / rescheduled and addiƟonal credit faciliƟes have been sancƟoned as set out in the said LeƩer of Approval. 
The cut off date for CDR package was 30th September, 2013 and upon implementaƟon , the financial effect thereof has 
been duly taken into accounts.

 The CDR Package includes reliefs / measures such as reducƟon in interest rates, funding of interest, rearrangement of 
securiƟes etc. The key features of the CDR Proposal are as follows:

 (i) Repayment of Rupee Term Loans (RTL) (except term loan for CapƟve Power Plant of the Company) aŌer moratorium 
of 2 years from the cut-off date in 32 structured quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 
30th September, 2023.

 (ii) Repayment of Rupee Term Loans for CapƟve Power Plant of the Company aŌer moratorium of 2 years from the cut-
off date in 38 structured quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2025.

 (iii) Conversion of various irregular/outstanding/devolved financial faciliƟes into Working Capital Term Loan (‘WCTL’). 
Repayment of WCTL aŌer moratorium period of 2 years from cut-off date in 32 structured quarterly installments 
commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 30th September, 2023.

 (iv) Restructuring of exisƟng fund based and non fund based financial faciliƟes.
 (v) Interest on RTL and WCTL during the moratorium period of 2 years from cut-off date and interest on Cash Credit 

limit for a period of 9 months from the cut-off date shall be converted to FITL. Repayment of FITL would be done in 
18 equal quarterly installments commencing from 31st December, 2015 to 31st March, 2020.

 (vi) The rate of interest on RTL, WCTL, FITL and Fund Based Working Capital FaciliƟes shall be 11% (linked to the base 
rate of SBI) with the right to reset the rate of the Term loan(s) and FITL every year with the approval of CDR-EG.

 (vii) Waiver of penal interest for irregulariƟes in the Cash Credit accounts for the period from cut-off date to the date of 
implementaƟon of the package.

 (viii) ContribuƟon of ` 5,664 Lacs in the Company by the promoters in lieu of bank sacrifices and ` 8,577 Lacs to meet the 
addiƟonal cost over run towards the CapƟve Power plant project of the Company. The contribuƟon is to be brought 
iniƟally in the form of unsecured loan by 30th September, 2014 and the same is to be converted into equity by 30th 
June, 2015.

 (ix) The CDR Package as well as the provisions of the Master Circular on Corporate Debt Restructuring issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India, gives a right to the CDR Lenders to get a recompense of their waivers and sacrifices made as 
part of the CDR Proposal. The recompense payable by the Company is conƟngent on various factors, the outcome 
of which currently is materially uncertain and hence the proporƟonate amount payable as recompense has been 
treated as a conƟngent liability. The aggregate present value of the outstanding sacrifice made/ to be made by CDR 
Lenders as per the CDR package is approximately ` 69,987 Lacs.
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NOTE PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 1,137.76 1,137.76 
Number of Shares considered as weighted average shares and potenƟ al shares 
outstanding for calculaƟ on of Diluted Earnings Per Share (Refer Note below)

1,137.76 1,137.76 

Profit aŌer Tax aƩributable to Equity Shareholders (` in Lacs) (45,746.97) (34,018.26)
Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares (`) 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Basic) (`) (40.21) (29.90)
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (`) (40.21) (29.90)

Note:
Pursuant to CDR Package, the Company has received unsecured loans amounƟng to ` 7,131 Lacs from promoters & promoter 
companies as promoter's contribuƟon, to be converted into equity by 30th June, 2015, at such price as will be determined in 
accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons. Pending approval & determinaƟon of price 
by SEBI, the same has not been considered in the calculaƟon of EPS.
34. Notes to these consolidated financial statements are intended to serve as a means of informaƟve disclosure and a guide to 

beƩer understanding of the consolidated posiƟon of the companies. Recognising this purpose, the Company has disclosed 
only such notes from the individual financial statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures.

35. The accounƟng policies, notes and disclosures made by the parent are best viewed in its standalone financial statements 
to which these consolidated financial statements are aƩached. AccounƟng policies specifically related to consolidated 
financial statements are menƟoned in note 1c. Differences in accounƟng policies followed by the other enƟƟes 
consolidated have been reviewed and no adjustments have been made, since the impact of these differences is not 
significant.

36. Consolidated conƟngent liability is same as conƟngent liability of standalone Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.
37. Consolidated capital commitments are same as capital commitments of standalone Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.
38. Consolidated related party transacƟons are same as related party transacƟons of standalone Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.
39. OPERATING SEGMENTS
 A. Basis of segmentaƟon
  An operaƟng segment is a component of the Company that engages in business acƟviƟes from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transacƟons with any of the Company' 
s other components, and for which discrete financial informaƟon is available. All operaƟng segments' operaƟng 
results are reviewed regularly by the Company's management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segments and assess their performance.

  The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which is the Company's strategic business units. 
These business units are managed separately because they require different technology and markeƟng strategies. 
For these business units, the Company's management reviews internal reports on at least a quarterly basis.

  The following summary describes the operaƟons in each of the Company's reportable segments:

Reportable segment OperaƟ ons
Ferro Alloys and Minerals Manufacturing
Iron and Steel Manufacturing

 B. InformaƟon about reportable segments
  InformaƟon regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on 

segment profit (before tax), as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company's 
CEO. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such informaƟon is the most 
relevant in evaluaƟng the results of certain segments relaƟve to other enƟƟes that operate within these industries. 
Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Segment Revenue
Ferro Alloys and Minerals 47,117.76 53,631.55 
Iron and Steel 33,846.23 24,418.79 
Inter Segment Revenue (7,825.24) (5,636.15)
Total 73,138.75 72,414.18 
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NOTE - 39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contd.)

PARTICULARS 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

Segment Results (Profi t before Finance Cost & Tax)

Ferro Alloys and Minerals (34,781.54) (16,168.00)

Iron and Steel (5,878.53) (19,796.22)

Unallocated 210.99 347.10 

Total (40,449.08) (35,617.12)

Finance Cost 5,323.84 (1,574.48)

ExcepƟ onal Items -   -   

Profi t Before Tax (45,772.91) (34,042.64)

Less: Income Tax -   -   

Profi t AŌ er Tax (45,772.91) (34,042.64)

Other informaƟ on

PARTICULARS Year Ended Assets LiabiliƟ es Capital 
Expenditure

DepreciaƟ on Non-cash 
Expenses 

(other than 
DepreciaƟ on)

Ferro Alloys and Minerals
31-03-2018 1,64,384.68 43,046.96 15.80 3,009.75 -   
31-03-2017 1,90,436.01 30,406.03 1,213.83 3,067.51 -   

Iron and Steel
31-03-2018 37,249.08 (7,712.41) -   419.41 -   
31-03-2017 63,114.02 24,549.56 -   420.77 -   

Unallocated
31-03-2018 481.68 871.17 -   -   -   
31-03-2017 8,722.00 871.17 -   -   -   

Total (31-03-2018) 2,02,115.44 36,205.71 15.80 3,429.16 -   
Total (31-03-2017) 2,62,272.03 55,826.76 1,213.83 3,488.28 -   

Secondary segment informaƟ on (Geographical Segment)

Segment Period External 
revenue by 
locaƟ on of 
customers

Carrying amount of 
segment assets by 
locaƟ on of assets

Cost incurred 
on acquisiƟ on 
of tangible and 
intangible fi xed 

assets

Within India
 Year ended 31-03-2018 69,179.50 1,95,885.81 15.80 

 Year ended 31-03-2017 66,740.45 2,46,566.31 1,213.83 

Outside India
 Year ended 31-03-2018 3,959.25 6,229.63 -   

 Year ended 31-03-2017 5,673.73 15,705.72 -   

Total
Year ended 31-03-2018 73,138.75 2,02,115.44 15.80 

Year ended 31-03-2017 72,414.18 2,62,272.03 1,213.83 

40. The lenders have communicated to go for  change in management by indenƟfying an investor who will acquire the shares 
held by the promoters in Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd. A Deed of Undertaking has been executed by Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd. and 
its promoters in this regard. On execuƟon of the Deed of Undertaking, the Lenders have invited bids from prospecƟve 
investors by way of sale of equity stake held by the promoters of the Company and the same is in process. The maƩer is 
subjudice in the Kolkata High Court.

41. The lenders have stopped charging interest on debts, since the dues from the Company have been categorised as Non 
Performing Asset. Pending finalisaƟon of the restructuring plan, the Company has not provided accrued interest in its 
books as the account has been declared NPA by the respecƟve lenders. The amount of interest not so provided for the year 
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ended 31st March, 2018 stands at ` 30,057.65 Lacs. Penal interest and charges thereof (amount remaining unassertained) 
has not been provided for. The unprovided liability in respect of interest on long term and short term borrowings as on 
31st March, 2018 amounted to ` 61,449.05 Lacs. The same have consequenƟal impact on the reported financials.

42. The Company's Factory at Haldia (West Bengal) is suspended since 1st July, 2015 on account of depressed domesƟc 
and global market condiƟons in steel industry and excess procurement cost of Electricity. Robbery/Damages to certain 
properƟes had occurred and the Company had filed insurance claim which is under process. The claim seƩlement is 
currently under process. The financial impact of such insurance claim (Buglary/Robbery) on the reported financial year 
remains unascertained and unquanƟfied. 

43. The operaƟons of the Company was severely impacted by weak steel industry scenario and  lack of demand for Company’s 
finished products. The Company has incurred loss of ̀  45,959.26 Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2018 and accumulated 
loss as on 31st March, 2018 is ` 1,61,343.29 Lacs which is in excess of the enƟre net worth of the Company. The Company 
has conƟnuous support from the promoters and has put in place measures for revival and cost reducƟon. Considering the 
iniƟaƟve of the Company and given the emerging scenario of steel industry with noƟficaƟon of Minimum Support Price in 
India, the management is of view of foreseeable future about the operaƟons of the Company and accordingly the financial 
statements have been prepared under 'Going Concern' basis.

44. The current and non-current assets, in the opinion of the management, have a value on realizaƟon in the ordinary course 
of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the accounts. Adequate provisions have been made 
for all known losses and liabiliƟes.

45. Certain Balances of the sundry creditors, sundry debtors, unsecured loans and advances are subject to confirmaƟon 
and reconciliaƟon. The reported financials might have consequenƟal impact once the reconciliaƟon is completed, the 
quantum where of remains unascertained. Advance from ParƟes includes ̀  198.62 Lacs (P.Y.: ̀  1,249.64 Lacs) being certain 
receipts lying under suspense account in absence of informaƟon as to the credits in the bank account. 

46. The total comprehensive income has been aƩributed to the owner of the parent and to the non-controling interest even 
if this results in the non-controling interest having deficit balance. Hence, the non-controling interest are restated and 
reclassified as per the requirements of Ind-AS.

47. The Consolidated Financial Statement includes the financial statements of the Parent Company, its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Singapore and its step down subsidiary, PT. Bara Prima Mandiri., 
incorporated in Indonesia. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effecƟve control is acquired and are 
excluded from the date of transfer/disposal.

AddiƟonal InformaƟon as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary.

(` in Lacs)
Name of the EnƟ ty As at 31-03-2018 As at 31-03-2017

Net Assets
(Total Assets- Total LiabiliƟ es)

Net Assets
(Total Assets- Total LiabiliƟ es)

As % of Consolidated 
Net Assets

Amount (`) As % of Consolidated 
Net Assets

Amount (`)

Parent Company
Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd. 96.11% (1,01,191.80) 98.65% (58,058.05)
Subsidiaries
Foreign
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd. 2.77% (2,912.69) -1.38% 811.05 
PT Bara Prima Mandiri 0.67% (705.89) 1.95% (1,146.06)
Minority Interest in all Subsidiaries 0.45% (471.95) 0.78% (458.44)
Total 100% (1,05,282.32) 100% (58,851.50)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

NOTE - 47 (Contd.)

Name of the EnƟ ty As at 31-03-2018 As at 31-03-2017
Share in Profi t or loss Share in Profi t or loss

As % of consolidated 
Profi t or loss

 Amount (`) As % of consolidated 
Profi t or loss

 Amount (`) 

Parent Company
Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd. 81.69% (37,393.15) 98.87% (33,634.34)
Subsidiaries
Foreign
SKP Overseas PTE Ltd. 18.17% (8,314.91) 0.88% (298.59)
PT Bara Prima Mandiri 0.09% (38.91) 0.18% (60.95)
Minority Interest in all Subsidiaries 0.06% (25.94) 0.07% (24.38)
Total 100% (45,772.91) 100% (34,018.26)

48. Previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary to 
conform to this year's classificaƟon. Accordingly, amounts and other disclosures for the preceding years are included as 
an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relaƟon to amounts and other disclosures 
relaƟng to the current year.

(` in Lacs)

As per our report of even date aƩached  

For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E

CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date:14th day of August, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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FORM AOC 1
[Pursuant to fi rst proviso to sub-secƟ on (3) of secƟ on 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures
PART "A" - Subsidiaries

Sl. No. Name of the Subsidiary SKP Overseas PTE Ltd. PT. Bara Prima Mandiri 
(Subsidiary of SKP Overseas 

PTE Ltd.)

1 The date since when the subsidiary was acquired 9th April, 2008 8th January, 2013
2 ReporƟ ng Period 2017-18 2017-18
3 ReporƟ ng Currency INR (Converted) INR (Converted)
4 Exchange 65.0441 0.0047 
5 Share Capital 105.51 7.09 
6 Reserves & Surplus (196.81) (18.87)
7 Total Assets -   62.30 
8 Total LiabiliƟ es (Excluding Equity & Other Equity) 91.30 74.07 
9 Investments -   -   

10 Turnover* -   -   
11 Profi t Before TaxaƟ on (186.96) (0.65)
12 Provision for TaxaƟ on -   -   
13 Profi t AŌ er TaxaƟ on (186.96) (0.65)
14 Proposed Dividend -   -   
15 % of Shareholding 100% 60%

*Currency rate for turnover has been taken on average rate.
1. Name of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operaƟons : None
2. Name of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : None

PART "B" - Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to SecƟ on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures :

Sl. No. Name of Associate/Joint Venture N.A.
1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet date -
2 Date on which the associate or Joint Venture was associated or 

acquired
-

3 Shares of Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end
No. of Shares -
Amount of Investment in Joint Venture -
Extend of Holding % -

4 DescripƟ on of how there is signifi cant infl uence -
5 Reason why the Joint Venture is not consolidated -
6 Networth aƩributable to Shareholdoing as per latest audited Bal-

ance Sheet (` in Lacs)
-

7 Profit/Loss for the year (` in Lacs)
i. Considered in ConsolidaƟ on -
ii. Not Considered in ConsolidaƟ on -

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operaƟons : None
2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year : None

(` in Crores)

As per our report of even date aƩached  
For R. Kothari & Company  For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 307069E
CA Manoj Kumar Sethia Suresh Kumar Patni 
Partner
Membership No: 064308

Chairman

Place: Kolkata  Anil Prasad Shaw Vipul Jain 
Date:14th day of August, 2018 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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